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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS BB =E

Changes
2021 HE)
HK$'m %
A &EBT AL
Loss for the Year Attributable to NAREE ANELERN
Owners of the Company 518 (734.6) (1,452.6) (49.4%)
Net Assets FEE 4,494.5 5,718.2 (21.4%)
Total Assets BERE 10,018.8 11,572.0 (13.4%)
Equity Attributable to Owners of the 22 BB A FE(G A% 4
Company 4,022.4 5,231.3 (23.1%)
Pledged Bank Deposits, Cash and EHEIRRITER
Bank Balances e RPITEHS 97.5 141.2 (30.9%)
Changes
2022 2021 2
Key Performance and Liquidity FTEEERER HK$ HK$ %
Indicators B AR RIS AE B BT B
Basic Loss Per Share BRRAREE
(Note 1) (Htatt) (0.3187) (0.6302) (49.4%)
Net Assets Per Share (Note 7) SREEFMEMNZT) 1.75 2.27 (22.9%)
P/E Ratio (Note 7) MEEHF1) (1.02x) (0.79x) 29.1%
Return on Capital Employed (Note 2)  R&ZN[El R & (ffz72) (18.26%) (27.77%) (34.2%)
Return on Total Assets (Note 3) BEERIWE(ME3) (7.33%) (12.55%) (41.6%)
Gearing Ratio (Note 4) BELEHZ4) 98.76% 96.27% 2.6%
Adjusted Gearing Ratio (Note 5) CRABREELERAZS) 96.33% 93.57% 2.9%
Current Ratio (Note 6) B R (H i) 1.88x 1.75x 7.4%
Interest Coverage (Note 7) F BB XM Z7) (0.49x) (2.51x) (80.5%)

Notes:

1.

Based on 2,304,849,611 shares issued and fully paid as at 31
December 2022 (2021: 2,304,849,611 shares) and the market
closing price as at 31 December 2022 of HK$0.325 (2021:
HK$0.50) per share. Net assets per share is calculated as net
assets attributable to owners of the Company over number of
shares issued and fully paid.

2. Calculated as loss for the year attributable to owners of the
Company over equity attributable to owners of the Company.

3. Calculated as loss for the year attributable to owners of the
Company over total assets.

4. Calculated as borrowings and convertible bonds issued by the
Company over equity attributable to owners of the Company.

5. Calculated as net borrowings (borrowings and convertible
bonds issued by the Company net of pledged bank deposits
and cash and bank balances) over equity attributable to
owners of the Company.

6. Calculated as current assets over current liabilities.

7. Calculated as loss for the year attributable to owners of the

Company before finance costs and taxation over finance
costs.
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CORPORATIE INFORMATION &4

Board of Directors

The composition of the board (“Board”) of directors
(“Directors”) of Silver Grant International Holdings Group
Limited (“Company”, together with its subsidiaries, the
“Group”) during the year ended 31 December 2022 (“Year
2022”) and as at the date of this annual report is set out
below:

Executive Directors

Chu Hing Tsung (Chairman and Co-Chief Executive Officer)
(re-designated from the Chief Executive Officer to
a Co-Chief Executive Officer with effect from 13 May 2022)
Chen Yongcun (Co-Chief Executive Officer)
(appointed as a Co-Chief Executive Officer and an Executive
Director with effect from 13 May 2022 and
16 September 2022, respectively)
Luo Zhihai
Tang Lunfei
Wang Ping

Non-executive Director

Chen Zhiwei

Independent non-executive Directors
Liang Qing

Zhang Lu

Hung Muk Ming

Audit Committee

Hung Muk Ming (Committee Chairman)
Liang Qing
Zhang Lu

Remuneration Committee

Zhang Lu (Committee Chairman)
Liang Qing
Luo Zhihai

Nomination Committee

Chu Hing Tsung (Committee Chairman)
Zhang Lu
Hung Muk Ming
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CORPORATE INFORMATION & ¥}

Company Secretary

Ng Hoi Leung, Leo

Company Lawyers

LCH Lawyers LLP
Auditor
Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
Registered Public Interest Entity Auditor

Principal Bankers

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited

Share Registrar and Transfer Office

Tricor Secretaries Limited

17/F, Far East Finance Centre,
16 Harcourt Road,

Hong Kong

(Tel: 29801333 Fax: 28108185)

Registered Office
Suite 4901, 49th Floor,
Office Tower, Convention Plaza,

1 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong
(Tel: 28023606 Fax: 28029506)

Company Website

http://www.silvergrant.com.cn

Stock Code

171

Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT &

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group has recorded a loss attributable to owners of the
Company of approximately HK$734,563,000 for Year 2022,
as compared with that of approximately HK$1,452,609,000
for the year ended 31 December 2021 (“Year 2021”). Basic
loss per share of the Company was 31.87 HK cents for Year
2022 (Year 2021: 63.02 HK cents).

Year 2022 was an exceptional year. The outbreak of the
Russia-Ukraine conflict at the beginning of the year did not
only change the geopolitical situation for the whole world,
but also significantly impacted the global energy supply and
demand patterns. As Omicron (a Coronavirus Disease 2019
(“COVID-19”) variant with a lower fatality rate but faster
contagious speed) spread into China, major Chinese cities
experienced outbreaks and lockdowns, causing the domestic
economy to suffer a major setback and the country failing to
reach the 5.5% GDP growth target set at the beginning of
the year. To curb inflation, the Federal Reserve Board of the
United States (“Fed”) had raised interest rates seven times
in 2022, with such increases accumulating to 425 basis
points in aggregate and the Federal funds target interest rate
eventually reaching a range of 4.25% to 4.50%. Such cycle
of interest rate hikes initiated by the Fed had exacerbated
the turmoil in the global financial market.

E S de)

REEF022FEARNAIHEAE AES
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT £E#H%&E

BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

g R REEINA LB R AR (Zhong Hai You Qi (Taizhou)
Petrochemical Company Limited*) (“Zhong Hai You Qi”)
is a joint venture of the Company, which is principally
engaged in the crude oil processing business as well as
the production and sale of petrochemical products. In
addition to the technological modification exercises which
have been carried out to upgrade its factories since 2019,
Zhong Hai You Qi has also undertaken product development
projects to improve its capabilities for the production of
high-end petrochemical products. With the close co-
operation and support from its operation and management
teams and employees, Zhong Hai You Qi has accomplished
further cost reduction, efficiency enhancement and
performance improvement as reflected in various production
and operation indicators during Year 2022. Despite the
unfavourable business conditions prevailing during the period
under review, such as the impacts of COVID-19 and the
significant fluctuations in international prices of crude oil, a
major raw material used in its manufacturing process, Zhong
Hai You Qi has achieved the best performance since the
commencement of its technological transformation exercises
in 2019. The steady increase in the sales of its high-end
lubricating oil products will enable Zhong Hai You Qi to
establish a foothold in the upscale petrochemical product
market and improve its overall profitability.

Driven by the strategic goals to achieve “emission peak
and carbon neutrality”, China has embarked on a long
journey of restructuring its energy industry, which has
also brought unprecedented development opportunities
along with investments in terms of technology and capital
injection to the green industry in the country. During Year
2022, the Group and an independent third party formed a
joint venture company, it REHE BB AR ST AT
(Beijing Lingjun New Energy Technology Company Limited®)
(“Beijing Lingjun”), engaged in the research and development
(“R&D"), transfer and promotion of photovoltaic battery
technology in China. Having confidence in the prospects of
the new energy industry, the Group is committed to support
the further development of Beijing Lingjun, including the
sourcing of funds required for the expansion of its R&D and
manufacturing capabilities and capacity.

* English name is translated for identification purpose only

Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT &

BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

Investments

The Group has been well-established in the investment
industry for decades and has developed its own investment
system. During the year under review, the Group had
readjusted its business strategies and made the decision
to scale down part of the business operations under its
investment business segment (including the non-performing
asset investments and asset management businesses), and
redirected its focus to equity investments, and in particular to
those in the new energy industry and its sub-sectors. Given
the prevailing government policies and the development
trends in relation to the green industry, the Board believes
that making investments in the relevant sub-sectors of the
new energy industry would be an essential move for the
Group to achieve its strategic transformation.

The Group has made investments in certain enterprises in
the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”) which are classified
by the Group as financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss. As at 31 December 2022, the NT Trust Scheme
(as defined below) was the most significant financial asset
investment of the Group, the carrying value of which
represented approximately 3.9% of the total assets of the
Group. Further details of the NT Trust Scheme are set out
below:

B EEE)
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KRERE - RNEBEFA KLEZREE K
SEEMABRKLERE  REBRBHOKRE
EBHHBETHEHEE  BRTREER
BEREEREER SELBRBRERSE
FrRlEEFEREXREADE - ZEE
BRMBRRREARGBEXRNERBS
EZeRRRENEREENHBEAIITE
R RN R BB BN B BRI -

REBEBRERETHEARLMB(HE])
¥ WHASEREANAABEFEER
BEFFABENEREE - N2022512 A31
H ' NT Trust Scheme (JEZ T ) BAEE
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B EX3.9% o ABNT Trust Scheme #
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT £E#H%&E

BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)
Investments (Continued)

The Group has invested RMB505,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$565,510,000) in aggregate into a trust
(“NT Trust Scheme”) managed by BIR{Z5EER A7 (National
Trust Co., Ltd.*), which holds a portfolio of limited liability
partnerships investing in property development investments
in Zhuozhou and Shenyang in the PRC. As at 31 December
2022, the carrying value of the NT Trust Scheme as
measured at fair value through profit or loss, amounted
to approximately HK$387,458,000 (31 December 2021:
HK$460,235,000) and accounted for approximately 3.9% (31
December 2021: 4.0%) of the total assets of the Group. Out
of the loss of approximately HK$166,108,000 (Year 2021:
HK$102,689,000) recorded by the Group in the change in
fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss for Year 2022, a loss of approximately HK$35,309,000
(Year 2021: HK$110,618,000) was attributable to the fair
value change of the NT Trust Scheme as at 31 December
2022. The Group did not receive any distribution from the
NT Trust Scheme during Year 2022 (Year 2021: Nil). Based
on the current investment strategy of the Group, its interest
in the NT Trust Scheme is held for trading purpose and
classified as a current asset in its consolidated statement of
financial position.

The objective of the Group in relation to its investments in
financial assets is to capture returns from the appreciation
of the value of its investments and to receive income
therefrom. The Board believes that the performance of the
financial asset investments of the Group is dependent on
the financial and operating performance of the investee
companies and market sentiment, which are affected by
factors, such as interest rate movements, national policies,
and the performance of the major economies. The Group
will continue to adopt prudent investment principles, closely
monitor the performance of its investment portfolio, and
readjust its investment strategies as and when appropriate.
In response to the potential market volatility and economic
downturns, the Group has accelerated the realisation of
its mature investments while reducing the proportion of its
medium and long-term investments to improve its liquidity
position.

* English name is translated for identification purpose only
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT &

BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)
Property Leasing

The rental income from the Group’s property leasing business
amounted to approximately HK$96,884,000 for Year 2022,
representing an increase of approximately 10.9% from that of
approximately HK$87,376,000 for Year 2021. Such revenue
was mainly derived from the leasing of East Gate Plaza, an
investment property of the Group located in Beijing, China,
which is comprised of a residential section and a commercial
section. The increase in the Group’s rental income for Year
2022 was mainly caused by the increase in the average
occupancy rate of East Gate Plaza from approximately 80%
for Year 2021 to approximately 82% for Year 2022, as a
result of the following factors: (1) the property operation
team of the Group had actively recruited new tenants for
the vacant areas in East Gate Plaza and retained its existing
tenants while making adjustments to its marketing strategies
and adopting a number of flexible leasing policies during the
year under review; and (2) the Group had made continuous
improvements to the quality of its rental service and the
standard of its property management during the year under
review so as to stabilise its rental rates.

B EEE)
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT £E#H%&E

PROSPECTS AND OUTLOOK

At the end of 2022, China took the initiative to optimise
and regulate its pandemic prevention and control measures.
The full opening of China is anticipated to bring new
opportunities for rebuilding the global economic order, which
is particularly beneficial to alleviating the pressures on global
inflation.

2023 will be a critical year for the transition of China’s
economy from its “anti-pandemic mode” to post-pandemic
full recovery. It is expected that confidence in the market
will be gradually restored and economic activities will be
continuously revived, thus stimulating domestic consumption.
In terms of fixed asset investments in China, it is expected
that the growth in investments in infrastructure and the
manufacturing industry will persist, while real estate
investments will continue to decline. As the economy
recovers, the Group, after conducting relevant market
research based on the prevailing market trends relevant to its
business segments, will explore the business development
opportunities that will help the Group to strive towards its
established goals.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

On 8 September 2022, dt mEERLARHE AR A A (Beijing
Longda Tianhong Technology Company Limited*) (“Party
A”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered
into a joint venture agreement (“JV Agreement”) with an
independent third party (“Party B”), and Beijing Lingjun,
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, pursuant to
which Party A shall transfer 50% equity interest in Beijing
Lingjun to Party B at nil consideration (“Transfer”). After the
registration of the Transfer with the relevant authorities in
the PRC (“Completion”) which took place on 29 November
2022, Beijing Lingjun was owned as to 50% by Party A and
50% by Party B and Beijing Lingjun was accounted for as
a joint venture of the Company in the consolidated financial
statements of the Group.

* English name is translated for identification purpose only
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT &

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS
(Continued)

As at the date of the JV Agreement, the registered capital
of Beijing Lingjun has not yet been paid up. Pursuant to the
JV Agreement, each of Party A and Party B shall pay up
the registered capital of Beijing Lingjun of RMB50,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$56,800,000) attributable to
50% of the equity interest of Beijing Lingjun by 30 April 2030.
In addition, after Completion, if Beijing Lingjun requires funds
for project investment and its daily operation management,
each of Party A and Party B shall advance to Beijing Lingjun
a shareholder’s loan within 15 days from the request of
Beijing Lingjun, in proportion to the respective shareholdings
of Party A and Party B in Beijing Lingjun simultaneously,
provided that at all times the aggregate amount of the paid
up registered capital and the shareholder’s loan advanced
by each of Party A and Party B to Beijing Lingjun shall not
be more than RMB180,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$204,480,000), which was determined by reference to the
expected amount of funds required for the development and
operation of Beijing Lingjun. Beijing Lingjun was intended to
be principally engaged in investment projects relating to new
energy (or other projects approved by the board of directors
of Beijing Lingjun) after Completion.

Further details of the JV Agreement are set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 8 September 2022.

Save for the above, the Group did not have any material
acquisition or disposal during Year 2022.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT £E#H%&E

FINANCIAL REVIEW

The loss attributable to the owners of the Company

decreased by approximately 49.4% from approximately
HK$1,452,609,000 for Year 2021 to approximately
HK$734,563,000 for Year 2022 and the basic loss per
share attributable to ordinary equity holders of the Company
decreased from 63.02 HK cents for Year 2021 to 31.87 HK
cents for Year 2022, mainly due to the following:

(i)

(i

the substantial improvement in the Group’s share
of the result of the Company’s joint venture, Zhong
Hai You Qi, from its share of a loss of approximately
HK$1,417,546,000 for Year 2021 to its share of a profit
of approximately HK$6,600,000 for Year 2022, mainly
attributable to (a) the additional sales tax and related
tax surcharge and late fee for prior years incurred by
Zhong Hai You Qi during Year 2021, which were absent
during Year 2022; and (b) the improvement in the
operating result of Zhong Hai You Qi from Year 2021 to
Year 2022;

(a) the increase in the loss from the fair value of
the financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss of the Group for Year 2022 from approximately
HK$102,689,000 for Year 2021 to approximately
HK$166,108,000 for Year 2022, mainly due to the
decrease in the fair value of the financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss held by the Group as at 31
December 2022; (b) the increase in the impairment of
financial assets, net, from approximately HK$950,000
recorded by the Group for Year 2021 to approximately
HK$251,580,000 for Year 2022, mainly attributable
to the increase in the expected credit loss of loan
receivables recorded by the Group as at 31 December
2022; and (c) the turn from the fair value gain on
investment properties of approximately HK$31,814,000
for Year 2021 to a fair value loss on investment
properties of approximately HK$208,156,000 for Year
2022, mainly caused by the decrease in the fair value
of the investment properties held by the Group as at
31 December 2022, all as a result of the hiking interest
rates during Year 2022 and the market expectations of
a global economic slowdown in 2023;

Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT &

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

(i) the decrease in the administrative expenses incurred
by the Group from approximately HK$267,285,000 for
Year 2021 to approximately HK$181,456,000 for Year
2022, mainly due to (a) the reduction in the staff costs
incurred by the Group in Year 2022, as a result of the
reorganisation undertaken by the Group’s office in the
PRC during Year 2022; and (b) the decrease in the
provision of financial guarantee and bad debts recorded
by the Group in Year 2022; and

(iv) the increase in the finance costs incurred by the Group
from approximately HK$410,008,000 for Year 2021 to
approximately HK$530,034,000 for Year 2022, mainly
attributable to the combined effect of: (a) certain other
borrowings which remained outstanding as at 31
December 2022 were drawn down by the Group in
the second half of Year 2021; and (b) the maturity of
the Company’s senior note in the aggregate principal
amount of US$19,800,000 in December 2021.

Revenue

Rental income of the Group for Year 2022 amounted to
approximately HK$96,884,000 (Year 2021: HK$87,376,000),
representing an increase of approximately 10.9%, mainly due
to the increase in the average occupancy rate of the rental
property of the Group during Year 2022, as compared with
that during Year 2021.

Other income, gains and losses

The increase in other income, gains and losses from
approximately HK$348,441,000 for Year 2021 to
approximately HK$467,687,000 for Year 2022 was mainly
due to the combined effect of: (i) the increase in interest
income generated through advances by the Group
from approximately HK$230,296,000 for Year 2021 to
approximately HK$410,508,000 for Year 2022; and (i) the
gain on disposal of financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss and equity investments amounting to approximately
HK$52,806,000 in Year 2021, which was absent in Year
2022.
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410,008,000 JT & hn 220224 & 49
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT £E#H%&E

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Change in fair value of financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

The increase in the loss from the fair value of the financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss of the Group
from approximately HK$102,689,000 for Year 2021 to
approximately HK$166,108,000 for Year 2022, which was
mainly attributable to the decrease in the fair value of the
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss held by
the Group as at 31 December 2022, and in particular that of
the NT Trust Scheme which had declined by approximately
15.8% during Year 2022.

Finance costs

The increase in the finance costs incurred by the Group
from approximately HK$410,008,000 for Year 2021 to
approximately HK$530,034,000 for Year 2022, was mainly
due to the combined effect of (i) certain other borrowings
which remained outstanding as at 31 December 2022 were
drawn down by the Group in the second half of Year 2021;
and (i) the maturity of the Company’s senior note in the
aggregate principal amount of US$19,800,000 in December
2021.

Share of profits or losses of joint ventures

The turnaround in the result of the Company’s joint ventures,
from a share of losses of approximately HK$1,417,546,000
for Year 2021 to a share of profits of approximately
HK$1,130,000 for Year 2022, was mainly attributable to (i)
the additional sales tax and related tax surcharge and late
fee for prior years incurred by Zhong Hai You Qi during
Year 2021, which were absent during Year 2022; (i) the
improvement in the operating result of Zhong Hai You Qi
from a loss of approximately HK$2,182,182,000 for Year
2021 to a profit of approximately HK$12,940,000 for Year
2022; and (iii) offset by share of a loss from Beijing Lingjun,
a joint venture of the Company formed in 2022 by the
Group.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT &

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables

The increase in the Group’s deposits, prepayments and
other receivables from approximately HK$714,075,000 as at
31 December 2021 to approximately HK$908,352,000 as at
31 December 2022 was mainly attributable to the increase
in the accrual of interest receivables due to more advances
having been made by the Group during Year 2022.

Accrued charges, rental deposits and other payables

The increase in the Group’s accrued charges, rental deposits
and other payables from approximately HK$405,116,000 as
at 31 December 2021 to approximately HK$1,204,446,000
as at 31 December 2022 was mainly attributable to (i) the
increase in the receipts in advance due to the disposal of
non-performing assets by the Group during Year 2022; (ii)
the increase in the amounts due to other creditors; and (iii)
the increase in various payables including interest payables,
VAT and other taxes and legal and professional fees payable.

TREASURY POLICY

The Group adopts a conservative treasury policy under
which the Group keeps its investment costs under control
and manages the returns of its investments efficiently. The
Group has guidelines in place to monitor and control its
investment risk exposure and to manage its capital. The
Group also strives to reduce its exposure to credit risk by
performing ongoing credit assessments and evaluations
of the financial status of its customers. The Board closely
reviews the Group’s liquidity position to ensure the Group
has adequate liquidity to meet its funding requirements at all
times.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT £E#H%&E

TREASURY POLICY (Continued)

Cash Position

ERBR (&)

REMRR

2022 2021

HK$’000 HK$'000

F#ET FEIT

Pledged bank deposits BIIFRITER - 24,450
Restricted bank balance SR HIIRTT A 84 674,814 —
Cash and bank balances B & MIRTTAEH 97,517 116,755
Total 4858 772,331 141,205

The decrease in the cash and bank balances of the
Group (excluding pledged bank deposits and restricted
bank balance) to approximately HK$97,517,000 as at 31
December 2022 from that of approximately HK$116,755,000
as at 31 December 2021 was mainly due to the capital
injection and the advances made by the Group to a newly
formed joint venture of the Company, Beijing Lingjun, in Year
2022. The cash and bank balances (including pledged bank
deposits and restricted bank balance) of the Group as at 31
December 2022 were mainly denominated in RMB.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s cash and bank
balances (including pledged bank deposits and restricted
bank balance) were denominated in the following currencies:

REBER2022F12 831 AR & RIBTT4E 6
(TEBEEERRRITEARZRBIRITES)
#997,517,0007% JT 8 720215612 4318 #)
#9116,755,000%& T B AR EEEZHRN
REEF2022F ERARBF KL E &1
EUEREBERETE R - 1K2022F12A31
B AEBZESRBTEH(BIEEIERRE
TEFRZREBRITER) EEAARKE
& -

MR2022%12A31H » AEB 2R e MRITH
HR(BEEERRITERRZBRHRITEL)
BTy E8EHE -

HK$ BT 0.5% 35.8%
RMB AR 99.5% 57.2%
Us$ ETT 0.0% 7.0%

100.0% 100.0%

Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT &

TREASURY POLICY (Continued)
Cash Position (Continued)

The Group conducted its business almost exclusively in RMB
except that certain transactions were conducted in HK$ and
United Sates dollars (“US$”). The conversion of RMB into
HK$, US$ or other foreign currencies has been based on
the rates set by the People’s Bank of China. The value of
RMB against HK$, US$ and other foreign currencies may
fluctuate and is affected by factors such as changes in the
PRC’s political and economic conditions. The Group has
not adopted any financial instruments for hedging purposes.
However, the Group will constantly assess the foreign
exchange risk it encounters so as to decide on the hedging
policy required against the possible foreign exchange risk
that may arise.

Working Capital and Borrowings
As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s total borrowings

amounted to approximately HK$3,972,452,000 in aggregate.
The composition of these borrowings is summarised below:

EBBERE)
BEMRR(E)

BETRZUEBTRET(ETDETIN
AEBEBREIDEBAUARBET - AR
BHAETT - RLKEMINETNIZRPBEAR
RITRENEXRT ;R - ARBHET X
REMIMENEEX SR AXPEBA
REEMRABLEERENTE - ARELE
RAEASBRTAESRAR - Al - AK
B 5 A AT P ER A SME R B - PAST ST R]
AE th 3R 9 SN [\ s B TE P 8 RO SR IR -

EEESREN

R2022% 128318 » REBZEFRBBELHA
3,972,452,000/8 7T ° % &5 X R 4B AL i an
T~

2022 2021

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FET

Short term borrowings HHER 1,388,974 541,037

Long term borrowings RAREK 2,541,766 3,193,628

Convertible bonds BIEE 41,712 1,301,494

Total borrowings EEAEE 3,972,452 5,036,159
Cash and bank balances e MIRTTHRES

(including pledged bank deposits) (BREEEFRITFR 97,517 141,205

Net borrowings BRFRE 3,874,935 4,894,954
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT £E#H%&E

TREASURY POLICY (Continued)
Working Capital and Borrowings (Continued)

Interests for all borrowings of the Group for Year 2022 were
charged at fixed and floating rates ranging from 3.7% per
annum to 12% per annum (Year 2021: 5.35% per annum to
12% per annum).

As at 31 December 2022, the long and short term
borrowings of the Group which remained outstanding were
denominated as follows:

ERBE(E)
BEESRER(E)

R2022F [ - AEBABEBRZFETEMN
BEERFBFEFE N TEMEITREF
FZEA12% (2021F [F : F F) F5.35% % F
£12%) °

R2022F 12 A31H » AEEEKER 2 KH
DR EBEFTIE T EBEHE -

2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$000

F#ET FHET

HK$ BT 180,000 176,700
RMB AR 3,750,740 3,552,320
uss$ ETT - 5,645
3,930,740 3,734,665

As at 31 December 2022, the long and short term
borrowings of the Group which remained outstanding carried
at fixed and floating interest rates as follows:

R2022%F12 8310 » KAEBEHAEE 2R
PR BEFZETE RZBF R B/ o EN
™~

2022 2021

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FEITL

Fixed interest rates & F F & 1,689,583 1,822,354
Floating interest rates R BN & 2,241,157 1,912,311
3,930,740 3,734,665

Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT &

TREASURY POLICY (Continued)

Working Capital and Borrowings (Continued)

As at 31 December 2022, the maturity profile of the long
and short term borrowings of the Group was as follows:

EBBERE)

BEESRER(E)

MR2022%12A31H » AEBREREHEK
BHAER T ¢

2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET

Bank loans repayable: JEEEIRITE K
Within one year or on demand —FNIIREL 50,392 14,670
In the second year FE-F 152,856 18,337
In the third to fifth years, inclusive FECEERFT(BIEERERT) 35,386 144,866
238,634 177,873

Other loans repayable: FEEEEMER

Within one year —FR 1,338,582 526,367
In the second year E-F 333,147 66,770
In the third to fifth years, inclusive FoEERF(REEERT) 2,020,377 2,963,655
3,692,106 3,556,792
3,930,740 3,734,665

As at 31 December 2022, the Company had redeemed part
of the convertible bonds in the aggregate principal amount
of approximately HK$1,108,288,000, out of the convertible
bonds due in December 2022, which were of the aggregate
principal amount of HK$1,150,000,000 with interest payable
at 12% per annum (31 December 2021: 7% per annum) and
the remaining principal amount of the convertible bonds has

been fully redeemed by the Company as at the date of this

annual report.

2022612 A31H » AARIEERHD RE
FBH) /1,108,288,00058 7T 2 Al AR & 55
ZENR2022F 12 ARz Al e RESF A 48
%8 /£1,150,000,000/% 7T + I 3% F ) £12%
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT £E#H%&E

TREASURY POLICY (Continued)
Working Capital and Borrowings (Continued)

As at 31 December 2022, the gearing ratio (calculated as
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings, and convertible
bonds issued by the Company over equity attributable to
owners of the Company) and the current ratio (calculated as
current assets over current liabilities) of the Group were 99%
(31 December 2021: 96%) and 1.9x (31 December 2021:
1.8x) respectively. These ratios are the key performance
indicators used by the management of the Group to measure
the Group’s level of leverage to ensure the Group has the
liquidity to meet its financial obligations at all times. The
Group will strive to improve its liquidity by expediting its
collection of outstanding loan receivables and disposal of
financial asset investments (including equity investments and
non-performing assets portfolio) which will bring a reasonable
return to the Group.

As at 31 December 2022, notwithstanding that the Group
had net current assets of approximately HK$2,426 million,
the Group’s interest-bearing bank and other borrowings
and convertible bonds with an aggregate carrying amount
of approximately HK$1,431 million are due to be repayable
within the next 12 months while its cash and bank balances
amounted to approximately HK$98 million. In addition, during
the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group’s borrowing
with a carrying amount of approximately HK$198 million has
not been repaid according to the scheduled repayment date
and remained outstanding as at 31 December 2022. As at
the date of this annual report, the Group has been actively
negotiating with the lender for an extension of the repayment
date of the aforesaid borrowing. Up to the date of this
annual report, the Group has settled the interest relating to
the outstanding borrowing and has not received any demand
on immediate repayment of the borrowing.

Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT &

TREASURY POLICY (Continued)

In view of the above circumstances, the Directors have
given careful consideration to the Group’s future liquidity
requirements, operating performance and available sources
of financing in assessing the Group’s ability to continue
operating as a going concern. The following plans and
measures are formulated to manage the working capital and
improve the financial position of the Group:

()  the Group will continue to implement measures to
speed up the timing of collection of outstanding loan
receivables and interest receivables;

(i) the Group will continue to take measures to expedite
the disposal of financial asset investments, including
equity investments and non-performing assets portfolio;
and

(i) the Group will continue its negotiations with the lenders
of certain bank and other borrowings or other financial
institutions on the refinancing of the borrowings.

The Directors have reviewed the Group’s cash flow
projections prepared by management, which cover a period
of not less than twelve months from 31 December 2022.
They are of the opinion that, taking into account the above-
mentioned plans and measures, the Group will have sufficient
working capital to finance its operations and to meet its
financial obligations as and when they fall due. Accordingly,
the Directors are satisfied that it is appropriate to prepare
the consolidated financial statements of the Group on a
going concern basis.

EBBERE)

ERLAER  BEEEFGAEESELS
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT £E#H%&E

TREASURY POLICY (Continued)

Notwithstanding the above, there are inherent uncertainties
as to whether the Group is able to achieve its plans and
measures as described above. Whether the Group will
be able to generate adequate cash flows to continue as
a going concern would depend on (i) the successful and
timely implementation of the plans and measures to speed
up the timing of collection of outstanding loan receivables
and interest receivables; (ii) the successful and timely
implementation of the plans for the disposal of financial
asset investments; and (i) the successful obtaining of new
sources of financing as and when needed.

Should the Group be unable to achieve the above-mentioned
plans and measures, the Group may be unable to continue
to operate as a going concern, in which case adjustments
would have to be made to adjust the values of the Group’s
assets to their recoverable amounts, to provide for any
further liabilities which might arise and to reclassify non-
current assets and non-current liabilities as current assets
and current liabilities, respectively. The effects of these
adjustments have not been reflected in the consolidated
financial statements set out in this annual report.

GRANT OF LOANS

The Group has granted loans to persons who were
introduced by the management of the Group, taking into
account that the grant of the loans would provide interest
income to the Group, which would bring better returns
to the Group than bank deposits, in the absence of good
investment opportunities with high returns.

Before granting the loans, the Group performed the following
credit risk assessment:

(i) understanding the background of the borrower,
including its entity type, place of registration and nature
of business;

(i) assessing the credit worthiness, reputation and credit

history of the borrower etc.;

Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT &

GRANT OF LOANS (Continued)

(i)  performing public search to collate information about
the borrower, such as checking the borrower’s details
in the “National Enterprise Credit Information Publicity
System” in the PRC;

(iv) obtaining the financial information of the borrower, such
as its financial statements;

(v) understanding the source of repayment from the
borrower for assessing the repayment ability of the
borrower; and

(vi) if security is required to be provided, reviewing
the adequacy of the securities and performing due
diligence on the securities such as conducting property
public search.

After the grant of the loans, the Group has designated
officers of its Financial Management Centre to monitor the
repayment of the loans on the maturity dates. If there is any
delay in the repayment of the loans, the designated officers
will make telephone calls and/or send letters or messages
to the borrowers in default to demand for repayment; and
negotiate with the relevant borrowers for the repayment or
settlement of the loans.

The Group may also engage lawyers to advise and/or assist
in the recovery of the loans such as issuing demand letters
to the borrowers in default, demanding for repayment of the
outstanding amounts owed to the Group, and commencing
legal actions against the relevant borrowers.

Loan receivables

As at 31 December 2022, the carrying amount of the
outstanding loan receivables of the Group (“Relevant Loan
Receivables”) amounted to approximately HK$2,246,377,000
(31 December 2021: HK$2,239,727,000), approximately
HK$156,000,000 of which were guaranteed. The Relevant
Loan Receivables had a fixed term of 2 months to 2 years,
with interest rates being charged at between 4.75% per
annum to 20% per annum.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT £E#H%&E

GRANT OF LOANS (Continued)
Loan receivables (Continued)

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had 47 corporate
borrowers whose loans remained outstanding; and the
Group’s gross loan receivables amounted to approximately
HK$2,395,699,000 (31 December 2021: HK$2,251,769,000),
out of which approximately HK$223,964,000 (representing
approximately 9.4% of the total gross loan receivables of the
Group) was due from the largest borrower of the Group and
approximately HK$582,764,000 (representing approximately
24.3% of the total gross loan receivables of the Group) was
due from the five largest borrowers of the Group. All of the
borrowers of the loans are independent of the Company and
its connected persons (as defined in Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules).

An ageing analysis of the Group’s loan receivables (net of
loss allowance for the loan receivables) based on the initial
loan commencement dates as set out in the relevant loan
agreements is as follows:
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EwERE)
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2022 2021

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FET

Within one year —FR 1,303,898 1,837,024
After one year but within two years —FEMFR 585,244 242,694
After two years but within five years MEERAFNR 357,235 160,009
2,246,377 2,239,727
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT &

GRANT OF LOANS (Continued)
Loan receivables (Continued)

An ageing analysis of the Group’s loan receivables (net of
loss allowance for the loan receivables) based on the loan
maturity dates as set out in the relevant loan agreements is
as follows:

REERGE)
EwERE)
RHEBERARMBERIMAMBRR A

SEREER(NREREREREE) 2K
T EINT

2022 2021

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET

Not yet past due i) A 481 A - 1,618,836
Past due: B Ef -

0 - 90 days 0 - 90H 284,773 244,312

91 - 180 days 91 - 180H 369,678 376,579

181 — 365 days 181 - 365H 1,153,312 -

Over 365 days HBi@E365H 438,614 -

2,246,377 2,239,727

Out of the Relevant Loan Receivables which the repayment
dates had expired, including those which the repayment
dates had expired for more than one year, approximately
67.3% of them were due to be repaid by the borrowers in or
after June 2022. The financial performance and conditions of
the relevant borrowers, and in turn their ability to repay the
Relevant Loan Receivables, had been adversely affected by
the COVID-19 pandemic.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT £E#H%&E

GRANT OF LOANS (Continued)
Loan receivables (Continued)

During the second half of 2022, China experienced
the resurgence of the pandemic, leading the Chinese
government to impose further travel restrictions in certain
major cities, such as Shenzhen, Guangzhou, Shanghai
and Beijing, as well as tight testing and quarantine rules
and strict measures controlling traffic in buildings, housing
estates and communities or closing them down even so
as to control the spread of the highly contagious Omicron
variant. Both the business activities and the operations of
the Group in China had been disrupted by the pandemic.
The Guangzhou and Beijing offices of the Group had limited
staff support at the relevant time. Apart from the employees
of the Group in its Guangzhou and Beijing offices who had
been infected with COVID-19, the employees who remained
healthy or who were in close contact with persons tested
positive for COVID-19 had to work from home due to the
strict quarantine regulations and travel restrictions that
limited their mobility and prevented them from going to the
office, which had further undermined the manpower support
of the Group. While the employees of the Group had to work
from home, it would be difficult for them to take actions
against the relevant borrowers without full access to the files
containing information of the relevant borrowers and their
loans, apart from calling or sending messages to the relevant
borrowers to demand for repayment.

The Group had also sought legal advice on the possibility of
taking legal actions against the relevant borrowers. However,
the Group was advised by its legal adviser that certain
courts in China had suspended or only provided limited
services due to the outbreaks of the pandemic, which would
lengthen the process and increase the costs required for the
Group to recover the Relevant Loan Receivables. In view
of the above, it was not administratively practicable for the
Group to commence legal proceedings against the relevant
borrowers and thus the Group decided not to take any legal
actions against the relevant borrowers until the severity of
the pandemic had lessened.

Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT &

GRANT OF LOANS (Continued)
Loan receivables (Continued)

In early 2023, the operations in the offices of the Group in
China gradually resumed to their pre-pandemic level after
the Chinese government removed the COVID-19 related
prevention and control measures and the employees of the
Group returned to their office to work following the Chinese
New Year holidays. As the business community (including the
business partners of the Group) started to recover from the
disruption caused by the pandemic, the Group commenced
its process of recovering the Relevant Loan Receivables
by sending demand letters to the relevant borrowers, who
indicated to the Group that they were unable to repay the
loans on the original maturity dates as they, their businesses
and/or the projects in which they had invested had been
adversely affected by the pandemic. They proposed to the
Group that they would settle the outstanding amounts by
instalments (except for the borrowers of two loans) and
requested the Group not to take legal action against them.
Following the above actions taken by the Group, certain
borrowers have settled their Relevant Loan Receivables.
Taking into consideration the time and costs required to
recover the Relevant Loan Receivables through legal actions
and the financial conditions of the relevant borrowers, the
Group considered that the repayment plans proposed by
the relevant borrowers would be a better option in terms of
the interest of the Group and no legal action has been taken
by the Group. The Group will continue to closely monitor
the status of the settlement of these loans so that the
appropriate actions can be taken when required.

The Group has not entered into any agreement with the
relevant borrowers in respect of the repayment proposals
mentioned above, to the extent that the Group could reserve
its right to take legal action against the relevant borrowers at
any time.

After 31 December 2022 and up to the date of this annual
report, approximately HK$265,832,000 of the Relevant Loan
Receivables have been subsequently settled.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT £E#H%&E

GRANT OF LOANS (Continued)
Impairment loss

The Group recorded a provision for impairment loss on loan
receivables of approximately HK$137,748,000 (Year 2021:
reversal of impairment loss of HK$2,808,000) for Year 2022
under the expected credit loss (“ECL”) model in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standard (“HKFRS”) 9
Financial Instruments.

The measurement of ECL under HKFRS 9 for the Group’s
loan receivables requires judgement on, in particular, the
estimation of the amount and timing of future cash flows
when determining impairment losses and the assessment
of any significant increase in credit risk. These estimates
are driven by a number of factors, where the change of
the factors which result in different levels of allowances, a
lower/higher impairment loss may arise. The Group uses
its credit loss experience, repayment history and financial
position of the Group’s debtors and their guarantors (if
any) and an assessment of both the current and forecast
general economic conditions to estimate the probability
of default (based on 1-year probability of default sourced
from Moody’s average cumulative issuer-weighted global
default rates), the loss given default (calculated from 1-year
recovery rate sourced from Moody’s) and the impact on the
forward-looking information (including the historical analysis
and identified the key economic variables, like the GDP of
China and the credit default spread of China’s sovereign
bond and annual credit loss rate sourced from Moody’s). On
each reporting date, the Group assesses whether there has
been a significant increase in credit risk for exposures since
initial recognition by comparing the risk of default occurring
over the expected life between the reporting date and the
date of initial recognition. The Group considers reasonable,
supportable and available information that is relevant and
available without undue cost or effort for this purpose. This
includes quantitative and qualitative information and also
forward-looking analysis.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT &

GRANT OF LOANS (Continued)
Impairment loss (Continued)

The Group categorises the credit quality of its loan
receivables according to 3 different stages under the ECL
model:

Stage 1: financial instruments for which credit risk has not
increased significantly since initial recognition and for which
the loss allowance is measured at an amount equal to
12-month ECLs;

Stage 2: financial instruments for which credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition but that are
not credit-impaired financial assets and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs;
and

Stage 3: financial assets that are credit-impaired at the
reporting date (but that are not purchased or originated
credit-impaired) and for which the loss allowance is
measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs.

The resurgence of the COVID-19 pandemic in Year 2022 had
further undermined the financial conditions of the borrowers
of the Group, giving rise to an increase in the amount of the
Group’s overdue loan receivables during Year 2022. In light
of such deterioration in the credit quality of the Group’s loan
receivables, the amount of loan receivables the credit quality
of which had been categorised into stage 2 and stage 3
under the ECL model had grown in Year 2022, resulting
in the Group recording an impairment for ECL on its loan
receivables of approximately HK$137,748,000 for Year
2022, as compared with the reversal of impairment loss of
approximately HK$2,808,000 recorded for Year 2021. Details
of the impairment assessment of the loan receivables of the
Group are set out in Notes 20 and 38 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT £E#H%&E

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2022, the Group pledged certain
investment properties and leasehold land and buildings
with aggregate carrying values of approximately
HK$2,251,652,000 (31 December 2021: HK$2,650,502,000)
and HK$176,300,000 (31 December 2021: HK$198,500,000)
respectively to secure general banking facilities granted
to the Group and other payable due to an independent
third party. At 31 December 2022, no bank deposits (31
December 2021: HK$24,450,000) were pledged by the
Group to banks to secure banking facilities granted to a
joint venture of the Company. As at 31 December 2022, the
Group pledged certain receivables (mainly the loans granted
by the Group to its joint venture and independent third
parties) of approximately HK$3,285,685,000 (31 December
2021: Nil) and the equity interests in the subsidiaries and
associates of the Company holding receivables of the Group
(31 December 2021: Nil) to secure the convertible bonds
issued by the Company.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

The Group’s capital expenditures in 2023 are expected
to be settled by cash through internal resources of the
Group. As at 31 December 2022, the Group had capital
expenditures contracted for but not provided for in respect
of the purchase of unlisted equity securities of approximately
HK$167,973,000 (31 December 2021: HK$183,374,000).
Other than as disclosed, the management of the Group does
not expect there to be any plans for material investments or
capital assets in 2023 with reference to the current situation
as at the date of this annual report.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2022, the Group provided corporate
guarantees of approximately HK$3,576,622,000 (31
December 2021: HK$3,841,990,000) in respect of loans
granted to a joint venture of the Company.

Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT &

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

As at 31 December 2022, the shareholders’ funds of the
Group decreased by approximately HK$1,208,947,000 to
approximately HK$4,022,397,000 (31 December 2021:
HK$5,231,344,000), representing a decline of approximately
23.1%. The decrease was mainly due to (i) the loss
attributable to the owners of the Company in Year 2022; and
(i) the increase in the exchange loss on foreign exchange
translation and the revaluation loss of leasehold properties in
Year 2022.

HUMAN RESOURCES

The Group had in aggregate 66 employees in Hong Kong
and the PRC as at 31 December 2022 (31 December
2021: 84). The Group’s overall staff costs amounted
to approximately HK$66,933,000 for Year 2022 (Year
2021: HK$76,641,000). The employees of the Group are
remunerated according to their respective job nature, market
conditions, individual performance and qualifications. Other
staff benefits include annual bonus and retirement benefits.
The Directors’ remuneration is determined based on their
qualifications, experience, duties and responsibilities, the
Company’s remuneration policy and the prevailing market
conditions.

The Group encourages sustainable training of its employees
through coaching and further studies. In-house training was
provided to eligible employees during Year 2022, including
training on updates of accounting standards and market
updates.

The Group has not experienced any significant problem
with its employees or disruption to its operations due to
labour discipline nor has it experienced any difficulty in the
recruitment and retention of experienced staff. The Group
has maintained a good relationship with its employees.
Certain senior management and staff have been working for
the Group for many years.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT £E#H%&E

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Company aims to maximise the interests of its
shareholders of the Company (“Shareholders”) and at the
same time maintaining a strong and healthy financial position,
S0 as to prepare the Group for investment opportunities that
may arise from time to time and its sustainable development
in the future. In deciding whether to propose a dividend
and in determining the dividend amount, the Board will take
into account the Group’s earnings performance, financial
position, investment requirements and future prospects. In
addition, the Board will also take into account any restrictive
covenants imposed by banks and other funding facilities
granted to the Group from time to time and any other factors
the Board may deem appropriate and/or relevant.

The Board has resolved not to recommend the payment of a
final dividend for Year 2022 (Year 2021: Nil).

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of its directors, during
Year 2022 and up to the date of this annual report, the
Company has maintained sufficient public float of not less
than 25% of the Company’s issued shares (“Shares”) as
required under the Rules (“Listing Rules”) Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (“Stock Exchange”).

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE

The Company adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”)
as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules then in force
as its own code of conduct regarding Directors’ securities
transactions in Year 2022. All Directors have confirmed that,
following specific enquiry by the Company, they complied
with the required standards set out in the Model Code
throughout Year 2022.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT &

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

During Year 2022, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company’s listed securities.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my
appreciation and gratitude to those resigned directors for
their contribution and service to the Group during their
tenure and give my warmest welcome to those newly
appointed directors for joining the Group. Moreover, |
would like to express my appreciation and gratitude to the
Shareholders for their support and all the Group’s employees
for their hard work and dedication in carrying out their duties
and in achieving the Group’s business goals.

On behalf of the Board of
Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited

Chu Hing Tsung
Chairman, Co-Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director

Hong Kong, 30 March 2023
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS EEf/)

Executive Directors

Chu Hing Tsung (alias Zhu Qing Yi) (Chairman and Co-
Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. Chu, aged 53, was appointed as a non-executive
Director and the chairman of the Board (“Chairman”) on
29 January 2019. He has been re-designated from a non-
executive Director to an executive Director and appointed
as the chief executive officer (“Chief Executive Officer”) of
the Company and one of the authorised representatives
of the Company under Rule 3.05 of the Listing Rules with
effect from 1 August 2021. Mr. Chu has been re-designated
from the Chief Executive Officer to a co-chief executive
officer (“Co-Chief Executive Officer”) of the Company with
effect from 13 May 2022. He is also the chairman of the
nomination committee of the Company. Mr. Chu is the
chairman and an executive director of Zhuguang Holdings
Group Company Limited (“Zhuguang Holdings”), a company
the shares of which are listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange (Stock code: 1176), which is a substantial
Shareholder (within the meaning of the Listing Rules) whose
interest in the Shares falls to be disclosed to the Company
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the
Laws of Hong Kong) (“SFO”). Mr. Chu has over 20 years of
extensive experience in corporate management and property
development in the PRC.

Chen Yongcun (Co-Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. Chen, aged 57, was an executive Director during the
period from 25 October 2000 to 27 February 2008, and he
re-joined the Company on 1 May 2016. Mr. Chen has been
appointed as a Co-Chief Executive Officer and an executive
Director with effect from 13 May 2022 and 16 September
2022, respectively. He has also been appointed as the legal
representative, director and general manager of East Gate
(Beijing) Property Management Co., Ltd., a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company. He is responsible for the Group’s
property development and investments in Mainland China.
Mr. Chen previously worked at China Construction Bank and
China Cinda Asset Management Co., Ltd. (“China Cinda”), a
company the shares of which are listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange (Stock codes: 01359 and 04621
(Preference Shares)), which is a substantial Shareholder
(within the meaning of the Listing Rules) whose interest
in the Shares falls to be disclosed to the Company under
the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO.
He graduated from Tsinghua University with a bachelor’s
degree in engineering and a master’s degree in business
management. He has over 20 years of experience in finance
and investment.

Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited
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Executive Directors (Continued)
Luo Zhihai

Mr. Luo, aged 60, was appointed as an executive
Director on 29 January 2019. He is a member of the
remuneration committee of the Company. Prior to joining
the Company, Mr. Luo worked in China Construction Bank,
Huajian International (Macau) Co., Ltd., China Cinda and
Guangdong Yuecai Asset Management Co., Ltd.. He has
served successively as the head of Xiaohuayuan Office of
Meixian Sub-branch of China Construction Bank, deputy
general manager of the international business department
of Meizhou Branch of China Construction Bank, general
manager of the international business department of Zhuhai
Branch of China Construction Bank, managing director of
Huajian International (Macau) Co., Ltd., the head of the
entity department, the investment banking department, the
marketing department and the business department of China
Cinda Guangzhou Office and deputy managing director of
Guangdong Yuecai Asset Management Co., Ltd.. Mr. Luo
received his bachelor’s degree in engineering from South
China University of Technology in 1983. He has accumulated
more than 30 years of experiences in banking, investment
banking, real estate investment and non-performing financial
assets, especially with extensive practical experiences in the
assets management industry. Meanwhile, Mr. Luo has a high
reputation in the PRC’s local assets management industry.
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Executive Directors (Continued)
Tang Lunfei

Mr. Tang, aged 45, was appointed as an executive Director
on 11 January 2021. He obtained his Bachelor of Economics
from the Chongging Institute of Technology of the PRC in
June 2000 and his Master of National Economics from the
Sichuan University of the PRC in June 2003. Mr. Tang has
over 16 years of experience in the financial industry. He
joined China Cinda Asset Management Corporation (currently
known as China Cinda Asset Management Co., Ltd., i.e.
China Cinda), as the business manager of its Chengdu
office from July 2003 to April 2005. Subsequently, he
worked at the Financial Stability Bureau of The People’s
Bank of China from May 2005 to June 2006, where he was
responsible for resolving the risks associated with securities
companies. Mr. Tang then joined Cinda Securities Company
Limited from June 2006 to June 2012 with his last position
as the business director. From June 2012 to July 2019, he
worked at China Cinda with his last position as the chief
and specialised approver of various departments of the
company. Since July 2019, Mr. Tang has been serving as
the chief risk and compliance officer of China Cinda (HK)
Holdings Company Limited (“Cinda HK”), which is a wholly-
owned subsidiary of China Cinda. Both China Cinda and
Cinda HK are substantial Shareholders (within the meaning
of the Listing Rules) whose interests in the Shares fall to be
disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO. Mr. Tang has been appointed as (i)
an executive director of Zhongchang International Holdings
Group Limited (“Zhongchang”), a company the shares of
which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
(Stock code: 859) with effect from 13 May 2020; and (i) a
non-executive director of Modern Land (China) Co., Limited,
a company the shares of which are listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange (Stock code: 1107) (“Modern Land”)
with effect from 24 March 2022.

Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited
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Executive Directors (Continued)
Wang Ping

Mr. Wang, aged 66, has been appointed as an executive
Director with effect from 1 August 2021. He was the
executive president of the Company from September 2019
to April 2022 and was responsible for the management
of various departments of the Group, including the risk
management department and the legal department. Mr.
Wang previously worked in JTFAEIAE KE: (Jiangxi Financial
University*) as a deputy professor, a mentor of postgraduate
in master degree, a deputy officer of the finance faculty,
and a director of the graduate school, etc. Since the
mid-1990s, Mr. Wang had held various positions in the
Guangdong Province Branch of China Construction Bank,
such as department head, general manager of various
departments including the finance department and the audit
department and manager of second tier branch. Mr. Wang
has edited more than 10 professional academic books and
has published over 20 professional papers. He hosted and
participated in the projects supported by the National Social
Science Fund of China. He had solid experience in finance,
accounting, economic theory, commercial bank operations
and risk management. Mr. Wang is now the executive vice-
chairman of the Guangdong Venture Capital and Private
Equity Association, the vice-chairman of the Guangdong
Association of Management Accountants and the external
tutor of various renowned academic institutions, including
the Sun Yat-sen University, the Jinan University and the
Guangdong University of Finance and Economics.

* English name is translated for identification purpose only
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Non-executive Director
Chen Zhiwei

Mr. Chen, aged 38, was appointed as a non-executive
Director on 29 January 2019. Mr. Chen is the chairman
and an executive director of Zhongchang. Mr. Chen is
the assistant general manager and managing director of
the investment department of Cinda HK, responsible for
managing Cinda HK’s investment and financing businesses.
Cinda HK is a substantial Shareholder (within the meaning
of the Listing Rules), whose interest in the Shares falls to be
disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions
2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO. Mr. Chen graduated from
Tsinghua University with a bachelor’'s degree in economics
in 2004. He then graduated from the National University
of Singapore with a master’'s degree in science (estate
management) in 2009. Mr. Chen was the executive assistant
to the chairman of TIG Group in Singapore between 2007
and 2010, responsible for TIG Group’s private equity
investment business in the Greater China region. Between
2005 and 2007, Mr. Chen was a research scholar at the
National University of Singapore. Mr. Chen has over 15
years of investment and research experience in the finance
industry. From 30 December 2016 to 23 March 2022,
Mr. Chen was a non-executive director of Modern Land.
From 17 April 2018 to 11 November 2022, Mr. Chen was
a non-executive director of China Fortune Financial Group
Limited (now named as GoFintech Innovation Limited) (“China
Fortune”), a company the shares of which are listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange (Stock code: 290). From
13 April 2018 to 5 December 2022, Mr. Chen was a non-
executive director of SouthGobi Resources Ltd. (“SouthGobi”),
a company the shares of which are listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange (Stock code: 1878).

Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Zhang Lu

Mr. Zhang, aged 70, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 4 May 2000. He is also the
chairman of the remuneration committee of the Company
and a member of the audit committee and the nomination
committee of the Company. Mr. Zhang graduated from the
Sichuan International Studies University in 1979. He was the
General Manager of CITIC Central Tanshi Money Brokering
Company Limited, which is a joint venture of CITIC Trust
Co., Ltd. engaged in the money brokering business for
financial institutions. From 1987 to 2000, Mr. Zhang was the
executive vice president and treasurer of CITIC Ka Wah Bank
Limited, responsible for both the Treasury and International
Business. From 1974 to 1987, he worked for Bank of China
and CITIC Industrial Bank. Mr. Zhang has engaged in the
banking sector for over 35 years.

Liang Qing

Mr. Liang, aged 69, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 28 February 2014. He is also
a member of the audit committee and the remuneration
committee of the Company. Mr. Liang is also currently an
executive director and an independent non-executive director
of Jiangxi Copper Company Limited (“Jiangxi Copper”) (Stock
code: 358) and Sinotruk (Hong Kong) Limited (“Sinotruk”)
(Stock code: 3808) respectively. The H shares of Jiangxi
Copper and Sinotruk are listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange. Mr. Liang graduated from the Beijing Open
University (formerly known as Beijing Radio and Television
University) in 1985, where he studied the Chinese language
and literature. Mr. Liang was a director and the general
manager of China Minmetal H.K. (Holdings) Limited and
has now retired. Mr. Liang has abundant experience in
international trading and investment.
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Independent Non-executive Directors (Continued)

Hung Muk Ming

Mr. Hung, aged 58, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on 23 December 2004. He is also the
chairman of the audit committee of the Company and a
member of the nomination committee of the Company.
Mr. Hung is a Certified Public Accountant (Practicing) and
is a Fellow CPA of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. He is also a fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, an associate
of The Hong Kong Chartered Governance Institute and
The Chartered Governance Institute. Mr. Hung received his
bachelor’s degree in social sciences from the University of
Hong Kong in 1990, and a master’s degree in corporate
governance from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University
in 2008. Mr. Hung has over 25 years of experience in the
accounting and audit sector. Mr. Hung was an independent
non-executive director of Century Sage Scientific Holdings
Limited, a company the shares of which are listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange (Stock code: 1450), from
13 June 2014 to 28 September 2021. Mr. Hung was an
independent non-executive director of Cinda International
Holdings Limited (“Cinda International”), a company the
shares of which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange (Stock code: 111) from 2 December 2008 to 30
November 2022. Mr. Hung is also an independent non-
executive director of CA Cultural Technology Group Limited
(formerly known as China Animation Characters Company
Limited) (Stock code: 1566) and IBO Technology Company
Limited (Stock code: 2708), both being companies the
shares of which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange.

Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited
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Ng Hoi Leung, Leo

Mr. Ng, aged 49, has been appointed as the chief
financial officer, the company secretary and an authorised
representative of the Company with effect from 17 July
2019. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Ng was the
financial controller of Ping An Securities Group (Holdings)
Limited (Stock code: 0231), and the financial controller
and the company secretary of Zhuguang Holdings, which
is a substantial Shareholder (within the meaning of the
Listing Rules) and whose interest in the Shares falls to be
disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions
2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, both being companies the
shares of which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange. He was also the chief financial officer of a real
estate company and a company whose subsidiary was
engaged in the media business in the PRC. Mr. Ng has
over 15 years of accounting and audit experience. He had
worked in PricewaterhouseCoopers, an accounting firm
from February 1997 to April 2010. Mr. Ng holds a Master of
Commerce from the Macquarie University in Australia and
is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and a member of the Certified Practising
Accountants of Australia.
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Weng Jian

Mr. Weng, aged 40, has been appointed as the assistant
president and the executive president of the Company since
June 2020 and August 2021, respectively. He is responsible
for human resources, administrative management and
investment departments of the Group. He graduated from
Sun Yat-sen University with a bachelor’s degree in law
and a master’s degree in law. He previously worked in the
Guangdong Provincial Supervisory Commission and the
Office of the Guangdong Provincial Government, where he
was engaged in the management of anti-corruption, legal
policy and comprehensive administration. After resigning
from public office, Mr. Weng joined Zhuguang Holdings,
which is a substantial Shareholder (within the meaning of
the Listing Rules) whose interest in the Shares falls to be
disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions
2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, and successively served
as the general manager of its President Office (Human
Resources Centre), the general manager of its Legal Affairs
Centre, a member of its Investment Decision Committee,
general manager of its Investment Centre and the chairman
of its industrial real estate sector. He is also a member of
the Guangdong Youth Federation, a standing member of
the Guangdong Law Society, a deputy director of the Legal
Committee of the Guangdong Province Old Town Old Factory
Old Village Recreation Association, a practical instructor for
postgraduates of the Jinan University and an arbitrator of the
Guangzhou Arbitration Commission.

Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited
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Zhang Wenguang

Mr. Zhang, aged 54, has been appointed as an executive
president of the Company with effect from 27 September
2021. He is currently the chairman of ZMEHRALER D
A} (Tai Zhou Dong Thai Petrochemical Company Limited*),
a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, in charge
of the petrochemical investment business of the Group. He
graduated from the Jiaying University in foreign language and
was a graduate student majoring in economic management
in the Party School of the Guangdong Provincial Committee.
He was successively appointed as the director of the Beijing
Office of the Meizhou Municipal Government, the chief of the
Economic and Trade Bureau of Meizhou, the chairman of &
NSRRI E QT (Meizhou Qi Xin Guarantee Investment
Company®), the county mayor of the Meixian People’s
Government, the secretary of the Meixian County Committee
of the Communist Party of China (“CPC”), the assistant
general manager of the Projection and Planning Department
of China National Offshore Qil Corporation, a member of the
Standing Committee of the Meizhou Municipal Committee
and the head of the United Front Work Department of the
Meizhou Municipal Committee of the CPC, a member of the
Party Leadership Group of the Meizhou Municipal Committee
of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference.

* English name is translated for identification purpose only
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE BiE - 2R EA

The Group is committed to the long-term sustainability of
its businesses and the communities with which it engages.
The Group pursues this business approach by managing its
business prudently and executing management decisions
with due care and attention.

Stakeholder Engagement

The Group has maintained a continuous dialogue with
its stakeholders that include its customers, employees,
regulators and the public. The Group seeks to balance the
views and interests of these various stakeholders through
constructive conversations with a view to charting a course
for the long-term prosperity of the Group and the communities.

Customers

Customer feedback plays an important role in the operation
of the Group. Various channels, such as telephone hotlines
and customer service front desks, have been established to
maintain interactive communications between the Group and
its customers.

Employees

Hard-working and dedicated employees are the backbone
of a company. The Group treasures its loyal and industrious
staff members. In addition, it has adopted non-discriminatory
hiring and employment practices and it strives to provide a
safe and healthy workplace for its employees.

Government & Public

Tough efforts have been exerted to ensure compliance with
the laws and regulations of the jurisdictions in which the
Group operates. The public at large is also an important
stakeholder of the Group. A stable and prosperous
community is important to the steady growth and long-term
future prospects of the Group.

Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited
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ENVIRONMENTAL-SOCIAL AND"GOVERNANCE BiE - gt 2K B4

Workplace Quality

As at 31 December 2022, the Group employed 66 staff
members (31 December 2021: 84). Total employee costs for
Year 2022, including Directors’ emoluments, amounted to
approximately HK$66,933,000 (Year 2021: HK$76,641,000).

The quality of its employees is crucial for the Group to
maintain a competitive position in the market. With this
in mind, the Group seeks to attract and retain talented
individuals who are committed to achieving goals and
objectives of the Group and provides a work environment
that nurtures values such as fair play, respect and integrity.
The Group values career development of its staff and
provides ongoing training to them according to the needs
of the Group. The Group offers competitive compensation
packages to its employees, who are rewarded according to
their performance. The Group reviews its salary structure,
working conditions, bonuses and incentive systems annually.

The Group’s employees are entitled to benefits such as
medical cover, provident funds and share options scheme.
The Group is committed to providing a healthy and safe
workplace for all its employees and complying with all
applicable health and safety laws and regulations. Health
and safety considerations are incorporated into the design,
operations and maintenance of the premises of the Group.
Employees are provided with appropriate job skills and safety
training and are educated with regard to their responsibilities
for achieving the health and safety objectives of the Group.
The Group also communicates with its employees on
occupational health and safety issues.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE BiE - 2R EA

Environmental Protection

The Group recognises the importance of maintaining
environmental sustainability in its daily operations and acts
in all material respects in compliance with the laws and
regulations relating to environmental protection and pollution
control. Energy saving measures are enforced in the Group’s
offices and commercial premises for the purpose of reducing
electricity consumption and greenhouse gas emissions.

The Group has also adopted policies to promote recycling
and use of eco-friendly stationery, plus a series of measures
to save paper and energy, including the use of double-
sided printing and energy-efficient office equipment and
appliances, resulting in more efficient use of resources, as
well as reduction of waste.

Operating Practices

The Group is committed to adhering to the highest ethical
standards. All employees are given a code of conduct (“Code”)
to which they are required to adhere. The Code explicitly
prohibits employees from soliciting, accepting or offering
bribes or any form of advantage. The Code also outlines
the Group’s expectations on its staff with regard to conflicts
of interest. All managers are expected to communicate and
instill a culture of good corporate governance to their staff.

ESG Report

The Company engaged external professionals to review the
environmental, social and governance (“ESG”) policies of
the Group for Year 2022 and issue an ESG report for Year
2022 (“2022 ESG Report”) for the Board’s consideration.
The Company publishes the 2022 ESG Report on the
“ESG Reports” section of the website of the Company at
www.silvergrant.com.cn and the website of the Stock
Exchange at www.hkexnews.hk when it publishes this report.
No hardcopy of the 2022 ESG Report will be provided to the
Shareholders unless specific request has been made by the
Shareholders.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT-db 3

Corporate Governance Practices

The Company is committed to establishing and maintaining
a standard of corporate governance that is consistent
with market practices. The Company complied with all the
principles and applicable code provisions set out in the
Corporate Governance Code (“CG Code”) contained in
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules then in force throughout
Year 2022, except for the deviations specified below.

Code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code stipulates that the
roles of chairman and chief executive should be separate
and should not be the same individual. During the year under
review, the Company did not have a separate chairman
and chief executive officer. Mr. Chu Hing Tsung assumed
the roles of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer
during the period from 1 January 2022 to 12 May 2022 and
those of the Chairman and a Co-Chief Executive Officer
during the period from 13 May 2022 up to the date of this
annual report. The Board believes that vesting both the
roles of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer/Co-
Chief Executive Officer in the same person has the benefit of
ensuring consistent leadership within the Group and enables
more effective and efficient overall strategic planning for the
Group. The Board considers that the balance of power and
authority for the present arrangement will not be impaired
and this structure will enable the Company to make and
implement decisions efficiently.

Code Provision F.2.2 of the CG Code stipulates that the
chairman of the board should attend the annual general
meeting of the company. Mr. Chu Hing Tsung, the Chairman,
was out of town and was therefore unable to attend the
annual general meeting of the Company held on 22 June
2022. The Chairman will endeavour to attend all future
annual general meetings of the Company unless unexpected
or special circumstances prevent him from doing so.

The Board will continue to monitor and review the Group’s
corporate governance practices to ensure compliance.

The following summarises the Company’s key corporate
governance practices.
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Board of Directors
Board Composition

The Board is responsible for formulating the Group’s long-
term strategies, setting business development goals,
assessing the results of management policies, monitoring
management’s performance and ensuring the existence of
an effective internal control system. The Board is led by the
Chairman. The Chairman, with the support of the company
secretary (“Company Secretary”) of the Company, is
responsible for ensuring that the Directors receive adequate
and complete information in a timely manner and appropriate
briefing on issues arising at the Board meetings and that all
key and appropriate issues are discussed by the Board in a
timely manner.

The management, led by the Co-Chief Executive Officers,
focuses on implementing objectives, policies and strategies
approved and delegated by the Board. In addition to the
Group’s day-to-day management and operations, the Co-
Chief Executive Officers are also jointly responsible for
developing strategic plans and formulating the organisational
structure, control systems, internal procedures and
processes for the Board’s approval.

The independent non-executive Directors serve the important
function of ensuring and monitoring the basis of an effective
corporate governance framework of the Group.

As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprises
five executive Directors, namely, Mr. Chu Hing Tsung (the
Chairman, who has been re-designated from the Chief
Executive Officer to a Co-Chief Executive Officer with effect
from 13 May 2022), Mr. Chen Yongcun (appointed as a Co-
Chief Executive Officer and an executive Director with effect
from 13 May 2022 and 16 September 2022, respectively),
Mr. Luo Zhihai, Mr. Tang Lunfei and Mr. Wang Ping, one
non-executive Director, namely, Mr. Chen Zhiwei, and three
independent non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Liang
Qing, Mr. Zhang Lu and Mr. Hung Muk Ming.

The biographies of the Directors are set out on pages 34
to 40 of this annual report. The number of the independent
non-executive Directors represents no less than one-third of
the Board members.

All members of the Board possess the appropriate expertise
and skills to discharge their duties.
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Board of Directors (Continued)
Board Composition (Continued)

The Company’s Directors, Mr. Tang Lunfei and Mr. Chen
Zhiwei are also directors and/or senior officers of Cinda
HK. Mr. Chu Hing Tsung, the Chairman and the Co-Chief
Executive Officer, is also a director and a shareholder of
Zhuguang Holdings. Cinda HK and Zhuguang Holdings are
substantial Shareholders (within the meaning of the Listing
Rules). Save for the aforesaid, there is no relationship
between the members of the Board, in terms of financial,
business, family or other material/relevant relationship.

To assist the Board in discharging its duties and to fulfil
the requirements of the CG Code, three standing Board
committees have been set up under the Board: the audit
committee, the remuneration committee and the nomination
committee. The Board will set up an ad hoc Board
committee as and when necessary to handle specific issues
and report back to the Board.

To ensure independent views and input are available to
the Board, the Company is required to have at least three
independent non-executive Directors. In addition, it has
adopted a policy (“Independent Views Policy”) with effect
from 1 January 2022, under which the independent non-
executive Directors are required to, among others, (i) keep
up-to-date with the Company’s business affairs and be
involved in scrutinising the Company’s performance in
achieving agreed corporate goals and objectives; (i) bring
independent judgment to bear on the Company’s issues of
strategy, policy, performance, accountability, resources, key
appointments and standards of conduct, help review some of
the Board’s major decisions and the Company’s performance
in relation to corporate goals, and monitor the Company’s
performance reporting; and (iii) take the lead where potential
conflicts of interest arise. Further, the independent non-
executive Directors shall make sufficient time available to
discharge their responsibilities and should not accept an
invitation to serve as an independent non-executive Director
on the Board unless they can devote adequate time and
effort to the work involved. Independent non-executive
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Board of Directors (Continued)
Board Composition (Continued)

Directors sitting on multiple boards of directors of listed
companies will need to ensure that they devote sufficient
time and dedicate adequate attention to each board and
board committee.

The Company provides the independent non-executive
Directors with both formal means of communication,
including board meetings, and informal communication
channels which allow independent non-executive Directors
to express their views, such as meetings with the Chairman
without the presence of other Directors at least annually.
Further, to assist all the Directors (including the independent
non-executive Directors) to discharge their duties, the
Company provides the Directors with access to advice from
external independent professionals, including independent
legal advisors and auditors.

The Company is required to review the Independent Views
Policy and its implementation and effectiveness on an annual
basis.

The Board considers that each independent non-executive
Director is independent in character and judgment and meets
the specific independence criteria as required by the Listing
Rules. The Company has received from each independent
non-executive Director an annual confirmation confirming his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

All Directors are regularly updated on governance and
regulatory matters. There are established procedures for
Directors to obtain independent professional advice, at the
expense of the Company, in the furtherance of their duties.

Should a potential conflict of interest involving a substantial
Shareholder (within the meaning of the Listing Rules) or a
Director arise, the matter will be discussed in a physical
Board meeting, as opposed to being dealt with by a written
resolution. Independent non-executive Directors with no
conflict of interest will be present at Board meetings dealing
with such conflict issues.
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Board of Directors (Continued)
Board Composition (Continued)

Independent non-executive Directors are explicitly identified
in all corporate communications containing the names of
the Directors. An updated list of Directors identifying the
independent non-executive Directors and the roles and the
functions of the Directors is maintained on the website of the
Company at www.silvergrant.com.cn and the website of the
Stock Exchange.

Each of the Directors has been appointed for a specific
term of service no longer than three years. Each of the non-
executive Directors has been appointed for a specific term of
service of three years from 29 January 2022 to 28 January
2025. All the Directors are also subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election at the annual general meeting of the
Company in accordance with article 102 of the Company’s
articles of association (“Articles of Association”).

The full Board will meet regularly and at least four times
throughout a year to review the overall strategy of the
Group and to monitor the operations as well as the financial
performance of the Group. Notice of at least 14 days will
be given to all Directors in respect of full Board meetings
and the Directors can include matters for discussion in the
agenda if necessary. Agenda and the accompanying Board
papers in respect of a full Board meeting are sent out in full
to all Directors no less than three days before the meeting.
Minutes of full Board meetings and meetings of board
committees are properly kept. All Directors have access to
relevant and timely information. They also have access to
the advice and services of the Company Secretary, who is
responsible for providing the Directors with Board papers
and related materials. Where queries are raised by the
Directors, prompt and full responses will be given if possible.
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Board of Directors (Continued) BExg9(#)

Board Composition (Continued) EEgARE)

During Year 2022, twelve Board meetings were held and the MR2022%E » HBRA+ZA2BETSH
attendance of each Director is set out below: BUESHHEEREHEINNOT :

Number of meeting

attended/held during the

term of office
EHAHE ~ Attendance rate

Name of Directors EENE BITEBRRE HER
Executive Directors HITEE
Chu Hing Tsung (Chairman and REA(EFF R FITR 6/12 50%
Co-Chief Executive Officer) ®wH)
(redesignated from the Chief (7R2022F 55130
Executive Officer to a Co-Chief TR FEREEIT

Executive Officer with effect from BAREL)
13 May 2022)
Chen Yongcun (appointed as a FRox AT (92 Rl 20224 11 100%
Co-Chief Executive Officer and an 5H13H k20224
executive Director with effect from 9 A 16 B EZ (T Ak fE
13 May 2022 and 16 September ITHRBEHNITES)

2022, respectively) (Note) (Hat)
Luo Zhihai EEE 12/12 100%
Tang Lunfei [ i ¢ 9/12 75%
Wang Ping TF 10/12 83%
Non-executive Director FHITEE
Chen Zhiwei PR 9/12 75%
Independent non-executive BUHEHITEE

Directors
Liang Qing 2E 12/12 100%
Zhang Lu SR 12/12 100%
Hung Muk Ming BERER 12/12 100%
Note: Attendance of the Director appointed during Year 2022 was Hiit: 2022 FERZTEE 2 MFERIVIZEIET

made by reference to the numbers of such meetings held HERITEBREAGTEBE -

during his tenure.
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Board of Directors (Continued)
Board Composition (Continued)

According to the Articles of Association, the Board has the
power to appoint any person as a Director either to fill a
casual vacancy or as an addition to the Board. The Director
so appointed shall hold office until the first annual general
meeting following his appointment and shall then be eligible
for re-election at that meeting. In other cases, all Directors,
including the Chairman and the Co-Chief Executive Officers,
shall retire by rotation at least once every three years at
annual general meetings and be eligible for re-election.

Board Diversity Policy

The Board has adopted the Board diversity policy. The policy
sets out the approach to achieve and maintain diversity
on the Board in order to enhance the effectiveness of the
Board.

The Company considered that diversity of Board members
can be achieved through consideration of a number of
aspects, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, ethnicity, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. All Board
appointments will be based on meritocracy, and candidates
will be considered against objective criteria, having due
regard to the benefits of diversity on the Board.

The Board has developed measurable objectives to
implement the Board diversity policy whereby selection of
candidates will be based on a range of diversity perspectives
as set out above, and the ultimate decision will be based on
merit and contribution that the selected candidate will bring
to the Board.
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Board of Directors (Continued)
Board Diversity Policy (Continued)

In Year 2022, the composition of the Board in terms of the
age, experience and length of service with the Company of
the Directors has fulfilled the objectives of the Board diversity
policy. The nine Directors on the Board come from various
background and they have brought different professional
experience, skills and knowledge to the Company and
contributed to the diversity at the Board. For the biographical
details of the Directors, please refer to pages 34 to 40 of
this annual report. Diversity at the Board supports good
decision making in view of the core businesses and strategy
of the Company and succession planning and development
of the Board, which enables the Board to discharge its
duties and responsibilities effectively. In the future, the
Company will continue to seek to enhance the effectiveness
of its Board by embracing the benefits of diversity in the
Board. All Board appointments will continue to be made on
a merit basis with due regard for the benefits of diversity.
Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background, ethnicity, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service.

During Year 2022 and up to the date of this annual report,
there was no female Director on the Board. The Board has
attempted to identify suitably qualified female candidates
to become members of the Board and with reference
to stakeholders’ expectation and international and local
recommended best practices with the ultimate goal of
bringing the Board to gender parity. In the future, the
Board will continue to pay due regard to the importance of
diversity in identifying potential candidates for directorships
and continue to ensure that gender is one of the factors
to be considered in appointing Directors by the nomination
committee of the Company. The Board targets to recruit one
female Director by 31 December 2024.

The Board also recognises the importance of diversity at the
workforce level. As at 31 December 2022, the gender ratio
of the workforce of the Group (including senior management)
was 53%:47% male to female.
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Board of Directors (Continued) EES(HE)
Board Diversity Policy (Continued) EESSITIBER(E)
An analysis of the diversity of the Board as at 31 December R2022F12 A31 R — AL b #ilE AE
2022 based on a range of diversity perspectives is set out EEE2ESZEXNEZ T/ NEHINIET
below:
9
8
7 Executive
Directors
6 WITES
Number of 5
Directors 4
EE£HA
3
2
1
0
Directorship Directorship
with the with other public
Company companies
Designation Age group (number of (number of
Bz FHerE R years) companies)
EERRE R P2 E A
EEHRE NBEARMES
(FE0 (ARIEAR)
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Board of Directors (Continued)
Nomination Policy

The nomination policy of the Company was approved
and adopted by a resolution of the Board passed on 28
December 2018. It sets out the criteria and procedures to
be adopted when considering candidates to be appointed or
re-appointed as Directors.

Recruitment for the Board is the key role of the nomination
committee of the Company. Nevertheless, the ultimate
responsibilities for the selection and appointment of Directors
rest with the entire Board.

The nomination committee of the Company will select from
a broad range of candidates and as far as feasible consider
those who are outside the Board’s circle of contacts in
accordance with the Company’s Board diversity policy. The
nomination committee of the Company will consider the
potential contribution a candidate can bring to the Board in
terms of qualifications, skills, experience, independence and
gender diversity. It will also consider succession planning for
Directors to ensure the long term success of the Company.

Corporate Governance Committee

The CG Code recommends listed companies to set up a
corporate governance committee to look after issues relating
to the corporate governance of the companies. However, the
Directors consider that it is more appropriate and efficient
for the Company to retain in the Board the function of
overseeing corporate governance issues. The Directors will
continuously review and improve the Company’s and the
Group’s corporate governance practices to ensure that the
business activities and decision-making processes of the
Group are regulated in a proper and prudent manner.
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Board of Directors (Continued)
Corporate Governance Committee (Continued)

During Year 2022 and up to the date of this annual report,
the main corporate governance duties performed by the
Board are set out below:

— developing and reviewing the Company’s policies
and practices on corporate governance and making
recommendations;

— reviewing and monitoring the continuous professional
development and training of the Directors and senior
management of the Company;

—  reviewing the Company’s compliance with the CG Code
and disclosure in the corporate governance report
contained in the Company’s annual report;

— reviewing and monitoring the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements; and

— developing, reviewing and monitoring the Company’s
code of conduct and compliance manual (if any)
applicable to its employees and Directors.

Securities Dealing by Directors

The Company adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers then in force
(“Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing
Rules as its own code of conduct regarding Directors’
securities transactions in Year 2022. All Directors have
confirmed that, following specific enquiry by the Company,
they complied with the required standards set out in the
Model Code throughout Year 2022.

The Company has also adopted codes of conduct regarding
securities transactions by relevant employees (as defined in
the CG Code) on terms no less exacting than the required
standards set out in the Model Code.
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Board of Directors (Continued)
Audit Committee

The Company established an audit committee (“Audit
Committee”) in 1999. The composition and professional
qualifications of the members of the Audit Committee
comply with the requirements under Rule 3.21 of the Listing
Rules. The Audit Committee has written terms of reference
that conform to the provisions of the CG Code. The written
terms of reference are set out in detail on the websites of
the Company and the Stock Exchange.

During Year 2022 and as at the date of this annual report,
the Audit Committee comprises three independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Hung Muk Ming (committee
chairman), Mr. Liang Qing and Mr. Zhang Lu.

The Audit Committee meets at least two times each year
to review the reporting of financial and other information
to the Shareholders, the systems of internal controls and
risk management and the effectiveness and objectivity
of the audit process. The Audit Committee also provides
an important link between the Board and the Company’s
external auditor in matters coming within the scope of its
terms of reference and keeps under review the independence
and objectivity of the external auditor.

During Year 2022, the work performed by the Audit
Committee includes the reviews of the annual results for Year
2021 of the Group, the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group for Year 2021 and the interim results
for the six months ended 30 June 2022 of the Group. The
Group’s audited consolidated annual results for Year 2022
have also been reviewed by the Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee together with the Board have reviewed
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control system,
risk management system and internal audit function and
considered that they are effective and adequate for the time
being.
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Board of Directors (Continued)
Audit Committee (Continued)

During Year 2022, three Audit Committee meetings were
held and the attendance of each member is set out below:

EEE(H®)
BREEE(H)

M2022% 8 - BB HAR=-XE
BB ZHFEEREFEHNT -

=3
%

p=I1rd

Number of
meetings attended/held
during the term of office Attendance rate

Name of Directors BEpnS EHRERE " BITEBRH HE=E
Hung Muk Ming RN 3/3 100%
Liang Qing g 3/3 100%
Zhang Lu SR I 3/3 100%
Remuneration Committee FHEES

The Company established a remuneration committee
(“Remuneration Committee”) in 2005 and adopted written
terms of reference which conform to the provisions of the
CG Code. The written terms of reference are set out in detail
on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.
The Remuneration Committee comprises one executive
Director, namely, Mr. Luo Zhihai, and two independent
non-executive Directors namely, Mr. Zhang Lu (committee
chairman) and Mr. Liang Qing.

The principal duties of the Remuneration Committee are to
ensure that no Director or any of his associates (within the
meaning of the Listing Rules) is involved in deciding his own
remuneration and that the Company has an equitable and
competitive remuneration policy to attract and retain talented
persons to serve the Company. The Board has adopted
the model where the Remuneration Committee performs an
advisory role to the Board (i.e. making recommendations
to the Board on the remunerations packages of individual
Directors and senior management). The Remuneration
Committee is also responsible for making recommendations
to the Board on the Company’s policy and structure for
all Directors’ and senior management’s remuneration and
making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
of the non-executive Directors.
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Board of Directors (Continued)

Remuneration Committee (Continued)

The remuneration package for each employee is structured

according to his quality and qualification. The remuneration

package will contain a combination or modification of some

or all of the following four main components:

1.

Basic salary

The basic salary ranges for each position are
established with reference to the responsibilities and
the duties attached to the position. The actual salary
for the person filling the position is determined based
on the experience and ability of the individual selected
for the position.

The basic salary ranges are reviewed periodically by
reference to the general market and by comparison to
comparable positions at competitors of the Company in
the relevant industry. The actual salaries of employees
are reviewed annually and may be adjusted from time
to time based on the cost of living and the financial
performance of the Company.

Salaries are basic remuneration and are not intended to
reward performance, either individually or corporately.
Performance is rewarded through the other components
of the remuneration package.

Incentive bonus

Incentive bonus is linked to individual and corporate
performance. The incentive bonus for each employee is
determined with reference to his position and performance
during the year.
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Board of Directors (Continued)

Remuneration Committee (Continued)

3.

Share option

Share options to subscribe for Shares are granted to
employees from time to time at the discretion of the
Board in order to retain valuable employees and to
motivate future performance of the employees.

Share options granted to individual employee are
determined with reference to his position, performance
and ability to contribute to the overall success of the
Group.

However, the Group does not have any share option
scheme in force for the time being.

Other benefits

The Group offers other customary and/or mandatory
benefits to employees, such as statutory retirement
scheme, employee compensation, medical insurance,
paid annual leaves and child education allowance,
with reference to the prevailing practices in relevant
jurisdictions.
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Board of Directors (Continued)
Remuneration Committee (Continued)

The Remuneration Committee meets regularly to review
the Company’s human resources matters and remuneration
policies. During Year 2022, two Remuneration Committee
meetings were held and the attendance of each member is
set out below:

Exg(#)
FMEEE(E)

Mz eEHaH
BIREE MFBEE
EeCAMMRER

FET

Number of
meetings
attended/held
during the
term of office

SHRBHMAARRNAN
o A2022F E » HENE
 ZREZHERERE

FHREE Attendance rate
Name of Directors BEHR BITEBRRE HER
Zhang Lu R B 2/2 100%
Liang Qing »E 2/2 100%
Luo Zhihai st 1/2 50%
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Board of Directors (Continued)
Remuneration Committee (Continued)

The Remuneration Committee has reviewed and made
recommendation to the Board on the approval of the
payment of the director’s fees to the Directors for Year 2022
after taking into consideration the results of the Group, the
performance of the Directors, the senior management and
the employees and the prevailing market practices.

Details of the Directors’ emoluments and the five highest
paid employees as required to be disclosed pursuant to
Appendix 16 to the Listing Rules are set out in Notes 8 and
9 to the consolidated financial statements.

Nomination Committee

The Company established a nomination committee
(“Nomination Committee”) on 15 February 2012 and adopted
written terms of reference for the Nomination Committee.
The written terms of reference are set out in detail on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange. During
Year 2022 and as at the date of this annual report, the
Nomination Committee comprises Mr. Chu Hing Tsung
(committee chairman, the Chairman and an executive
Director, who has been redesignated from the Chief
Executive Officer to a Co-Chief Executive Officer with effect
from 13 May 2022), and two independent non-executive
Directors, namely, Mr. Zhang Lu and Mr. Hung Muk Ming.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for all matters
relating to the appointment of Directors either to fill a casual
vacancy or as an addition to the existing Board. Pursuant
to the Articles of Association, any Director appointed to fill a
casual vacancy or as an addition to the existing Board shall
hold office only until the first annual general meeting of the
Company after his appointment and shall then be eligible for
re-election at such meeting. Every Director shall be subject
to retirement by rotation at least once every three years
and shall be eligible for re-election in accordance with the
Articles of Association.
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Board of Directors (Continued)
Nomination Committee (Continued)

The Nomination Committee is responsible for identifying
suitably qualified candidates for appointment to the
Board and making recommendations to the Board for its
consideration. The process for selecting and recommending
candidates for directorship includes the consideration
of referrals and the engagement of external recruitment
professionals. The selection criteria are based mainly on
the assessment of the candidates’ characters, professional
qualifications and experience relevant to the Group’s
business.

The Nomination Committee is also responsible for
reviewing the structure, size and composition (including
the skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board
periodically, assessing the independence of the independent
non-executive Directors and making recommendation to
the Board on the appointment and re-appointment of the
Directors and succession planning for the Directors.

During Year 2022, two Nomination Committee meetings
were held to review the Board structure and the diversity of
Board members and make recommendations to the Board
on the appointment or re-appointment of the Directors
and succession planning for the Directors, in particular,
the Chairman and the Co-Chief Executive Officers. The
attendance of the meetings of each member is set out
below:
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Number of
meetings
attended/held
during the term

of office
EHRAHE Attendance rate
Name of Directors EENR BITEBARE HE=
Chu Hing Tsung KEM 1/2 50%
Zhang Lu SR I 2/2 100%
Hung Muk Ming HERER 2/2 100%
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Board of Directors (Continued)

Directors’ and Officers’ Liability Insurance and
Indemnity

The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance to
indemnify its Directors and officers in respect of legal actions
against them.

Induction and Training

Each newly appointed Director, executive or non-executive,
is provided with a director’s induction package to ensure
that he has a proper understanding of his duties and
responsibilities. The director’s induction package includes an
overview of the Group’s business operation and governance
policies, the Director’s responsibilities and duties, relevant
regulatory requirements and briefing with the senior
management of the Group.

Pursuant to the CG Code, all Directors should participate
in continuous professional development to develop and
refresh their knowledge and skills. This is to ensure that their
contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.
During Year 2022, all Directors participated in appropriate
continuous professional development activities by way
of attending training and/or reading materials relevant to
the Company’s business or to the Directors’ duties and
responsibilities. All Directors have confirmed that, following
specific enquiry by the Company, they complied with the
continuous professional development requirement of the CG
Code for Year 2022.
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Exg(#)

Board of Directors (Continued)

PR IEIN(E)

Induction and Training (Continued)

The training attended by the Directors during Year 2022 is EER2022F FHETHEIIBL AT ¢

summarised below:

Type of training (Note 7) Training matters (Note 2)

Name of Directors EEHSE ENAR A7) EINEE(H7E2)
Executive Directors HITEE
Chu Hing Tsung RE M a, b i, i, iv
Chen Yongcun (appointed PRk 1T (74202249 A a, b i, i
with effect from 16HEZRT)
16 September 2022)
Luo Zhihai R b i, i, dii, iv
Tang Lunfei EfmF a, b i, i, v
Wang Ping T a, b i, i, iv
Non-executive Director HFHITEE
Chen Zhiwei BRE&E b i, i, dii, iv
Independent non-executive BV #HTEE
Directors
Liang Qing 2E b i, i, i, iv
Zhang Lu o % b i i, v
Hung Muk Ming HRER b i, i, dii
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Board of Directors (Continued)

Induction and Training (Continued)

Note 1:
a attending seminar or training session
b: reading newspapers, journals and updates relating to

the economy, general business or directors’ duties and
responsibilities, etc.

Note 2:

corporate governance
ii: regulatory
iii: finance and accounting
iv: managerial

The Company also received confirmation from the Company
Secretary that he has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training during Year 2022.
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Risk Management and Internal Control

The Board is responsible for ensuring that the Company has
effective risk management and control systems. The Board
evaluates the effectiveness of the systems at least annually.
A review of the effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control systems of the Group for Year 2022 was
conducted.

Risk Management and Internal Control Systems

The Company’s risk management and internal control
systems are designed to manage and mitigate risks, rather
than eliminate risks, and can only provide reasonable and
not absolute assurance against material misstatement or
loss. The Company has employed a bottom-up approach
for the identification, assessment and mitigation of risks at
business unit level and across functional areas.

Main Features of Risk Management and Internal
Control Systems

The key elements of the Company’s risk management
and internal control systems include the establishment of
a risk register to track and document identified risks, the
assessment and evaluation of risks, the development and
continuous updating of responsive procedures, and the
ongoing testing of internal control procedures to ensure their
effectiveness.

An ongoing risk assessment approach is adopted by the
Company for identifying and assessing new risks. The
identified risks will be recorded in the risk register which will
be reviewed regularly. After considering the control measures
against the risks identified, a risk matrix is adopted to
determine the risk rating (L=low risk, M=medium risk, H=high
risk) after evaluation of each risk identified by the likelihood
and the impact of the risk event.
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Risk Management and Internal Control (Continued)

Process Used to ldentify, Evaluate and Manage
Significant Risks

During the process of risk assessment, the risk owner of
each of the departments of the Group and major subsidiaries
of the Company is required to capture and identify the key
inherent risks that affect the achievement of its objectives.
Each inherent risk is evaluated according to the risk matrix.
After taking into consideration the risk response, such as
control measures in place to mitigate the risk, the residual
risk of each inherent risk is evaluated again and categorised
according to its risk level. The risk register with the risk
responses and residual risks is reported to the Audit
Committee. The Audit Committee, acting on behalf of the
Board, evaluates the effectiveness of the risk management
and internal control systems of the Group. The residual
risks in the highest category will be subject to the Board’s
oversight.

Process Used to Review the Effectiveness of the
Risk Management & Internal Control Systems and to
Resolve Material Internal Control Defects

In view of the Company’s business and scale of operations,
and in order to adopt the most cost-effective method of
conducting periodic reviews of the Company’s internal
controls, the Board has outsourced the internal audit
function to an independent consulting firm (“Consulting
Firm”). The Consulting Firm has conducted a review of the
Company’s risk management and internal control systems
for Year 2022 according to the scope of review agreed and
approved by the Audit Committee.
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Risk Management and Internal Control (Continued)

Inside Information

The Board is responsible for the handling and dissemination
of inside information. In order to ensure that the market
and Shareholders are fully and promptly informed about the
material developments in the Group’s business, the Board
has adopted an inside information disclosure policy regarding
the procedures of proper information disclosure. Release of
inside information is subject to the approval of the Board.
Unless duly authorised, all staff members of the Group shall
not communicate inside information to any external parties
and shall not respond to market speculation and rumours.
In addition, all external presentation materials or publications
must be pre-vetted before release.

Report to Audit Committee

The Consulting Firm reports directly to the Audit Committee
and the Audit Committee is satisfied that there has been no
major deficiency noted in the areas of the Company’s risk
management and internal control systems being reviewed
after implementation of the measures recommended by
the Consulting Firm to rectify the internal control defects
reported by it. Accordingly, the Audit Committee and the
Board considered the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group to be effective and adequate.
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General Meetings

During Year 2022, the Company convened three general
meetings, including the annual general meeting held on
22 June 2022. The attendance of each Director is set out

below:

BRRRE

R2022F BN - ARAIBRZIABRERS -
B R2022F6 H22H BT 2 MR B F K
o REFLEBREINMOT ¢

Number of

general meetings
attended/held during
the term of office

R EE - Attendance rate

Name of Directors =3 o BITRRREIRE HER
Executive Directors BITEE
Chu Hing Tsung KE M 1/3 33%
Chen Yongcun (appointed with BRk % (72022F9 A 16 H N/A N/A

effect from 16 September BEEE) NEA T EA

2022)
Luo Zhihai mEE 3/3 100%
Tang Lunfei EmK 2/3 66%
Wang Ping T 3/3 100%
Non-executive Director HHITEE
Chen Zhiwei PRAEE 3/3 100%
Independent non-executive BV HEHITEE

Directors
Liang Qing 25 0/3 0%
Zhang Lu SR I3 3/3 100%
Hung Muk Ming AR 3/3 100%
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Auditor’s Remuneration

For Year 2022, the remuneration paid/payable to the
Company’s auditor, Ernst & Young, for their audit and non-

audit services provided, is set out as follows:

T

R20224F s EL Pz 2 B At KOEB|AT IR
BN AR D R A B A Lk & 5t AR = A
2B

Fee paid/payable

Nature of services PRI ME e ENEHR
HK$
BT

Audit services FiT R 7,200,000

Non-audit services IEEET RS

— Internal control services — NEBEEIE RS 900,000

Total 4AEE 8,100,000

Remuneration of Senior Management

The emoluments paid to the senior management of
the Group during Year 2022, which were amongst the
emoluments paid to the five highest paid individuals of the

BREEABHM

R2022FEX M FASERREEAB(CK
KESEZRSHFAL) 2HMECHIINGEA M
B MisEo

Group, are set out in Note 9 to the consolidated financial

statements.

The remuneration of the senior management of the Group by

AEBEH = REEABR2022F E M M F

band for Year 2022 is as follows: FEFNWOR
Number of
individuals
AE
HK$1,000,001 to HK$3,000,000 1,000,001 7T £3,000,00075 7T 1
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 3,000,001/ 7T 23,500,000/ 7T 1
HK$3,500,001 to HK$5,000,000 3,500,001% 725,000,000/ 7T 1
3
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Directors’ Responsibility Statement

The Board acknowledges its responsibilities for the
preparation of the financial statements of the Group for each
financial year, which give a true and fair view of the state
of the affairs, results and cash flow of the Group for that
year in compliance with the relevant laws and disclosure
requirements in the Listing Rules.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements of
the Group for Year 2022, the Directors have (i) selected
suitable accounting policies and applied them consistently;
(i) adopted appropriate Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and Hong Kong Accounting Standards; (i) made
adjustments and estimates that are prudent and reasonable;
and (iv) prepared the consolidated financial statements on
the going concern basis.

As at 31 December 2022, notwithstanding that the Group
had net current assets of approximately HK$2,426 million,
the Group’s interest-bearing bank and other borrowings
and convertible bonds with an aggregate carrying amount
of approximately HK$1,431 million are due to be repayable
within the next 12 months while its cash and bank balances
amounted to approximately HK$98 million. In addition, during
the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group’s borrowing
with a carrying amount of approximately HK$198 million has
not been repaid according to the scheduled repayment date
and remained outstanding as at 31 December 2022. As at
the date of this annual report, the Group has been actively
negotiating with the lender for an extension of the repayment
date of the aforesaid borrowing. Up to the date of this
annual report, the Group has settled the interest relating to
the outstanding borrowing and has not received any demand
on immediate repayment of the borrowing.

EENEERH

EZeRRAYRMBRFEMRENAEE
MBBREANET  RFVHRREEBLERH
FERR ETRANKERTE B RERA
SERZFENEGRR - FERBRSR -

ERRB2022F E 2 AR B B M B BwKE -
BER(DERGENEHER - W ERER
(RBEENETEMBREENREF G
R (iFEBEREGBNFARRMG R
(EFERQEERFRITAMBHWE -

M2022F12H31H ' BEARSEMNFRBE
E 5 #12,426,000,000/ 7t © KEBHET A
RITREMERRATBRESEEHEBN R
1,431,000,000/% 7T + H AR R 2K12(8 A A
B8 - ™ E3IR S RIRIT4 4 898,000,000
BT e AN RELE2022F12A318 I F
&+ 7N %5 B BR E 18 49198,000,0007%8 7t 2 f&
RAIERIBEEN A BERE - BR2022F12
AB1RNKRER - BHEAFHRAH  A&E
—EREBEERARITES  #LAERN
ERAES BEEAFHRAE  ~EEDE
BEREEEREENNE - Bl REEE
IR EE A RAEK o
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Directors’ Responsibility Statement (Continued)

In view of the above circumstances, the Directors have
given careful consideration to the Group’s future liquidity
requirements, operating performance and available sources
of financing in assessing the Group’s ability to continue
operating as a going concern. The following plans and
measures are formulated to manage the working capital and
improve the financial position of the Group:

()  the Group will continue to implement measures to
speed up the timing of collection of outstanding loan
receivables and interest receivables;

(i) the Group will continue to take measures to expedite the
disposal of financial asset investments, including equity
investments and non-performing assets portfolio; and

(i) the Group will continue its negotiations with the lenders
of certain bank and other borrowings or other financial
institutions on the refinancing of the borrowings.

The Directors have reviewed the Group’s cash flow
projections prepared by management, which cover a
period of not less than twelve months from 31 December
2022. They are of the opinion that, taking into account the
abovementioned plans and measures, the Group will have
sufficient working capital to finance its operations and to
meet its financial obligations as and when they fall due.
Accordingly, the Directors are satisfied that it is appropriate
to prepare the consolidated financial statements of the
Group on a going concern basis.

The Directors are also responsible for keeping proper
accounting records, which reflect the financial position of
the Group accurately at all times. The Directors also have
general responsibilities for setting up an appropriate internal
control system, which is mainly to safeguard the assets
of the Group and to prevent and detect fraud and other
irregularities. The Directors have reviewed the internal control
system of the Group and are satisfied that the internal
control system of the Group is functioning properly.

Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited
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Shareholders’ Rights

Set out below is a summary of certain rights of the
Shareholders as required to be disclosed pursuant to the
mandatory disclosure requirements under the CG Code.

Convening General Meeting on Request

Shareholder(s) may request the Directors to convene an
extraordinary general meeting pursuant to Sections 566 to
568 of the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws
of Hong Kong) (“Companies Ordinance”).

In accordance with Section 566 of the Companies
Ordinance, the Directors are required to call a general
meeting if the Company has received requests to do so
from members of the Company representing at least 5% of
the total voting rights of all the members of the Company
having a right to vote at general meeting. Such requests
must state the general nature of the business to be dealt
with at the meeting, and may include the text of a resolution
that may properly be moved and is intended to be moved
at the meeting. Such requests may be sent to the Company
in hard copy form (by depositing at the registered office
of the Company at Suite 4901, 49th Floor, Office Tower,
Convention Plaza, 1 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong for
the attention of the Board) or in electronic form (by email:
info@silvergrant.com.cn); and must be authenticated by the
person or persons making it. In accordance with Section
567 of the Companies Ordinance, the Directors must call
a meeting within 21 days after the date on which they
become subject to the requirement under Section 566 of the
Companies Ordinance and such meeting must be held on
a date not more than 28 days after the date of the notice
convening the meeting.

R R

RIBOEEEATAMBHIERERER TR
BHBCRE TRAMBEAT

EEREBARRAS

PRR AR B E B AP F6228 R AHERAI(T A
AP ) 5566 £5681% 2 K E = A FMBCRR
ARE -

RIE A BMEBIE5661E - AR FIWEME SR
BEETRAAELREZRR ZBIRER
OB ANARBREZER - EREFRRE
Ag AESERRABREAE - BEERA
MEPAEFEAS LEB s EB s —RHEE -
KA B EAEZAE 16 E thE) 3 W %
ARE LB ZRBR XK - BEZEKATK
AEAER (BRREANR 2 AMBRERE -
i ABAETFBRE1IRSERSGHAKNE
49184901=E » TAEFERKRHEA)IXE
R (3% 1B & B Zinfo@silvergrant.com.cn)
RKRAQNR RALSRBEZERZALTR
B RIBRRENI 56715 EFBARES
=B R RGBS 56615 5 E AT R 2 B #ifg
Z21BABHAAE MZASBATEARAE
WmAB A% 228 HNERTT o
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Shareholders’ Rights (Continued)
Convening General Meeting on Request (Continued)

If the Directors do not, within 21 days from the date of
the deposit of the requisition, proceed duly to convene
an extraordinary general meeting on a day not more than
28 days after the date on which the notice convening the
extraordinary general meeting is given, the Shareholder(s)
concerned, or any of them representing more than one half
of the total voting rights of all of them, may themselves
convene an extraordinary general meeting, provided that the
extraordinary general meeting so convened shall not be held
after the expiration of 3 months from the said date.

The extraordinary general meeting convened by Shareholders
shall be convened in the same manner, as nearly as possible,
as that in which general meetings are to be convened by the
Directors.

Procedures for Directing Shareholders’ Enquiries to the
Board

Shareholders can raise enquiries to the Board. All enquiries
shall be in writing and sent by post to the registered office of
the Company at Suite 4901, 49/F, Office Tower, Convention
Plaza, 1 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong for the
attention of the Company Secretary.

Putting Forward Proposals at Annual General Meetings

To put forward a resolution at an annual general meeting,
Shareholders are requested to follow the requirements
and procedures set out in Sections 615 and 616 of the
Companies Ordinance.

Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited
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Shareholders’ Rights (Continued)

Putting Forward Proposals at Annual General Meetings
(Continued)

Section 615 of the Companies Ordinance provides that the
Company must give notice of a resolution if it has received
requests that it do so from (A) the members of the Company
representing at least 2.5% of the total voting rights of all
the members of the Company who have a right to vote on
the resolution at the annual general meeting to which the
requests relate; or (B) at least 50 members of the Company
who have a right to vote on the resolution at the annual
general meeting to which the requests relate. Such requests
(a) may be sent to the Company in hard copy form (by
depositing at the registered office of the Company at Suite
4901, 49th Floor, Office Tower, Convention Plaza, 1 Harbour
Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong for the attention of the Board)
or in electronic form (by email: info@silvergrant.com.cn); (b)
must identify the resolution of which notice is to be given;
(c) must be authenticated by the person or persons making
it; and (d) must be received by the Company not later than
() 6 weeks before the annual general meeting to which the
requests relate; or (i) if later, the time at which notice is given
of that meeting. Section 616 of the Companies Ordinance
provides that the Company which is required under Section
615 of the Companies Ordinance to give notice of a
resolution must send a copy of it at the Company’s own
expense to each member of the Company entitled to receive
notice of the annual general meeting (1) in the same manner
as the notice of the meeting; and (2) at the same time as, or
as soon as reasonably practicable after, it gives notice of the
meeting.

REREFR| (&)
RBRRBFASLRHBRE)

NEMEBIZE6151KET 8 - AR RIE AT
BREZER BRBLHERFR 2B A
BENZBANAECEEEREZERMET
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AEAKAR (EBREART 2 MM ERE -
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4914901 = - AHEFERKMHA)IKEF
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Shareholders’ Rights (Continued)
Proposing Director for Election at General Meetings

In respect of proposing a person for election as a Director at
general meetings, please refer to the procedures available on
the website of the Company at http://www.silvergrant.com.cn.

Constitutional Documents

During Year 2022, there were amendments made to
the Articles of Association. The Company adopted the
amended and restated Articles of Association pursuant
to the Shareholders’ resolution passed on 22 June 2022.
For details of the amendments made to the Articles of
Association, please refer to the circular of the Company
dated 19 May 2022.

Communication with Shareholders

The Company endeavours to maintain a high level of
transparency in communicating with Shareholders and
investors at large. In order to enhance the transparency
of Shareholders’ voting in a general meeting, separate
resolutions are proposed at a general meeting on each
substantially separate issue, including the election of
individual Directors and all resolutions are voted on by poll.
The Company will engage an external scrutineer to count
the votes. The poll voting results will be published on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange at a
later time on the day of the general meeting. In addition,
the requirement for resolutions to be voted by poll is stated
in the circular or the annual report to be despatched to
Shareholders. Moreover, the chairman of the meeting will
explain to the Shareholders the detailed procedures for
conducting a poll before voting at each general meeting.

Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited
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Communication with Shareholders (Continued)

The Company has maintained a website at
http://www.silvergrant.com.cn which enables the
Shareholders, investors and the general public to have
open access to the information of the Company. Financial
information and all corporate communications of the
Company are made available on the Company’s website and
are updated regularly.

Shareholders who wish to raise any queries with the Board
may write to the Company Secretary at Suite 4901, 49/F,
Office Tower, Convention Plaza, 1 Harbour Road, Wanchai,
Hong Kong.

The Company has reviewed the implementation and
effectiveness of its shareholders’ communication policy
during Year 2022.

The Company has established different communication
channels with the Shareholders. Shareholders may raise
their enquiries in general meetings. During Year 2022, the
Company held three general meetings (including the annual
general meeting held on 22 June 2022) which were attended
by members of the Board and (in respect of the annual
general meeting) the Company’s auditor, Ernst & Young,
to answer questions from the Shareholders attending the
meetings.

BERRWBEGE)
X A A B &R - @8 ¥ R
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REERABALTRE-FELFREBREAR
NAIZER - KRB BER KA BERE
Z W RARAAEE EHR AR BELL - I
HEeTHELER -

WERRFERNEESSIRENEN JBERR
RARIWE it A BT EEE 1R
BB I5 9N KIB49124901=F -

RRRER20225F EEHHE KRR BABEDN
HITHER AR

ARAREEBREEITRMBEBEREE - RE
ARBRREAE LIREEM - RN2022FF + A
NAEIHBITZRBRRERAE (RIER20229F6 A
2ERTHRRBAFARE)  EEFEXER
(ARRBEFAEME ) AR AIZEML KE
AR EBAMYIEEE SRR ELFEEROK
BRI -

Annual Report 2022
TR CFFR

79



80

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT 1t ¥ &A%

Communication with Shareholders (Continued)

The Company endeavours to disclose all material information
about the Group to the Shareholders as effectively and timely
as possible. Most information released by the Company to
the Stock Exchange is also published on the Company’s
website, including annual and interim reports, annual and
interim results announcements, circulars and notices of
general meetings and associated explanatory documents,
other announcements, monthly returns on movements in
the Company’s securities for each month, constitutional
documents of the Company and terms of reference of the
committees of the Board. The amendments made by the
Company to the Articles of Association and the terms of
reference of each of the committees of the Board during
Year 2022 have also been published on the websites of
both the Stock Exchange and the Company to keep the
Shareholders informed. Shareholders may at any time send
their enquiries and concerns to the Board in writing to the
Company Secretary at the Company’s office in Hong Kong,
and make a request for the Company’s information to the
extent such information is publicly available.

In view of the above, the Company considered its
Shareholders’ communication policy effective.

Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited
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The Board presents the annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for Year
2022.

Principal Activities

The Company is an investment holding company. The
subsidiaries of the Company are principally engaged in
property leasing and investments. Details of the principal
activities of the Company’s subsidiaries are set out in Note 1
to the consolidated financial statements.

Results and Appropriations

The results of the Group and appropriations of the Company
for Year 2022 are set out in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss on page 116.

The Board has resolved not to recommend the payment of a
final dividend for Year 2022.
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Business Review EBER
The business review of the Group for Year 2022 is set out AREB022F EHEBERFINWOT ¢
below:
Section in the Page number of the
Annual Report Annual Report
HIRNEHR 2B FHZEH
a. Fair view of the Company’s business Chairman’s Statement 5
BEARBEBNTEER IRERE
b. Description of the principal risks and uncertainties facing Directors’ Report 90
the Company ExewWms
HARNTEEMEZER R TARAEZMHER
c. Indication of likely future development in the Company’s Chairman’s Statement 10
business IS
ARREBHEE IR ANRRERNIER
d. Analysis using financial key performance indicators Financial Highlights 2
ERMBERRIRERETHAN BHHE
e. Discussion on the Company’s environmental policies and Environmental, Social and 44
performance Governance
HARRBNRBBE LZRNRE BE HERER
f. An account of the Company’s key relationships with its Directors’ Report 102
employees, customers and suppliers and others that EEERE

have a significant impact on the Company and on which
the Company’s success depends

ARREEES  BEERMEENEZMENANRER
RIEMEUTHANEMATNEZRENFHA  ZAL
HEARAAERFE  MARARINERERZATL

g. Discussion on the Company’s compliance with the relevant  Directors’ Report 89

laws and regulations that have a significant impact on EE s
the Company

HARRETHARRABERYENEMERRADINER
GOEA
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Business Review (Continued)
Issue of Convertible Bonds

On 20 May 2019, the Company entered into a placing
agreement (“Placing Agreement”) with CMB International
Capital Limited (“Placing Agent”), pursuant to which the
Company conditionally agreed to place through the Placing
Agent, on a best effort basis, 7% senior unsecured and
guaranteed convertible bonds (“Convertible Bonds”) of
the Company due 2022 of an aggregate principal amount
of up to HK$200,000,000, to placees who and whose
subsidiaries or associates are independent third parties
(within the meaning of the Listing Rules) of the Company,
at the conversion price (“Conversion Price”) of HK$2.33 per
ordinary share with no par value (“Conversion Share”) of the
Company (“Placing”).

On 22 May 2019, the Company entered into a subscription
agreement (“JIC Subscription Agreement”) with JIC
(Hong Kong) Holding Limited (“JIC”) (a placee procured
by the Placing Agent, who and whose ultimate beneficial
owner(s) are independent third parties (within the meaning
of the Listing Rules)), in relation to JIC’s subscription for
the Convertible Bonds with a principal amount of up to
HK$200,000,000 (“JIC Subscription”).
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Business Review (Continued)
Issue of Convertible Bonds (Continued)

Save for (a) the date of the agreement; (b) the identity of
the subscriber; (c) the principal amount of the Convertible
Bonds to be subscribed; and (d) the inclusion of two
additional conditions precedent to the completion of the
JIC Subscription Agreement (namely, (i) Mr. Chu Hing Tsung
(“Mr. Chu”), the Chairman, a Co-Chief Executive Officer, an
executive Director and a substantial Shareholder (within the
meaning of the Listing Rules), having executed and delivered
to JIC the Guarantees (as defined below); and (ii) the
Company shall have completed all of the obligations under
the JIC Subscription Agreement required on or before the
completion date, the principal terms of the JIC Subscription
Agreement are substantially the same as to those of the
Connected Subscription Agreements (as defined below).

Subscription of Convertible Bonds by the Connected
Subscribers

On 20 May 2019, the Company also entered into a
subscription agreement (“Connected Subscription
Agreement”, collectively the “Connected Subscription
Agreements”) with each of Regent Star International Limited
(“Regent Star”), Mr. Gao Jian Min (“Mr. Gao”), Wonderful Sky
Financial Group Holdings Limited (“Wonderful Sky”), Ms. Luk
Ching Sanna (“Ms. Luk”) and Excel Bright Capital Limited
(“Excel Bright”) (collectively the “Connected Subscribers”,
and each a “Connected Subscriber”), who were all
connected persons (within the meaning of the Listing
Rules) of the Company as at the date of the Connected
Subscription Agreements, pursuant to which the Company
conditionally agreed to issue, and each of the relevant
Connected Subscribers conditionally agreed to subscribe
for, the Convertible Bonds in the aggregate principal amount
of HK$950,000,000, at the Conversion Price (“Connected
Subscriptions”). Mr. Chu has provided personal guarantees
(“Guarantees”) in favour of the relevant subscriber pursuant
to the JIC Subscription Agreement and the Connected
Subscription Agreements.

Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited
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Business Review (Continued)
Completion of Subscriptions of Convertible Bonds

Completion of the JIC Subscription and the Connected
Subscriptions took place on 3 July 2019. The gross
proceeds from the issue of the Convertible Bonds were in
the amount of HK$1,150,000,000. The net proceeds from
the issue of the Convertible Bonds, after deduction of all
relevant costs and expenses, amounted to approximately
HK$1,147,000,000, among which (i) approximately
HK$500,000,000 would be used for repaying the Company'’s
short-term debts; (i) approximately HK$400,000,000 would
be used for expanding the Company’s business to the
financial investment and service industry, such as acquisition
of and investment in distressed debts in the PRC; and (iii)
approximately HK$247,000,000 would be used as general
working capital of the Company. As at the date of this
annual report, the net proceeds have been fully utilised as
intended.

Principal terms of the Convertible Bonds

The issue price of the Convertible Bonds is 100% of
the principal amount of the Convertible Bonds, which is
HK$1,150,000,000 in aggregate (among which a principal
amount of HK$200,000,000 was placed to JIC through
the Placing; and the principal amount of HK$450,000,000,
HK$200,000,000, HK$100,000,000, HK$100,000,000 and
HK$100,000,000 were subscribed for by Regent Star, Mr.
Gao, Wonderful Sky, Ms. Luk and Excel Bright, respectively).
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Business Review (Continued)
Principal terms of the Convertible Bonds (Continued)

On 6 July 2022, the Company (as issuer), the Connected
Subscribers and JIC (collectively, the “Subscribers”) (as
subscribers), and Mr. Chu (as guarantor), entered into an
amendment deed (“First Amendment Deed”), pursuant to
which the parties conditionally agreed to, among others,
amend certain terms and conditions of the Convertible
Bonds (“Proposed Amendments”). On 15 July 2022, the
Company (as issuer), the Subscribers (as subscribers), and
Mr. Chu (as guarantor), entered into an amendment deed
to the First Amendment Deed (“Second Amendment Deed”,
together with the First Amendment Deed, the “Amendment
Deeds”), pursuant to which the parties agreed to, among
others, amend certain terms and conditions of the First
Amendment Deed.

Pursuant to the Amendment Deeds, the Proposed
Amendments consist of the following:

()  the maturity date of the Convertible Bonds (“Maturity
Date”) shall be extended from the date falling on the
36th month from the issue date of the Convertible
Bonds (i.e. 4 July 2022) to 30 December 2022;

(i)  the interest rate of the Convertible Bonds shall be
adjusted from 7% per annum for the period from
and including the issue date (“Issue Date”) of the
Convertible Bonds to 4 July 2022 (“Relevant Payment
Date”), to (1) seven per cent. (7%) per annum for
the period from and including the Issue Date to the
Relevant Payment Date; and (2) twelve per cent. (12%)
per annum for the period from the date immediately
after the Relevant Payment Date to the Maturity Date;
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Business Review (Continued)

Principal terms of the Convertible Bonds (Continueq)

(i)

(iv)

the amount payable by the Company to redeem all the
Convertible Bonds on the Maturity Date (“Outstanding
Bonds”) in accordance with the instrument constituting
the Convertible Bonds executed by the Company on
3 July 2019 (“Bond Instrument”) shall be adjusted
from 116.5% of the entire principal amount of the
Outstanding Bonds as at the Maturity Date (inclusive
of interests received up to the Maturity Date), to a sum
equal to the aggregate of (1) 100% of the principal
amount of the Outstanding Bonds; and (2) the interests
on 100% of the principal amount of the Outstanding
Bonds accrued at 12% per annum for the period from
the date immediately after the Relevant Payment Date
up to and including the Maturity Date;

the Convertible Bonds shall be secured by pledges
over the receivables of the Group (mainly the loans
granted by the Group to its joint venture, associates
and independent third parties) and the equity interests
in the subsidiaries and associates of the Company
holding receivables of the Group, and the status of
the Convertible Bonds set out in the Bond Instrument
shall be adjusted from direct, guaranteed, unsecured,
unsubordinated and unconditional obligations of the
Company, which shall at all times rank pari passu and
without any preference or priority among themselves
and at least pari passu with all other present and future
direct, unsecured, unsubordinated and unconditional
obligations of the Company, to direct, guaranteed,
secured, unsubordinated and unconditional obligations
of the Company, which shall at all times rank pari
passu and without any preference or priority among
themselves and at least pari passu with all other
present and future direct, secured, unsubordinated and
unconditional obligations of the Company; and

the period of the notice to be given by the Company to
the Subscribers for early redemption of the Convertible
Bonds by the Company shall be adjusted from not less
than thirty (30) days, to not less than five (5) days.

The Proposed Amendments became effective on 26 August
2022.
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Business Review (Continued)

Principal terms of the Convertible Bonds (Continued)

The Conversion Price of HK$2.33 per Conversion Share (which
has not been amended by the Proposed Amendments)
represents (i) a premium of approximately 39% to the
closing price of HK$1.68 per Share as quoted on the Stock
Exchange on 20 May 2019, being the date of the Placing
Agreement and the Connected Subscription Agreements;
and (i) a premium of approximately 40% to the average
closing price of HK$1.66 per Share as quoted on the Stock
Exchange for the last five consecutive trading days prior
to the date of the Placing Agreement and the Connected
Subscription Agreements. The conversion period of the
Convertible Bonds is from the Issue Date up to the close of
business on a date which is five (5) trading days prior to the
Maturity Date.

A holder of the Convertible Bonds can only exercise his/her/
its conversion rights on the conditions that (i) no obligation
will arise on the bondholder to make a general offer to the
Shareholders for all securities of the Company under Rule 26
of the Code on Takeovers and Mergers upon exercising of
the conversion rights; and (ii) no Listing Rules, including the
minimum public float requirements of the Company under
the Listing Rules, will be breached as a result of an exercise
of the conversion rights.

As at 31 December 2022, the Company had redeemed part
of the Convertible Bonds in the aggregate principal amount
of approximately HK$1,108,288,000 and the remaining
Convertible Bonds in the aggregate principal amount of
approximately HK$41,712,000 had been redeemed by the
Company as at the date of this annual report.
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Business Review (Continued)

Principal terms of the Convertible Bonds (Continued)

Details of the Placing, the JIC Subscription, the Connected
Subscriptions, the Amendment Deeds and the Proposed
Amendments are set out in the announcements of the
Company dated 20 May 2019, 22 May 2019, 27 June
2019, 6 July 2022, 11 July 2022 and 15 July 2022 and the
circulars of the Company dated 10 June 2019 and 5 August
2022.

Compliance with laws and regulations

The Company was incorporated in Hong Kong with its
shares listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.
The Company’s subsidiaries were incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands, Hong Kong and the PRC. The Group’s
operations are mainly carried out by the Company’s
subsidiaries in the PRC and through certain property
investments in Hong Kong.

The Group’s principal business activities are property leasing
and investments in the PRC and Hong Kong which are highly
regulated businesses. To engage in investments (both in the
PRC and Hong Kong) and financial services, the Group must
obtain relevant permits from government authorities before
the commencement of the business. Set out below is a
summary of certain aspects of the PRC and Hong Kong legal
and regulatory provisions relating to the Group’s operations
and business:

° Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the
Laws of Hong Kong);

. REREESEBEEEETINE (Interim Measures for
the Supervision and Administration of Privately Offered
Investment Funds*); and

o FERBEEASBSTAETEIME (Measures for the
Administration of the Fundraising of Privately Offered
Investment Funds?).

* English name is translated for identification purpose only
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Business Review (Continued)
Compliance with laws and regulations (Continued)

If there is any non-compliance with the above rules and
regulations, it will affect the Group’s operations, development
and financial performance. During Year 2022, the Group
complied with all the relevant laws and regulations in Hong
Kong, the British Virgin Islands and the PRC that have a
significant impact on the Group.

Key Risk Factors

The following paragraphs list out the key risks and
uncertainties facing the Group. It is a non-exhaustive list
and there may be other risks and uncertainties in addition
to the key risk areas outlined below. Besides, this annual
report does not constitute a recommendation or an advice
for anyone to invest in the securities of the Company and
investors are advised to make their own judgment or consult
their own investment advisors before making any investment
in the securities of the Company.

Operational Risks

The Group’s operation is subject to a number of risk factors
distinctive to direct investment, property investment and
property related businesses. Default on the part of the
Group’s buyers, tenants and strategic business partners, and
inadequacies or failures of internal processes, people and
systems or other external factors may have various levels
of negative impact on the Group’s results of operations.
Additionally, accidents may happen despite systems and
policies set up for their prevention, which may lead to
financial loss, litigation or damage in reputation.

Policy Risks

The Group’s principal operating activities are in Mainland
China. The mainland market operates a system of planned
economy. New laws and regulations are launched from time
to time to regulate and/or promote economic activities.
The enactment of any new regulatory policies may have
various levels of negative impact on the Group’s results of
operations.

Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited

REBERZEREEEGR A

EBRBER(E)
EREBRAINET(E)

TEFEMUENRAIRROE T EAER
s BRRMBRIR o R2022FF ¢ K
SEETES HBEXHERTEEAE
EEERTENMARBEZRBRG -

FERBREE

VAT 51l AN S T e 4 o = 22 e e K TN BRBA AL
R MBAREFEMERER BT EZER
BEoN - MAl e FEE MR KT REE -
SN » NERAEER AR R EARNRFESH
FHEMERLER - REEAEREART
ELHZH - BETHEEREREBRRDN
BR e

AEENLSEZINEERERE  HEKRE R
ERREGZREENRBAZMEE - K
BARENER  HPREBIEXBRHD
KETTR ABRE  ABRERRGMETEH
KRR HEMINERAEE A RE NS E AR
BRTRAEENAETE - mH BELRE
BEGIE THERBINNRGEMBE - BIMD
AATpE L - MBI BMPREBX - FAKE

BXE-

B B

AEETENTEAMUEELEED - A
MISERAET BB R o FAEER MR A
TR ERTAE RSB EES -
HEEAFNRABEK A e HAREN
LEFXETRIEREEAMFE -



DIRECTORS’ REPORT-EE=E %

Key Risk Factors (Continued)
Past Performance and Forward Looking Statements

The performance and the results of operation of the Group
as set out in this annual report are historical in nature and
past performance is not a guarantee of future performance.
This annual report may contain forward-looking statements
and opinions that involve risks and uncertainties. Actual
results may also differ materially from expectations discussed
in such forward-looking statements and opinions. Neither
the Group nor the Directors, employees or agents of the
Group assume any obligations or liabilities in the event that
any of the forward-looking statements or opinions does not
materialise or turns out to be incorrect.

Fixed Assets

The Group’s leasehold land and buildings were revalued at 31
December 2022. The deficit on revaluation of the leasehold
land and buildings of approximately HK$17,596,000 has
been charged to the asset revaluation reserve.

The Group revalued all of its investment properties at
31 December 2022. The net decrease in fair value of
investment properties, which has been charged directly to
the consolidated statement of profit or loss, amounted to
approximately HK$208,156,000.

Details of the valuation and movements of the investment
properties and property, plant and equipment of the Group
during Year 2022 are set out in Notes 13 and 14 to the
consolidated financial statements respectively.

Details of the major investment properties of the Group at 31
December 2022 are set out in the section under “Summary
of Investment Properties” of this annual report.
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Charitable Donations

No material donation was made to charitable organisations
by the Group during Year 2022.

Share Capital

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company
during Year 2022 are set out in Note 29 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Distributable Reserves of the Company

As at 31 December 2022, no reserve was available for
distribution to the Shareholders.

Equity Linked Agreements

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Issue of
Convertible Bonds” above, no equity linked agreements were
entered into by the Group during Year 2022 or subsisted at
the end of Year 2022.

Directors

The Directors during Year 2022 and up to the date of this
annual report are:

Executive Directors

Chu Hing Tsung
(re-designated from the Chief Executive Officer
to a Co-Chief Executive Officer with effect from
13 May 2022)

Chen Yongcun
(appointed as a Co-Chief Executive Officer and an
executive Director with effect from 13 May 2022 and
16 September 2022, respectively)

Luo Zhihai

Tang Lunfei

Wang Ping

Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited
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Directors (Continued)

Non-executive Director
Chen Zhiwei

Independent non-executive Directors
Liang Qing

Zhang Lu

Hung Muk Ming

Each Director has been appointed for a specific term,
and is subject to retirement by rotation and re-election in
accordance with the Articles of Association.

In accordance with Article 93 of the Articles of Association,
Mr. Chen Yongcun who has been appointed as an executive
Director on 16 September 2022, will hold office only until the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company and he,
being eligible, will offer himself for re-election.

In accordance with Article 102 of the Articles of Association,
Mr. Chu Hing Tsung, Mr. Hung Muk Ming and Mr. Chen
Zhiwei shall retire by rotation at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company, and they, being eligible,
will offer themselves for re-election. The remaining Directors
shall remain in office.

Directors of Subsidiaries

Other than the Directors named in the section headed
“Directors” above, the persons who have served on the
respective boards of directors of the subsidiaries of the
Company during Year 2022 and up to the date of this annual
report included Mr. Luo Zhihai, Mr. Wang Ping, Mr. Chen
Yongcun, Mr. Weng Jian and Mr. Ng Hoi Leung Leo.
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Directors’ Service Contracts

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has a service contract which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without payment
of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

Changes in Information of Directors

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, there
were changes in the information required to be disclosed
in accordance with paragraphs (a) to (e) and (g) of Rule
13.51(2) of the Listing Rules in the course of the Directors’
term of office.

Mr. Hung Muk Ming, an independent non-executive Director,
resigned as an independent non-executive director of Cinda
International with effect from 1 December 2022.

With effect from 11 November 2022, Mr. Chen Zhiwei, a
non-executive Director, was removed as a non-executive
director of China Fortune. He resigned as a non-executive
director of SouthGobi with effect from 6 December 2022.

Save as the aforesaid, the Company has not been advised
by the Directors of any change in the information required
to be disclosed pursuant to paragraphs (a) to (e) and (g) of
Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules since its last update to the
Shareholders.
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Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and
Short Positions in the Shares, Underlying Shares
and Debentures of the Company

As at 31 December 2022, save as disclosed below, no other
Directors or the chief executives of the Company had any
interests or short positions in any Shares, underlying Shares
or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code:
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FrER s KT BT
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1. The total number of issued Shares as at 31 December 2022 (i.e. 1. 20226128318 B & TR D L & (A
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2. Mr. Chu directly holds 34.06% of the issued shares of Rong 2. KEAEEREREREBRAAR

De Investments Limited (“Rong De”), which in turn holds
66.85% of the issued shares of Zhuguang Holdings, which
in turn holds 100% of the issued shares of Splendid Reach
Limited (“Splendid Reach”), the beneficial owner of such
681,240,022 Shares. Accordingly, Mr. Chu, Rong De and
Zhuguang Holdings are deemed to be interested in the Shares

held by Splendid Reach pursuant to Part XV of the SFO.
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Arrangements to Purchase Shares or Debentures

At no time during Year 2022 or at the end of Year 2022 was
the Company, its parent company or any of its subsidiaries
or fellow subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements to
enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or
any other body corporate, and neither the Directors nor the
chief executives of the Company nor any of their spouse or
children under the age of 18, had any right to subscribe for
the securities of the Company, or had exercised any such
right.

Directors’ Interests in Transactions, Arrangements
or Contracts of Significance

Other than as disclosed in the section headed “Issue of
Convertible Bonds” above, no transactions, arrangements or
contracts of significance to which the Company, its parent
company or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was
a party and in which a Director or his connected entities had
a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at
the end of Year 2022 or at any time during Year 2022.

Management Contracts

No contracts, other than employment contracts, concerning
the management and administration of the whole or any part
of the Company’s business were entered into during Year
2022 or subsisted at the end of Year 2022.

Permitted Indemnity Provision

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, subject to the
statutes, every Director shall be entitled to be indemnified
out of the assets of the Company against all losses or
liabilities which he may sustain or incur in or about the
execution of the duties of his office or otherwise in relation
thereon. The Company has arranged appropriate liability
insurance to indemnify its Directors and officers in respect
of legal actions against them during Year 2022 and such
permitted indemnity provision is still in force as at the date
of this annual report.

Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited
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Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and Short
Positions in the Shares and Underlying Shares of

the Company

As at 31 December 2022, the following persons (other
than the Directors or the chief executives of the Company)
had interests or short positions in the Shares or underlying
Shares, as recorded in the register required to be kept by

the Company under Section 336 of the SFO:

Long position in the Shares:

BROZHFE -

FTERRREAATDRGRAEAERD 28
BmRKRE

B2022%F12A31H M FALX(AREIES
K& TIRABBRIN R S BRI (5 P
ERBEFES RBAEKRA EIB6IEATENA
NAERMAOEEIAE

Approximate
percentage of

Number of issued Shares
Shares (Note 1)
interested HEERT
Name of substantial Shareholders Capacity BEERY RZBED
TERRER 56 ! (Hit1)
China Cinda Asset Management Co., Ltd. Interest of controlled corporations 438,056,000 19.01%
(“China Cinda”) (Note 2)
PEEEEEERROARRA(HERGE]) REGEEER(HiE2)
China Cinda (HK) Holdings Company Limited Interest of a controlled corporation 438,056,000 19.01%
(“Cinda HK”) (Note 2)
PEEE(ER)ERERAR(EERE]) R EERER(WH2)
Regent Star Beneficial owner (Note 2) 438,056,000 19.01%
ERR ERBBANZ2)
Liao Tengjia Interest of controlled corporations (Mote 3) 681,240,022 29.56%
Bl RERIEE R (H23)
Rong De Interest of controlled corporations (Mote 3) 681,240,022 29.56%
R R EBRR (H73)
Zhuguang Holdings Interest of a controlled corporation (Mofe 3) 681,240,022 29.56%
R RELEEER(HL3)
Splendid Reach Beneficial owner (Note 3) 681,240,022 29.56%

ERBAANH3)
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Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and Short
Positions in the Shares and Underlying Shares of
the Company (Continued)

Notes:

1. The total number of issued Shares as at 31 December 2022 (i.e.
2,304,849,611 Shares) has been used for the calculation of
the approximate percentage of shareholdings in the Company.

2. China Cinda directly holds 100% of the issued shares of
Cinda HK, which in turn holds 100% of the issued shares
of Regent Star, the beneficial owner of such 438,056,000
Shares. Therefore, China Cinda and Cinda HK are deemed to
be interested in the Shares held by Regent Star pursuant to
Part XV of the SFO.

3. Mr. Liao Tengjia directly holds 36% of the issued shares of
Rong De, which in turn holds 66.85% of the issued shares of
Zhuguang Holdings, which in turn holds 100% of the issued
shares of Splendid Reach, the beneficial owner of such
681,240,022 Shares. Therefore, Mr. Liao Tengjia, Rong De and
Zhuguang Holdings are deemed to be interested in the Shares
held by Splendid Reach pursuant to Part XV of the SFO.

FERRREAQATARMDREERD 2
BRAR(E)

Maz

1. FR2022F12A31H 2 B 21T 5 4B & (BD
2,304,849,6111%) B AEETE AR A B Z 5 &
BB DL -

2. HFEEEEERGEEBBI00%DEITR
n o MEERBRFEEBRI00%E 17K
5 B 1R 53%438,056,0000% %10 8 B 25k
BACRHt FEEEREETBRESES
N EREAEDI EXVEB AR AR 2 BT B B
DA ERE -

3. EREXLHEFARERZBEETR
5 TR EEHF B BRI 1k66.85% 8 B 1T
f& 4 - ™ B ok #% B #F B Splendid Reach
(681,240,022 R M Ezm B A ) 100%
BTG - Bt - BRELE  BERK
SRR AR IR B 5 K AR E ARG EXVED AR AR
Splendid Reachfi# & &I H#EF s o

Long position in the underlying Shares YRR G2 E
Approximate
Number of percentage of
underlying issued Shares
Shares (Note 1)
interested HEC BT
Name of substantial Shareholders Capacity ARG k2B
TERRER 5t HERG#A (Hit1)
China Cinda Interest of controlled corporations (Mote 2) 193,133,047 (Note 3) 8.38%
hElfEE RELEEER(HE2) (Hi3#3)
Cinda HK Interest of a controlled corporation (Note 2) 193,133,047 (Note 3) 8.38%
B0 RELEEER(HE2) (Hi3#3)
Regent Star Beneficial owner (Note 2) 193,133,047 (Note 3) 8.38%
ER ERBAANH2) (Hi3#3)

Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited
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Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and Short
Positions in the Shares and Underlying Shares of
the Company (Continued)

Notes:

1. The total number of the issued Shares as at 31 December
2022 (i.e. 2,304,849,611 Shares) has been used for the
calculation of the approximate percentage of shareholdings in
the Company.

2. China Cinda directly holds 100% of the issued shares of Cinda
HK, which in turn holds 100% of the issued shares of Regent
Star, the beneficial owner of such 193,133,047 underlying
Shares. Therefore, China Cinda and Cinda HK are deemed
to be interested in the underlying Shares held by Regent Star
pursuant to Part XV of the SFO.

3. These represent unlisted physically settled derivatives of the
Company.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, the
Company had not been notified of any persons (other than
the Directors or the chief executives of the Company) who
had interests or short positions in the Shares and underlying
Shares, which would fall to be disclosed under Section 336
of the SFO.

Annual Confirmation of Independence

The Company has received from each of the independent
non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
The Company considers all of the independent non-executive
Directors to be independent.

FTERRREAATDRGRAEAERD 28
BRAR(E)

Maz

1. FR2022F12A31H 2 B 21T 5 4B & (BD
2,304,849,6111%) B AEETE AR A B Z 5 &
BB DL -

2. HEEFEEAEEFEEEEBSI00%EEITR
% T2 BI#E G 5%193,133,047 A% #E B3 %
MZEXERAZERI00%E BTG °
It RIEEH R EBEEAIEXVE - REIEE
REERBRIERERFHBRG P HES

s o

3. EHEARFELTEDIKITETA -

>

S EXFTIEFEASN - 1R2022F12A31H + A
A EME RN RN REERNPEBRE
BHE M EE GG FEI36EB T AR BN EZE
SRR ZERAL -

/

>

oy
s
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Connected Transactions

On 6 July 2022, the Company (as issuer), the Subscribers
(as subscribers) and Mr. Chu (as guarantor) entered into
the First Amendment Deed to amend certain terms and
conditions of the Convertible Bonds by way of the Proposed
Amendments. On 15 July 2022, the Company (as issuer),
the Subscribers (as subscribers) and Mr. Chu (as guarantor)
entered into the Second Amendment Deed to amend certain
terms and conditions of the First Amendment Deed. As
one of the Subscribers, Regent Star, was a substantia
Shareholder (within the meaning of the Listing Rules) which
held 438,056,000 Shares (representing approximately
19.01% of the issued share capital of the Company) as at
the dates of the First Amendment Deed and the Second
Amendment Deed, Regent Star was a connected person
of the Company pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules. Accordingly, the transactions contemplated under
the First Amendment Deed and the Second Amendment
Deed constituted connected transactions of the Company
which were subject to the reporting, announcement and
independent shareholders’ approval requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. In addition, as the
Convertible Bonds were to be secured by certain assets of
the Group with effect from the first business day immediately
after the date on which all of the conditions precedent under
the First Amendment Deed were fulfilled (i.e. 26 August
2022), the transactions contemplated under the Convertible
Bonds held by Regent Star constituted financial assistance
received by the Company from a connected person of the
Company which was subject to the reporting, announcement
and independent shareholders’ approval requirements
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Further details of
the First Amendment Deed, the Second Amendment Deed
and the Proposed Amendments are set out in the section
headed “Principal terms of the Convertible Bonds” above,
the announcements of the Company dated 6 July 2022, 11
July 2022 and 15 July 2022 and the circular of the Company
dated 5 August 2022.

Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited
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Connected Transactions (Continued)

Save for the above, there were no connected transactions
or continuing connected transactions of the Company that
were not exempt from the annual reporting requirement
in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules during Year 2022 and
the related party transactions as set out in note 35(a) to
the consolidated financial statements did not constitute
connected transactions or continuing connected transactions
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The Directors
confirm that the Company has complied with the disclosure
requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

Buy-Back, Sales or Redemption of Listed Securities

During Year 2022, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries bought back, sold or redeemed any of its listed
securities.

Emolument Policy

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set
up by the Remuneration Committee and is based on their
merit, qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the Directors are decided by the
Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Company’s
operating results, individual performance and comparable
market practices.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of its directors, during
Year 2022 and up to the date of this report, the Company
has maintained sufficient public float of not less than 25% of
the Company’s issued shares as required under the Listing
Rules.

HEXS (&)
B XAt oh - AR BR20224 E A

HBEXSRHEMRERS - BARLE
S LR R E1AAT O F E B IR E U R AR
& MR E35(a) T E I M B 7T X 5T
B EMRRAE4AT IR THEEB R 55
BHERS  EFHR > ARRCEREL™M
HRAFEIAAZTETRERE

EfE - HEXEE LhEE

2022F E A © AR w S EARHE QA&
EIfE - HERBRIARAUER ETHES

B < B

AEERENMERRIHFTMEZESLE
BME - EERBENHIE °

EENME I hFHEZE @KL ERARAN
REXE - BAARR LA LL B HIZER
BEE -
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Major Customers and Suppliers

The Group’s revenue for Year 2022 comprised rental income
from the leasing of properties and dividend income from
listed securities.

The accumulated amount of revenue attributable to the
Group’s five largest customers during Year 2022 was less
than 30% of the Group’s total revenue for Year 2022.

The Group had no supplier during Year 2022 due to the
nature of its principal business activities.

During Year 2022, none of the Directors or any of their close
associates (within the meaning of the Listing Rules) or any
of the Shareholders who, to the knowledge of the Board,
owned more than 5% of the Shares had interest in any of
the Group’s five largest customers.

Key Relationships with Employees, Customers
and Suppliers

The Group recognises its employees as one of the
significant assets of the Group. The Group aims to continue
establishing a caring environment for its employees which
emphasises the personal development of its employees. The
Group organises various social and recreational activities,
including annual dinner and birthday parties, to strengthen
the bonding among its employees and promote their sense
of belonging. During Year 2022, there was no material non-
compliance with relevant laws and regulations that had a
significant impact on the Group relating to the compensation
and dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working hours,
rest periods, equal opportunity, anti-discrimination, and other
benefits and welfare with respect to its employees.

The Group understands that it is important to maintain good
relationships with its tenants in relation to its property leasing
business by continuous interaction with them and being
responsive to their demands. The Group has also established
procedures for handling the complaints from its tenants to
ensure the complaints are dealt with in a prompt and timely
manner. Because of its business nature, the Group does not
rely on any major tenants and no credit terms are granted to
them.

Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited
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Key Relationships with Employees, Customers
and Suppliers (Continued)

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (“MPF Scheme”)
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance
(Chapter 485 of the Laws of Hong Kong) for those
employees who are eligible to participate in the MPF
Scheme. Contributions are made based on a percentage of
the employees’ basic salaries and are charged to profit or
loss as they become payable in accordance with the rules
of the MPF Scheme. The Group’s employer contributions
vest fully with the employees when contributed into the
MPF Scheme. Where employees leave the scheme prior to
the full vesting of the employer’s contributions, the amount
of forfeited contributions cannot be used to reduce the
contributions payable by the Group.

The employees of the Company’s subsidiaries which operate
in Mainland China are required to participate in a central
pension scheme (“Pension Scheme”) operated by the
local municipal government. The subsidiaries are required
to contribute certain percentages of their payroll costs to
the Pension Scheme. The only obligation of the Group
with respect to the Pension Scheme is to pay the ongoing
contributions under the Pension Scheme. The contributions
are charged to profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the Pension Scheme. No
forfeited contribution is available to reduce the contribution
payable by the Group in future years.

The Group is also dedicated to developing good
relationships with its suppliers and business partners to
ensure the stability of it business. The Group reinforces
the business relationships with its suppliers and business
partners by ongoing communication with them in a proactive
and effective manner so as to ensure the timely delivery
of services to the Group and a wide range of potential
investments will be available to the Group at all times.
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Auditor

Ernst & Young retire and a resolution for their reappointment
as auditor of the Company will be proposed at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board
Chu Hing Tsung
Chairman, Co-Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director

Hong Kong, 30 March 2023

Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited
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e
EY:

To the members of
Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements
of Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out
on pages 116 to 265, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2022, and
the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2022, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

>
REEBRZEREEER QB IMRR
(REEZMA LB R F])

g

dalt

R (AT R E M) B EZINERE
116 E EFE265 B IRERRIERERBRA
A(ERAR REMBRAR(HAE E5£E])
WEREe M BEEHE  AEEMBREEER
2022F12 A31 A W 4R & B IS AR L = R A&
EZALFENRABER  KA2EKE
® RERZEDERREARERELR N
RIGEMBHREMTE 2R ESFERHE

3Eo

BMRE  ZEREVBRERCREAES
SR A ([BASFEAE ) BHEACEEN
BREEAN([BEMBERELER D EEMF
itk &EER2022F12A831H 254
MR AREBEEZBIEFEREGEMBEREA
MEGABRESRE - Y BREB D RIEH
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Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’'s responsibilities for the audit of
the consolidated financial statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’'s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
(the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Material uncertainty related to going concern

We draw attention to Note 2.1 to the consolidated financial
statements which indicates notwithstanding that the Group
had net current assets of approximately HK$2,426 million
as at 31 December 2022, there are identified events
or conditions that indicate the existence of a material
uncertainty related to going concern, when considering
that the Group’s current portion of interest-bearing bank
and other borrowings and convertible bonds amounted to
approximately HK$1,431 million in aggregate while its cash
and bank balances amounted to approximately HK$98
million. This, along with other matters as set forth in Note
2.1 to the consolidated financial statements, may cast
significant doubt about the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this
matter.

Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited
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Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period.
In addition to the matters described in the Material
uncertainty related to going concern section of our report,
we have determined the matters described below to be
key audit matters to be communicated in our report.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit
of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and
in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters. For each matter below,
our description of how our audit addressed the matter is
provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the
Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report, including in
relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included
the performance of procedures designed to respond to our
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements. The results of our audit
procedures, including the procedures performed to address
the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on
the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

HREETSER
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Key audit matter

HREITER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Bz EtNEEFARETER

Valuation of investment properties and leasehold land and buildings under property, plant and

equipment

REWHERYF BERRETHELHREFZ14E

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had investment
properties and leasehold land and buildings under
property, plant and equipment, which were stated
at fair value, with an aggregate carrying amount
of approximately HK$2,524 million. The aggregate
carrying amount of the investment properties
and leasehold land and buildings represented
approximately 25% of the total assets of the Group as
at 31 December 2022.

R2022F12A310 - EXEREFREMEARDE -
WEREZEE THEET MEREFHREBEAERZAN
18#92,524,000,00078 7L 7Bk - 202212 A31H » &
EMEARBE L RBFHREELRGE EXEER
BEXI25% °

The Group engaged an external valuer to determine
the fair value of the investment properties and
leasehold land and buildings at the end of the
reporting period.
ERERNREHREBIN L ERMETREWEULME
L REFHRRE -

We identified this as a key audit matter because
the aggregate carrying amount of the investment
properties and leasehold land and buildings was
significant to the Group and subjective judgements
were made by management in determining the
assumptions and inputs of the valuation.
HRREMEARBE T M REFNRABAEYE &
SEMEEEKN  BERBENEEMEZ KRR RE AR
R EL EE G - RIS AR ETFIE -

Related disclosures are included in notes 2.5, 3, 13
and 14 to the consolidated financial statements.

HERERNGE M EHRRMT2.5 3 183Kk14 -

Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited

REBERZEREEER A

The following procedures were performed to
address the identified key audit matter:

BAEECHAIERETFTRIEFOT

° We obtained and reviewed the valuation
reports prepared by the external valuer
engaged by the Group.

BAESIERN SHREBEZINBEERD PR
Bl 7 HERE -

° We assessed the external valuer’s qualification,
experience and expertise and considered their
objectivity and independence.
BAFHEIND A BE - KB REEMH
W EEERHERIB M -

° We involved our internal valuation specialists

to assist us in the assessment of the
valuation methodologies applied and the key
assumptions and estimates adopted in the
valuation, and performed benchmarking on
the value of the properties to the transaction
prices of other comparable properties on a
sample basis.
BV E A B EZ K BB AP AT T E
MEMAZ METEARAERANZ EERE R
Bt WAEMAELEMEI RSB RELE -
BZEMEZBE -

° We assessed the adequacy of the disclosures
of the valuation of the investment properties
and leasehold land and buildings under
property, plant and equipment in the
consolidated financial statements.

B EGEEMBERERARENERDE - BF
LEEBETHET B FEHEERENTRE -
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Key audit matter

HREITER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Bz EtNEEFARETER

Recoverability assessment of amounts due from an associate and joint ventures and loan

receivables

TR —FBERAREELENURERE 2 KB

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had amounts
due from an associate and joint ventures and loan
receivables with an aggregate carrying amount
of approximately HK$3,116 million, representing
approximately 31% of the total assets of the Group.
The expected credit losses recognised for the year
ended 31 December 2022 amounted to approximately
HK$219 million.

20226128310 - ESEEER—FRBERAIRAE
10 3 A K JE W & SR A9 BR B 42 1B 49 /& 3,116,000,000
B h BERBEREEMNLNZI% - B E20225F12H
B1HIFE - MREREEEEL/R219,000,000% 7T ©

Management applied the general approach in
assessing the associated credit risks and exposures
and engaged an external valuer in determining the
allowance for expected credit losses.
ERERA—RA AT EEREERRRRARIKO - X
LRSI ILERE ETRREE B IRRE -

We identified this as a key audit matter because the
aggregate carrying amount of the amounts due from
an associate and joint ventures and loan receivables
was significant to the Group and subjective
judgements were made by management and the
external valuer in determining the allowance for
expected credit losses.
HREN—KEEE R R LA S EERIARBRERDNER
HERAFEYE BEXEEMSEER  BERRERINMLE
RIEE FEHE A FTRAEEBIRRE - WERMET
AR ERTFIE -

Related disclosures are included in notes 2.5, 3
and 17, 18 and 20 to the consolidated financial
statements.

AR BN GE U EHRRME2.5 317 ~ 1820 °

The following procedures were performed to
address the identified key audit matter:

BARECHAIERETFTRIEFNOT

° We obtained and reviewed the expected credit
loss calculations prepared by the external
valuer engaged by the Group.

BMEGIERN SHREEZINBEERD PR
Y AREEBEFEE -

° We assessed the external valuer’s qualification,
experience and expertise and considered their
objectivity and independence.
BAFHEIND A BE - KB REEMH
W ERIKE 2 BB RIE M -

° We involved our internal valuation
specialists to assist us in the assessment
of the methodologies applied and the key
assumptions and estimates adopted in the
expected credit loss calculations.

BB BEABEEZR BRI AT EEHIE
EEEMAZAERRAZ EERERMGE -

° We assessed the adequacy of the disclosures
of the recoverability assessment of amounts
due from an associate and joint ventures and
loan receivables in the consolidated financial
statements.
BAFHERGREMBERRARBERE —RBEE R
Al R A &R EFRA R EWE R AT E T h 2 78 2
Mo
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Other information included in the Annual Report

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual Report, other than the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on
the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited

REBERZEREEER A

BAXFHRNWEMER

ERAMEFAHHEMENAR - HBLEHE
BAFEHRABHER - BETBREEE MR
= BB ZBE RS o

BB SEaMBHRRNERL MREEMBE
£ PR EREEMEMBEREATRA

MY EERE M am ©

HBARMBEEMBRRNES  RANE
TEMEEMEN  AEMEREF - ZEE
MEHEEREEMBHRRIRMESTB
RAMERNBEIAEEREEREUTFE
BERERBANBER - ERERMAZAITAHT
B MRBEMARBEMENBEANERK
o BB EREXEE - £ETE - B
BAEARE -
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Responsibilities of the directors for the consolidated
financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued
by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors of the Company are responsible for assessing the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors of
the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit
Committee in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing
the Group’s financial reporting process.

ESUREVBBRRARENER

BERRERAAARBEETESA DG HEM
AKE BB RS LR ) REFE R BGGI B E
EEMPENGEEUBRE  UHEEAS
REFEMBHRRNEE N FEARKEFK
B8 5R T 28 2R ) B K 85 RR BRI BT 75 1O 79 B 22

BE -

ERBRAMBHRRE - EARESAT
i BERERFEQLEMEN YEERBR
THRREESBCEARNER  URERF
BRERSFER RIF BERAREREFE
# BEEEFRAFLLE  HFIELMER
MBERTR -

RAEEHMEZZESHY BEE
BEEENMHHREERE -

o o
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited
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BRBEARBETREMBRRABZEE

ZFNER  RHSAMBHRIEEBRES T
T77E i 0 BRAF Sk B AR T B 2 2 B SA RR Rt
BEAERFE YHABERMERNEE
B & o RIBE B R A RFH40505 - B
Em BT(ESBE)RE BRIz RIER
B - RATERARENARAEMNHE
i A8 ESAEEREE -

EERBERKFHRE  BETERERR
(BERBEADETHE  EX—EXH
R RS B RE IR o SRR A A A K
AESEEER S - AR B RN S IEFAMIE
ATAFEERERBEAVBERRELZ
RERTER - RIRR REASERRL -

ERB(EBBRIERDETRIEES -
ZMERTERAE  RETERRERRE
JE o FAPITR :

o FRIMFH A BERRFFRERMEBERS
MHmRFEERERBOLH AR -
FERITEEF AR E LR R -
REBFRIMEENETERE  (ERRK
fIZ R AR - AN EFFATI ALY Kk
wo mE BRER ERRL - %
BRARESZ £ - FIREHBRER
FEME R EAFERRANER DA
BERI R M ERMN B AR RRA A
[\ -
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements (Continued)

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

RBMR BT RSN BRRAB2EE

R AR B AT ARV A BRI B - IARRGHE
EMEERF  BEENLIYE SKE
REEBINAREERER -

FHEE SR A ST BRI E M RIE
HEEH A MER R EN SR -

HEFRAFELCLESTERNREN
tEL A& - RIBFIERNETRE  #
ERAFHERSFHEIBABEANERNT
T KMAEERY ERENG
BREBNEEZTARE - WRRMIR
REFEEBATHETEN  NELEERHK
A& R IREERE IR ARAMBRE
FHERERE - REEREIRETR -
AIRMEERRFEEREER - HFIW
MmN ZBERE B LRGN E
FHRE o AW - RERBEKIBRAEE
B EEETREFELE -

HEHF A BERRNEEBINETRA - &
BNAR  BEEE  ARKSMBE®R
EETFERRRZMER -
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements (Continued)

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence and to communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited
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BRBEARBETREMBRRABZEE
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e I BEREASERAERTADHONE
SEREDRTR - BEMNETRE - UE
HEAMBRRERER - RMAAR
BE - BEEMATEENEZTE &
MARBEFERAEZIEE -

BREMER)N  RMALBEXZEQBEBTE
SREEIEETEE  REARH  EAEGE
% BRERBAEFHER AT
ERIEARRE -

BAPERNEZZBEQRXENR  SHBAHRME
NEBMBL MM EEERERE R - L AR
BB A AR RMER AT ERME
VR AREMEMEIER - UREERD
BT - REUSHREE NTTE S 85 1t o
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements (Continued)

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Chow Chi Chung.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
27/F, One Taikoo Place

979 King’s Road

Quarry Bay, Hong Kong

30 March 2023

RBMR BT RSN BRRAB2EE
(%)

HARBYZBMBENETREEGBAR
PEI -

RAGTHER B
HEDIED

B RF
REBITI

A —REE274E
202343 H30H
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFITOR LOSS & 1B & &

For the year ended 31 December 2022

B2 20229F 12531 HILFE
2022 2021
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
HtaF FET FET
Rental income Ha2UA 5] 96,884 87,376
Direct operating expenses HELEHRY (3,542) (5,910)
93,342 81,466
Dividend income from listed securities AR B U A 5 136 102
Other income, gains and losses HaA - e R EE & 467,687 348,441
Change in fair value of financial assets AR EEE B EE
at fair value through profit or loss STAERMEREEZ
RNATEEE (166,108) (102,689)
Change in fair value of derivative PTEeMIAZ A ARESE
financial instruments (22,280) (15,203)
Impairment of financial assets, net T REEREFE (251,580) (950)
Administrative expenses 1T E R (181,456) (267,285)
Change in fair value of investment "EMEZ AREEE
properties (208,156) 31,814
Finance costs B 7% & R 7 (530,034) (410,008)
Share of profits/(losses) of: BETEZ2%EA (E8):
— associates — & AR 2,050 (45,380)
— joint ventures — AELE 1,130 (1,417,546)
Loss before taxation bR Al BT 1R 6 (795,269) (1,797,238)
Taxation 18 10 52,611 (15,256)
Loss for the year FHNEE (742,658) (1,812,494)
Loss attributable to: A& T I ETE
— Owners of the Company — AREEAA (734,563) (1,452,609)
— Non-controlling interests — JEERE (8,095) (359,885)
(742,658)  (1,812,494)
LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE #ARZEERSEAEN
TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS &R EE (LUBLFIR)
OF THE COMPANY (in HK cents) 12
— Basic — B (31.87) (63.02)
— Diluted — g (31.87) (63.02)

Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited

REBERZEREEER A



CONSOTDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME e 2 H W &= R

For the year ended 31 December2022

B2 2022F 12531 HILFE
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
LOSS FOR THE YEAR FAREE (742,658) (1,812,494)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS)/! EREMZ2E(EE) WE
INCOME FOR THE YEAR
Other comprehensive (loss)/income BHTEFOEREE
that may be reclassified to profit or Hi2mE(EE) ks :
loss in subsequent periods:
Exchange differences on translation MEBINEREECIER =58
of foreign operations (466,819) 134,363
Total other comprehensive (loss)/ BERAEHOBEERZ
income that may be reclassified to Hibh2m(ER), IWssasE
profit or loss in subsequent periods (466,819) 134,363
Other comprehensive (loss)/income BEI O &N EEER 2
that will not be reclassified to profit Hip2m(EE), W
or loss in subsequent periods:
(Loss)/gain arising on property EEWME(EER), kR
revaluation (17,596) 12,632
Income tax effect FrisBis & 3,353 (261)
Net other comprehensive (loss)/income &HiRAIEFHHIEE B
that will not be reclassified to profit ZEMEE(EE),
or loss in subsequent periods FEE (14,243) 12,371
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS)/ & xHEMb2mE(FE), 1k
INCOME FOR THE YEAR, (BRBI%)
NET OF TAX (481,062) 146,734
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE LOSS FRAXHEHEBERERE
FOR THE YEAR (1,223,720) (1,665,760)
Total comprehensive loss attributable to: &L 2 E 1B 42%E -
— Owners of the Company — KRElER A (1,208,947) (1,328,410)
— Non-controlling interests — FEIERR R (14,773) (337,350)
(1,223,720) (1,665,760)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION % 4 Bf & ik R 3=

At 31 December 2022

Ro022F 12531 H
2022 2021
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
HtaF FET FET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FEREBEE
Investment properties KEME 13 2,309,146 2,730,045
Property, plant and equipment ME - BENEE 14 238,199 271,659
Right-of-use assets FREEE 15 43,729 51,773
Other intangible assets HithmpEE 16 = 2,814
Interests in associates XN 17 309,475 335,507
Interests in joint ventures BETEER 18 1,506,247 1,568,397
Amount due from an associate FEU— KBt N A 17 439,486 560,690
Amounts due from joint ventures EWELDER 18 - 1,747,964
Financial assets at fair value through AR EGTEAHE
profit or loss ARG EREE 19 1,640 167,689
Total non-current assets FERBEELE 4,847,922 7,436,538
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Trade receivables FE U AR =X 21 3,934 4,377
Deposits, prepayments and other e BNRKEMmE
receivables Wk 22 908,352 714,075
Amounts due from joint ventures USSR ER 18 430,437 61,078
Loan receivables FEWE R 20 2,246,377 2,239,727
Financial assets at fair value through LA AR MBS HHE
profit or loss SFABENEREE 19 809,429 952,679
Derivative financial instruments TESMTE 27 - 22,280
Pledged bank deposits BERIRIRITIE K 23 - 24,450
Restricted bank balance PR B SRTT 4B &R 23 674,814 =
Cash and bank balances e R/ITEAEH 23 97,517 116,755
Total current assets mMBNEERE 5,170,860 4,135,421
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Accrued charges, rental deposits and  EtER - KRS R
other payables o Ath FE 5K 24 1,204,446 405,116
Interest-bearing bank and other AT EIRTT R E AL fE R
borrowings 25 1,388,974 541,037
Taxation payable FEfSFIIR 107,335 109,457
Lease liabilities HEAR 15 2,045 2,048
Convertible bonds AR RES 26 41,712 1,301,494
Total current liabilities mBBERE 2,744,512 2,359,152
NET CURRENT ASSETS BERBEE 2,426,348 1,776,269
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT EERERABAEE
LIABILITIES 7,274,270 9,212,807

Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited
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CONSOEIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 4= & B & AR SR &

At 31 December 2022

Ro022F12H31H
2022 2021
Notes HK$’000 HK$°'000
HtaF FET FET
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FREBEME
Interest-bearing bank and other FHRRIT R EMER
borrowings 25 2,541,766 3,193,628
Lease liabilities HEaRE 15 45,958 52,404
Deferred tax liabilities BEEIBEE 28 192,033 248,542
Total non-current liabilities EmEBERE 2,779,757 3,494,574
Net assets FEE 4,494,513 5,718,233
EQUITY &
Equity attributable to owners of the 77 T)#H A FE{L B4
Company
Share capital R 29 3,626,781 3,626,781
Reserves HiE 30 395,616 1,604,563
4,022,397 5,231,344
Non-controlling interests JEITRRRE RS 472,116 486,889
Total equity gt 1E 4,494,513 5,718,233
Chen Yongcun Luo Zhihai
BRkE EES
Director Director
EE £

Ann;al}_;:epgr;igéé 1 1 9



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY iR &R 2 B X

For the year ended 31 December 2022

B E2022F 12831 HIF F/&

Attributable to owners of the Company

NG 2PN
Asset Non-
Share revaluation Translation  Retained controlling Total
capital reserve reserve profits  Sub-total interests equity
BE FER
R Eftfie  EXRE  RERA gt Bi  RESE
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000
AT AT AT AT AT AT AT
(note 29)
(Wiz29)
At 1 January 2021 202111 3,626,781 239,948 337,883 2,356,142 6,559,754 824,239 7,383,993
Loss for the year EnEE - - — (1452609 (1,452,609 (359,885  (1,812,494)
Other comprehensive income for the year: ENEMEENE
Fxchange differences on translation BEBNERESE,
of foreign operations EiER = - 111,828 - 111,828 22,535 134,363
Gain arising on property revaluation, ERNREE MR
net of tax (Bt = 12,371 - - 12,371 - 12,371
Total comprehensive income(loss) FhrENE/
for the year (BE)Es - 12,371 111,828 (1,452,600) (1,328410)  (337,350)  (1,665,760)
At 31 December 2021 and 1 January 2022 P01 E12A31A R
20205118 3,626,781 252,319* 449,711* 902,533 5,231,344 436,889 5,718,233
Loss for the year EnER - - - (194563)  (734,569) (8,005 (742,658)
Other comprehensive loss for the year: EREMZERE
Fxchange differences on translation REBNEREE
of foreign operations EiER = = (460,141) - (460,141) (6,678) (466,819
Loss arising on property revaluation, ERNEELBE
net of tax (B = (14,243) - - (14,243) - (14,243)
Total comprehensive loss for the year ERrEERLE - (14,243) (460,141) (734,563)  (1,208,947) (14,773)  (1,223,720)
At 31 December 2022 1 2022512A31R 3,626,781 238,076* (10,430)* 167,970 4,022,397 472,116 4,494,513
* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves * ZERBREBRERAMBRARARFH

of HK$395,616,000 (2021: HK$1,604,563,000) in the

consolidated statement of financial position.

Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited

REBERZEREEER A

1,604,563,000/87T) ©

4746 #1395,616,000% 0 (2021 4F -



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH-FLOWS &S HERE R

Year ended 31 December 2022
Bt 220220 12831 HILFE

2022 2021
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
HfaE FET TAET

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING RK&EXRE4AESHE

ACTIVITIES
Loss before tax BRELATE B (795,269) (1,797,238)
Adjustments for: X
Share of results of associates BAEEEE AR FEE (2,050) 45,380
Share of results of joint ventures Hhee XS (1,130) 1,417,546
Depreciation of property, plant and Y BERREITE
equipment 14 13,527 12,244
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREESERE 15 3,824 3,980
Impairment loss on other intangible Himp EERESE
assets 16 2,814 2,807
Finance costs B8R 530,034 410,008
Dividend income from listed securities i zEHAR S U A 5 (136) (102)
Interest income B YA (455,424) (289,600)
Net loss on disposal of property, HEWE - BE N RE
plant and equipment ZEBRFRR g 59 408
Change in fair value of investment KEWMEZ N EE
properties 13 208,156 (31,814)
Change in fair value of financial LWAREGFEAHE
assets at fair value through profit SFABENEMEEY
or loss NAEEE) 6 166,108 102,689
Change in fair value of derivative MESBMIAZAAE
financial instruments e 6 22,280 15,203
Impairment of financial assets, net CREEREFE 6 251,580 950
Write-off of loan and other JFE 5 350 T EL A JE WS RR DA
receivables and an amount due K2 U — SRt & A R 5K
from an associate Z s 6 7,835 37,394
(47,792) (70,145)
Decrease/(increase) in financial assets A EE S B HEH) A
at fair value through profit or loss BENEREERLD (%
) 67,701 (302,937)
Decrease in trade receivables R UL BR TR > 443 2,940
Decrease/(increase) in deposits, B FANR R EMmER TR
prepayments and other receivables w (HEhn) 25,562 (138,337)
Increase in accrued charges, rental EETER iR MEMW
deposits and other payables FEAST ZIE AN 100,157 117,956

Ann;a%l:i:epgr;igéé 1 21



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 8 e R E &

Year ended 31 December 2022

B2 20229F 12531 HILFE
2022 2021
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
Hat FET FET
Cash generated from/(used in) EEIES (A2
operations He 146,071 (390,523)
Dividend received B B 136 102
Interest paid EARFLE (655,783) (336,541)
Tax paid BT R (2,162) (2,624)
Net cash flows used in operating REXEBFAFRERE
activities (511,738) (729,586)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING REZKFBREARE
ACTIVITIES
Interest received 2 F B 157,587 131,096
Purchase of items of property, plant BAME  WENXE
and equipment (346) (20,321)
Advance of loan receivables B REKER (1,386,864) (1,844,250)
Receipt of loan receivables U B I B 2R 1,087,346 1,077,728
Acquisition of a subsidiary Wi — B A A 31 - (3,594)
Advance to an associate B —REEE QDT - (16,511)
Repayment from/(advance to) joint BENEZER(BF)
ventures 1,263,405 (721,524)
Capital injection to an associate M—KEERAREE = (293,399)
Capital injection to a joint venture M—RXEELEITE (68,589) (24,450)
Decrease/(increase) in pledged BRBEFTRLD,(3Em)
deposits 24,450 (697)
Net cash flows from/(used in) investing &% &%%HmE, (FTE)Z
activities FHRERE 1,076,989 (1,715,922)

Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited

REBERZEREEER A



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH-FLOWS fR & 3 &

Year ended 31 December 2022

B R

B E2022F 12531 HILFE
2021
Note HK$’000 HK$°'000
F3 FHET FIET
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING AEXKMBEHEERE
ACTIVITIES
Other loans raised HWERGE 578,611 538,648
Repayment of other loans EEEMER (159,419) (279,076)
New bank loans FIRTTE R 100,336 2,139,364
Repayment of bank loans BERITER (24,636) (610,636)
Principal portion of lease payments HMEMKZARSED (2,920) -
Settlement of convertible bonds BEMBRRES (1,108,288) =
Net cash flows (used in)/from financing BEXX(FTA),/ A5 2%
activities REME (616,316) 1,788,300
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND ReRBESEERIDFE
CASH EQUIVALENTS (51,065) (657,208)
Cash and cash equivalents at Re R eFEFVEE
beginning of year 116,755 769,767
Effect of foreign exchange rate INESTE R EB) o B - JFE
changes, net 31,827 4,196
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT R4 RESZEERESE
END OF YEAR 97,517 116,755
ANALYSIS OF THE BALANCES OF RE&RBESZEARSM
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances WL NIRRT 23 97,517 116,755

Ann;al}gl:%:epgr;igéé 1 23
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4 4 Bt ¥ R & Mi 5%

For the year ended 31 December 2022

B2 20220F 12831 HILFE
1. Corporate and Group Information

Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited
(the “Company”) is a public limited liability company
incorporated in Hong Kong and its shares are listed on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). The registered office and principal place
of business of the Company are located at Suite 4901,
49th Floor, Office Tower, Convention Plaza, 1 Harbour
Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

The Company is an investment holding company and is
engaged in property investment and securities trading.
The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
as the “Group”) are principally engaged in property
leasing and investments.

Information about subsidiaries

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are

RAREEESR

REBFEREBER AR ([ARAE])
BE—RRBEBAMK LN ABRERA
A ERODREABERSAER AR
([BERFT)) £ - RAGRIGFMIEER
FEZEEMBAMU AT B ETBEE
1RERESHAKNEINEIQNIE -

ARAR/—FKREERRA - REWE
REMBHEE - ARAIREKB QA
(BRI AEE D TEXENEHEER
BEXRK -

MEARER

ARANEEHBARFHEOT :

as follows:
Place of incorporation/ Nominal value of issued and Equity interest attributable
Company name registration and operations  paid-up/registered capital to the Company Principal activities
AR B/ BEREEH BRARMR/HRRAERA RAAEERTER £33
Direct Indirect
ER i
Twin Sparkle Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100% — Property holding and
investment
RMEERAR 3 2T FENERIE
Real China Development Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100% — Property holding and
investment
FRERERAT Bk BT GEHES T

Noda International Investment (Guangzhou)

Co., Limited®" (the “PRC")/Mainland China

HEERRE(RM) BRAF® REARAAE(4E])/  ARH4000000007
R
Hongda International Investment (Guangzhou) PRC/Mainland China RMB500,000,000
Co., Limitet®"
LEERRE(RNARAT® E /B NRE500,000,0007

Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited

REBERZEREEER A

the People’s Republic of China  RMB400,000,000

- 100%  Investment

100%  Investment



NOTES TO-THE CONSOLIDATED FINANGIALSTATEMENTS 42 & B & 3R R M 5

For the year ended 31 December2022

B2 2022F 12531 HILFE
1. Corporate and Group Information (Continued) 1. AARKEEER(Z)
Information about subsidiaries (Continued) MELARER(Z)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are

as follows: (Continued)

Place of incorporation/ Nominal value of issued and

Equity interest attributable

RRAFNEEMBARFBWT : (&)

Company name registration and operations  paid-up/registered capital to the Company Principal activities
RS i/ BRREEH L BRARME/ARRAEE KDREERAER IERH
Direct Indirect
BE B
Silver Grant International Investment Hong Kong HK$1,000 100% —  Investment holding
Management Limited
PRERREEEARAR B 1,000/87C RERR
Bejjng Runda International Investment PRC/Mainland China RMB100,000,000 — 100%  Investment
Management Limited*"
FRREEARREERERATY E /B NE100,000,0007 e
Silver Grant International Investment (Guangzhou) ~ PRG/Mainland China RMB200,000,000 - 100%  Investment holding
Co., Limited*®*
BRERRE (BN ARAT™ /AR NB200,000,0007 REBR
Guangzhou Runsui No.2 Investment Partnership  PRG/Mainland China N/A = 87.25%  Corporate management
(Limited Partnership|™ sevice
EMER_SRAAEAR(BRAR) e/ HE M iy ki EERRE
Silver Grant International Holding (Guangzhou) ~ PRG/Mainland China RMB500,000,000 - 100%  Investment
Co., Limited"
BEARER(ENFRAT E /B NE500,000,0007 e
Guangzhou Runfu No.9 Investment Partnership ~ PRG/Mainland China NA - 100%  Non-performing asset
(Limited Partnership) investment
BNEENERAR LR (RRA)" e/ E M TR TREERE
Beihai Mao Yuan Investment Co., Limited** PRC/Mainland China RMB50,000,000 - 100%  Investment
TARTREBRAR e/ AER AR$50,000,0007C RE
Yinjian Energy Trading (Guangzhou) Co., Limited  PRC/Mainland China RMB500,000,000 - 100%  Trading
FRVRES BN ERAT" e/ AER AR$500,000,00072 g5
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4 4 Bt ¥ R & Mi 5%

For the year ended 31 December 2022

BF220227F 1231 AL F/E
1. Corporate and Group Information (Continued) 1. QEAREEERE)
Information about subsidiaries (Continued) MELARER(Z)
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are RRAFMEZEMBRABFBLOT (&)

as follows: (Continued)

Place of incorporation/ Nominal value of issued and Equity interest attributable
Company name registration and operations  paid-up/registered capital to the Company Principal activities
G i/ BRREEA Y BEARMR/ ARRAEE KAREERARS TERH
Direct Indirect
BE B
Taizhou Yinjian Energy Investment Co., Limited*"  PRG/Mainland China RMB100,000,000 = 100%  Environmental conservation
and renewable energy
investment
PSRV EREERAT i/ HER ARE100,000,0007 RERERBENRRE
Tai Zhou Dong Thai Petrochemical Company PRG/Mainland China RMB1,664,089,268 = 68.07%  Investment holding and
Limited** investment
FNRFRIERA D /AR NRE1,664,089,2687 REBRRRE
Konson Investment Limited Hong Kong HK$100 = 70%  Investment holding
AEREERAR B 1007 RERR
East Gate (Beiing) Property Management PRC/Mainland China US$100,413,500 - 100%  Property development
Co., Ltd*®" and investment
FRERNFERERAT /AR 100,413, 500£7C NEERIRE
Bejjng Ju Fu Real Estate Development Company ~ PRG/Mainland China RMB105,000,000 - 99.05%  Property development
Limited® and investment
FREREHERLERAD" e/ pE A ARH105,000,00070 NERERRE
# Registered as domestic limited liability companies under i BEFEERIMABEANEGREER
the PRC law. Al e
@ Registered as wholly-foreign-owned enterprise under the @ BEFBZZFMANEZEHEA R
PRC law. Al e
* The convertible bonds of the Group are secured by * AR E 2 AT AR (B 5 DA B % BT R
certain share charges in respect of the equity interests N AIIRRER A T IR WL R (P 5
in these subsidiaries (note 26). 26) °
» The English names of these companies represent the " AR ARTMERE FEXEN - %
best effort made by management of the Company to ERRMNEXABIARRERER
directly translate their Chinese names as they did not BRAENHERXBHEEEMS -

register any official English names.

1 26 Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited
REFBEZEREEERAQAF



NOTES TO-THE CONSOLIDATED FINANGIALSTATEMENTS 42 & B & 3R R M 5

For the year ended 31 December2022

Bl 2202212731 Hi1FF/Z
1. Corporate and Group Information (Continued)

2.1

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

* Registered as limited partnership company under the
PRC law.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally
affected the results for the reporting year or formed a
substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To
give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion
of the directors, result in particulars of excessive
length.

Basis of Presentation

As at 31 December 2022, notwithstanding that
the Group had net current assets of approximately
HK$2,426 million, the Group’s interest-bearing bank
and other borrowings and convertible bonds with an
aggregate carrying amount of approximately HK$1,431
million are due to be repayable within the next 12
months while its cash and bank balances amounted
to approximately HK$98 million. In addition, during the
year ended 31 December 2022, the Group’s borrowing
with a carrying amount of approximately HK$198
million has not been repaid according to the scheduled
repayment date and remained outstanding as at
31 December 2022. As at the date of approval of these
consolidated financial statements, the Group has been
actively negotiating with the lender for an extension
of the repayment date of the aforesaid borrowing. Up
to the date of approval of these consolidated financial
statements, the Group has settled interest relating to
the outstanding borrowing and has not received any
demand on immediate repayment of the borrowing.

2.1

RNAREBMER(E)
MEARER(E)

* REBTFEEZEMASEREBLE -

ERBINEERARIBZEAEELRR
EEEXEIERAKEFEEE K
DEOARRBIMBRA - EFRA - BHt
HA M B AR ITEEREBNIT
£ o

BEAREEN2022F12 831 B H 7 &
& EFEHY 52,426,000,000% 70+ HE
A& E AR E & E %9 %1,431,000,0007%8
TCHYET BUERTT M B At 8 FUA R AT AR (B
HFANRKRT—EAARNEE  MEARS
K 88 17 4 #4 49 598,000,000/ 7T © 1Lt
SN RELE2022F12A31H IEF X -
7~ & B BR ™ {& £9198,000,000/% 7T 2
EBRAERBRBTERBHEE  BR
202212 A1 A ARIEE - HEH K
ZERAVBHRERER AEE—EH
ER gz BB HRBEEERA
EITER - AR ERSRAVHRE
EH AEEDABTHRAEEEKREH
BFE - B ERBCEEMAIREREER
HEK o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4 4 Bt ¥ R & Mi 5%

For the year ended 31 December 2022
B2 20229F 12531 HILFE

2.1 Basis of Presentation (Continued) 21 E2IEEE)

In view of the above circumstances, the directors
of the Company have given careful consideration to
the Group’s future liquidity requirements, operating
performance and available sources of financing in
assessing the Group’s ability to continue operating as
a going concern. The following plans and measures are
formulated to manage the working capital and improve
the financial position of the Group:

()  The Group will continue to implement measures to
speed up the timing of collection of outstanding
loan receivables and interest receivables;

(i)  The Group will continue to take measures
to expedite the disposal of financial asset
investments, including equity investments and
non-performing assets portfolio; and

(i)  The Group will continue its negotiations with the
lenders of certain bank and other borrowings or
other financial institutions on the refinancing of
the borrowings.

The directors of the Company have reviewed
the Group’s cash flow projections prepared by
management, which cover a period of not less than
twelve months from 31 December 2022. They are
of the opinion that, taking into account the above-
mentioned plans and measures, the Group will have
sufficient working capital to finance its operations and
to meet its financial obligations as and when they
fall due. Accordingly, the directors of the Company
are satisfied that it is appropriate to prepare the
consolidated financial statements of the Group on a
going concern basis.

Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited

REBERZEREEER A

ERLAER - ARREFEFEAE
EiSELLRE R CEHFAZEARE
ARRBESHER  KEXELARE
ERR - REELEESIHNEAEHE
BARSAOR - B HITE LA T AT 8 R FE i

() 7GR A A BRERE 3 DA SN IR IR
[ K 1838 0 FE W R B e M A B
MR E

(i) 7GR [ At A BROEREE 6 DA DN R BE
ETHEERE  BREBRERE
ETREEMASE R

(iy AEBEHEERERBRE RS
TRITREMERZERARE

A R AT TRER -

AAREECEMEREAMRERESR
2022F 12 A31A RN LR+ =@ A &
MANAEERSREED - FERE -
KEE TS RER  NEERES
nREEEeRAEERBEESRETT
HEHMNMBET - At - NARES
EMRFBECEREERENEBNGE
MBHREBEE -



NOTES TO-THE CONSOLIDATED FINANGIALSTATEMENTS 42 & B & 3R R M 5

For the year ended 31 December2022
B2 2022F 12531 HILFE

2.1

2.2

Basis of Presentation (Continued)

Notwithstanding the above, there are inherent
uncertainties as to whether the Group is able to achieve
its plans and measures as described above. Whether
the Group will be able to generate adequate cash flows
to continue as a going concern would depend on (i)
the successful and timely implementation of the plans
and measures to speed up the timing of collection of
outstanding loan receivables and interest receivables; (ii)
the successful and timely implementation of the plans
for the disposal of financial asset investments; and (iii)
the successful obtaining of new sources of financing as
and when needed.

Should the Group be unable to achieve the above-
mentioned plans and measures, the Group may be
unable to continue to operate as a going concern,
in which case adjustments would have to be made
to adjust the values of the Group’s assets to their
recoverable amounts, to provide for any further liabilities
which might arise and to reclassify non-current assets
and non-current liabilities as current assets and current
liabilities, respectively. The effects of these adjustments
have not been reflected in these consolidated financial
statements.

Basis of Preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) (which include all Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”), accounting principles generally accepted in
Hong Kong and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
They have been prepared under the historical
cost convention, except for investment properties,
leasehold land and buildings under property, plant and
equipment, financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss and derivative financial instruments, which have
been measured at fair value. These financial statements
are presented in Hong Kong dollars and all values are
rounded to the nearest thousand (HK$'000) except
when otherwise indicated.

2.1

2.2

2IEEE)

BE LXl - AEBEREERE bt
AEIRERINDFEZBERNE N EES
R AEEREELTHRERENT
BRRERBBURR « ()ATh 8 K B B 1 N
PR [B] K 252 e U 5 3R K FE M) B R 5
B2 5T 8l R dEht ¢ (i) D) 8 R 81T
ETREEREE - R(i)EF BEK
DESHTERE R -

HAREEEAER East 8 kG - A
KERVERELE  £ZBRAT - #
TR RARAEEEENEBERZE K
BlE8E - UWRARELENERE—FA
B  XRERDEERFERD A
BORNEHOBRRRDEERRBE
B ZEHBNFERAELTEEY
R AR o

RBEE

ZEVBBRREREE LSS
(BEEFEAE ) BRMAENET BN
WEEA([FEHBHREEN]) (B
BB BHRERER - FEEER
(TEEETEN ER2E)  BEAR
SRR RBBRTEHIRE - FRIRE
ME WX BERERFEBETNCHEL
WhBF - LAREFEBEZESEA
BENeMEERMIESRITARRA
REFEI  ZFEFREYBBRRIRE
SERRARELERER - lRABEFIN
MBERERABTREY - BFESEEZR
BERBAOTUHR(TET)

O ara
7E
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4 4 Bt ¥ R & Mi 5%

For the year ended 31 December 2022
B2 20229F 12531 HILFE

2.2 RBEE(E)

2.2 Basis of Preparation (Continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include
the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries for the year ended 31 December 2022. A
subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity),
directly or indirectly, controlled by the Company.
Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or
has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with
the investee and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the investee (i.e., existing rights
that give the Group the current ability to direct the
relevant activities of the investee).

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of
voting rights results in control. When the Company has,
directly or indirectly, less than a majority of the voting
or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all
relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether
it has power over an investee, including:

(@) the contractual arrangement with the other vote
holders of the investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements;
and

(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting
rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are
prepared for the same reporting period as the
Company, using consistent accounting policies. The
results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date
on which the Group obtains control, and continue to be
consolidated until the date that such control ceases.

Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited

REBERZEREEER A

REANREE

RAEVBREBIEARRREK B AR
H E2022F 128318 IF EE WM KR
= MBRARARNAREELMEELES
MNER(RELEEEERE) - E4X5E6
FBRSDEREHREBMZALEER
BIREHRNAERER - BHENTE
EREHSHEH(IASEER TR
BXEREWRARTENENINERS
) BZ TR R - BIBUSIEHIE -

—&mE - FE—ERE  DAZER
SRVBRIEHIRE - MARBRKREHR
HEIEZREENRREIBLEN T
RARZH  AIAKERFEEREHSE
HEREBHRNBENIREZEE—VIHRESE
BERER B
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NOTES TO-THE CONSOLIDATED FINANGIALSTATEMENTS 42 & B & 3R R M 5

For the year ended 31 December2022
B2 2022F 12531 HILFE

2.2 RUEE(E)

2.2 Basis of Preparation (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the owners
of the parent of the Group and to the non-controlling
interests, even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets
and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows
relating to transactions between members of the Group
are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements of
control described above. A change in the ownership
interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is
accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it
derecognises (i) the assets (including goodwill) and
liabilities of the subsidiary, (i) the carrying amount of
any non-controlling interest and (iii) the cumulative
translation differences recorded in equity; and
recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration
received, (ii) the fair value of any investment retained
and (iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss.
The Group’s share of components previously recognised
in other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit
or loss or retained profits, as appropriate, on the same
basis as would be required if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

REANREE(E)

Bam M EMEEREN S EEKRED R
%EAZKE B AREE ARIEERE

o BRSBTS L RE
MR - TASBERARRRNEERE
& s WA A REREENXE
RERAXHABHREREHREE
ARBS AR B8

HEERBERERR L =AEHEREE
ZHEP-HRZELRE - AEEE
ENFEERSDEFRELR - U E
REENENNBARZ HERERE
BEURRRXHARK -

AN B KA E B A RIAIEHIRE - Al
RIFERZMBRAANEE(RIER
B)REBE: (EMEERERMORE
B Ri)REZAARNZTIERZ
B UREROIEBAREHAALE : ()
FHR B EMIEERAME : KB+
E B L E AR BERSEAL o ZATER
Hitvz2mBEABERORNER S (HHS
BHOBERENREEMN(MEE)
EEBAEEERHERBEES AR
FriE &R -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4 4 Bt ¥ R & Mi 5%

For the year ended 31 December 2022
B2 20229F 12531 HILFE

23 EMBREXREEBE 22

2.3 Changes in Accounting Policies and
Disclosures

The Group has adopted the following revised HKFRSs REBEERAFREMERERERXEAT

for the first time for the current year’s financial
statements:

SIRERT BB IS LR -

Amendments to HKFRS 3  Reference to the BEEVBRELER S HESMESRE
Conceptual Framework FEIFASFTA
Amendments to HKAS 16  Property, Plant and B4R Y% - BER
Equipment: Proceeds F16FRASFT A K BT
before Intended Use Vizbe - Ul:0)7/at
HE
Amendments to HKAS 37  Onerous Contracts — Cost BESEER ERRIEER
of Fulfilling a Contract FITHRIEET A — ETTEAIAY
A
Annual Improvements to  Amendments to HKFRS 1, & B IR BT IERE
HKFRSs 2018-2020 HKFRS 9, lllustrative 2ERI20184F AERISE15% -
Examples accompanying FE20204F J7H] BETBwE
HKFRS 16, and 2 FRHE RIS -
HKAS 41 BEMBRE
B 1658
A o) A G 431
RBEBEET
HERIZE415%
EEIES

Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited
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NOTES TO-THE CONSOLIDATED FINANGIALSTATEMENTS 42 & B & 3R R M 5

For the year ended 31 December2022
B2 2022F 12531 HILFE

23 EBERKRBE228(E)

2.3 Changes in Accounting Policies and

Disclosures (Continued)

The nature and the impact of the revised HKFRSs that
are applicable to the Group are described below:

Amendments to HKFRS 3 replace a reference to
the previous Framework for the Preparation and
Presentation of Financial Statements with a reference
to the Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting
(“Conceptual Framework”) issued in June 2018
without significantly changing its requirements. The
amendments also add to HKFRS 3 an exception to
its recognition principle for an entity to refer to the
Conceptual Framework to determine what constitutes
an asset or a liability. The exception specifies that, for
liabilities and contingent liabilities that would be within
the scope of HKAS 37 or HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 if they were
incurred separately rather than assumed in a business
combination, an entity applying HKFRS 3 should
refer to HKAS 37 or HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 respectively
instead of the Conceptual Framework. Furthermore,
the amendments clarify that contingent assets do not
qualify for recognition at the acquisition date. The
Group has applied the amendments prospectively
to business combinations that occurred on or after
1 January 2022. As there were no contingent assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities within the scope of
the amendments arising in the business combination
that occurred during the period, the amendments
did not have any impact on the financial position and
performance of the Group.

BERARAKEZRIEFTREMBMEE
ARMEE R EFRIAT

EEVBHRELERESR(ETA)EHE
LA2018%E6 A M8 1 8 5| F B 5 &5 =
HEZR([HESAEZR |) IR S| A S AT AT 52
FKmERZEZESE - TBERNEE R E
HBRTE - ZF B NRBAMBRELE
AU ERES B S ERAETH
REESBEZAD 2 ERRAIGE—
EOISMER ° ZOIIMERIRE - HRA
BN BB EREI7TRKBE S (E
BB REREZES) — RES21
RHEEANNAERIAAENS - WX
CEEBREBEAMERDESHPE
£ BIEAB BV BiREEREIFKA
BESRI2ERBSERIFEITH
55 (BRI BREZREZEE) — &
E215% - MIEBMSIELR o Bbod -+ 3
EBRIBREXREERNKERABRTRE
BRIEMH - AEEE $H2022F1 818
R BEE EEA AT ABET
Ko AR A2 EBEHIATE
BRI ABEANNRAEE - BERIA
BE MBI TEEARER 20K
R RREBEMFTLE -
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2.3 Changes in Accounting Policies and

Disclosures (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 16 prohibit an entity from
deducting from the cost of an item of property, plant
and equipment any proceeds from selling items
produced while bringing that asset to the location and
condition necessary for it to be capable of operating
in the manner intended by management. Instead, an
entity recognises the proceeds from selling any such
items, and the cost of those items as determined by
HKAS 2 /nventories, in profit or loss. The Group has
applied the amendments retrospectively to items of
property, plant and equipment made available for use
on or after 1 January 2022. Since there was no sale
of items produced while making property, plant and
equipment available for use on or after 1 January
2022, the amendments did not have any impact on the
financial position or performance of the Group.

Amendments to HKAS 37 clarify that for the purpose of
assessing whether a contract is onerous under HKAS
37, the cost of fulfilling the contract comprises the
costs that relate directly to the contract. Costs that
relate directly to a contract include both the incremental
costs of fulfilling that contract (e.g., direct labour and
materials) and an allocation of other costs that relate
directly to fulfilling that contract (e.g., an allocation of
the depreciation charge for an item of property, plant
and equipment used in fulfilling the contract as well as
contract management and supervision costs). General
and administrative costs do not relate directly to a
contract and are excluded unless they are explicitly
chargeable to the counterparty under the contract.
The Group has applied the amendments prospectively
to contracts for which it has not yet fulfilled all
its obligations at 1 January 2022 and no onerous
contracts were identified. Therefore, the amendments
did not have any impact on the financial position or
performance of the Group.

Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4 4 Bt ¥ R & Mi 5%

For the year ended 31 December 2022
B2 20229F 12531 HILFE

23 EBREXRRE228(E)

BT ERFE 1RSI AL EEEY
M - BERZBEEOXEIFHKRE
EEIEREERENERAKE(RE
NERKH)BEFEENEILER
SR8 - AR - BBV ARZIEEN
HEMERIBRIZES S EAF25%
FEMETAEZSHE KA AE
HifE % o AEE 2 3202261 H18
2 BRI R 2 - BE RREE
BHEMERZIEETAR o ;R E202241
RA1Rsiz B MERZYE  BEXR
BEMARSEHEEEERE - WEZIBE]
RAEHAEBR 2 W BHARAIKRBE
2 -

BEEGFTERFEITHET RS © iR
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NOTES TO-THE CONSOLIDATED FINANGIALSTATEMENTS 42 & B & 3R R M 5

For the year ended 31 December2022
B2 2022F 12531 HILFE

2.3 Changes in Accounting Policies and
Disclosures (Continued)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020 sets
out amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 9, lllustrative
Examples accompanying HKFRS 16, and HKAS 41.
Details of the amendments that are applicable to the
Group is as follows:

° HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments: clarifies the fees
that an entity includes when assessing whether
the terms of a new or modified financial liability
are substantially different from the terms of the
original financial liability. These fees include only
those paid or received between the borrower
and the lender, including fees paid or received
by either the borrower or lender on the other’s
behalf. The Group has applied the amendment
prospectively to financial liabilities that are
modified or exchanged on or after 1 January
2022. As there was no modification of the
Group’s financial liabilities during the period,
the amendment did not have any impact on the
financial position or performance of the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4 4 Bt ¥ R & Mi 5%

For the year ended 31 December 2022
B2 20229F 12531 HILFE

2.4 Issued But Not Yet Effective Hong Kong 24 EEMEENKRERZERBMBERS

Financial Reporting Standards

AEEAENZEMHERRER TIIE
M E R ARERNF R REETEBY

The Group has not applied the following new and
revised HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet

effective, in these financial statements:

BlmE R

Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets B BREER REZ A&
and HKAS 28 (2011) between an Investor and F10R BB G RAlgA 13
its Associate or Joint R E285%% Z BB E L E
Venture® (20115 )BETA FRA®
Amendments to HKFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and BB LS E#HEZ
Leaseback? ERCTACHIRN HE A F?
HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts' BB E L REEE AT
F17%
Amendments to HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts' ERUBREENE  RESAY °
175REET A
Amendment to HKFRS 17 Initial Application of BB E %R e &8 %
HKFRS 17 and HKFRS 9 FITRIERT R HEERF 175
— Comparative Information® REEBFHE
EREIFE —
HBREHS
Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as BAgr A B &S AR
Current or Non-current F1RIEETAR B FEAIHY
(the “2020 Amendments”)?* ([20204%F
1EETA )2
Amendments to HKAS 1 Non-current Liabilities B AR WER#EZ
with Covenants BURIEFTR FrBEE
(the “2022 Amendments’)? ([2022%
EETA))?
Amendments to HKAS 1 and  Disclosure of Accounting BAgG AR BETHE B
HKFRS Practice Statement 2 Policies' B1REEB
B R A A
BRHREE2R
EHEN
Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting B AR BIHEETL
Estimates' EXLHCHIR EFE
Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets BAgt A KEE—X5
and Liabilities arising from B125RIEFT A FHEER
a Single Transaction' V=F-{:000% 0
B
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NOTES TO-THE CONSOLIDATED FINANGIALSTATEMENTS 42 & B & 3R R M 5

For the year ended 31 December2022
B2 2022F 12531 HILFE

2.4 Issued But Not Yet Effective Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (Continued)

U Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2023

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2024
2 No mandatory effective date yet determined but

available for adoption

& As a consequence of the 2022 Amendments, the
effective date of the 2020 Amendments was deferred to
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024. In
addition, as a consequence of the 2020 Amendments
and 2022 Amendments, Hong Kong Interpretation 5
Presentation of Financial Statements — Classification
by the Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains a
Repayment on Demand Clause was revised to align the
corresponding wording with no change in conclusion

2 As a consequence of the amendments to HKFRS 17
issued in October 2020, HKFRS 4 was amended to
extend the temporary exemption that permits insurers to
apply HKAS 39 rather than HKFRS 9 for annual periods
beginning before 1 January 2023

& An entity that chooses to apply the transition option
relating to the classification overlay set out in this
amendment shall apply it on initial application of HKFRS
17

EHEMEMRERZEBMBRSE

M2023F1 A1 B3k % B 2 FEE
HEZ

M2024F1 A1 Ak 2 & Rts 2 FEH
EES

RSB B AR B HR - A SRR

[ FE2022 FE R AN + 20205 (& 7] AN K
AR B EAHEE = 20244F1 B1 B3 2 1%
Eﬁwﬁiﬁﬁﬁfﬁ o tb4h + EFE20204F

1BET AR R2022F(EE]I AN - BHERES
SR HEAZEH — /ﬁfy’«’/&ﬁ%@ﬁ
B ESKANEEIRAN) TR B 6955
HAITIEET - AEARER AR — ﬁzﬁﬁ
EmiRFF T

R 2020410 A B MR B & B B 15 3R
SREANEITREFT A - BRPBIRE
ERIFAFREAEHER  RERT K
e AR AR2023F1A1HZ
RIFSR N IR E R BB &1 £
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4 4 Bt ¥ R & Mi 5%

For the year ended 31 December 2022

below:

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011)
address an inconsistency between the requirements
in HKFRS 10 and in HKAS 28 (2011) in dealing with
the sale or contribution of assets between an investor
and its associate or joint venture. The amendments
require a full recognition of a gain or loss resulting
from a downstream transaction when the sale or
contribution of assets between an investor and its
associate or joint venture constitutes a business. For
a transaction involving assets that do not constitute a
business, a gain or loss resulting from the transaction
is recognised in the investor’s profit or loss only to
the extent of the unrelated investor’s interest in that
associate or joint venture. The amendments are to be
applied prospectively. The previous mandatory effective
date of amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28
(2011) was removed by the HKICPA in January 2016
and a new mandatory effective date will be determined
after the completion of a broader review of accounting
for associates and joint ventures. However, the
amendments are available for adoption now.

Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited
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2.4 Issued But Not Yet Effective Hong Kong 24 EEMEENKRERZERBMBERS
Financial Reporting Standards (Continued) (4 )
Further information about those HKFRSs that are RS ERARAER 2 %S B AN R
expected to be applicable to the Group is described HAEARE — AR T XX
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NOTES TO-THE CONSOLIDATED FINANGIALSTATEMENTS 42 & B & 3R R M 5

For the year ended 31 December2022
B2 2022F 12531 HILFE

2.4 Issued But Not Yet Effective Hong Kong 24 EEMEMKRERZEBTBRE

Financial Reporting Standards (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities
as Current or Non-current clarify the requirements
for classifying liabilities as current or non-current, in
particular the determination over whether an entity has
a right to defer settlement of the liabilities for at least
12 months after the reporting period. Classification
of a liability is unaffected by the likelihood that the
entity will exercise its right to defer settlement of the
liability. The amendments also clarify the situations
that are considered a settlement of a liability. In 2022,
the HKICPA issued the 2022 Amendments to further
clarify that, among covenants of a liability arising from
a loan arrangement, only those with which an entity
must comply on or before the reporting date affect the
classification of that liability as current or non-current.
In addition, the 2022 Amendments require additional
disclosures by an entity that classifies liabilities arising
from loan arrangements as non-current when it has
a right to defer settlement of those liabilities that are
subject to the entity complying with future covenants
within 12 months after the reporting period. The
amendments are effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2024 and shall be applied
retrospectively. Earlier application is permitted. An entity
that applies the 2020 Amendments early is required to
apply simultaneously the 2022 Amendments, and vice
versa. The amendments are not expected to have any
significant impact on the Group’s financial statements.

(&)
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B st FEATRT R R B ED B AREIS
FERBNHAT  FRRETERRESHE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4 4 Bt ¥ R & Mi 5%

For the year ended 31 December 2022
B2 20229F 12531 HILFE

2.4 Issued But Not Yet Effective Hong Kong 24 EEMEENKRERZERBMBERS

Financial Reporting Standards (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure of Accounting
Policies require entities to disclose their material
accounting policy information rather than their
significant accounting policies. Accounting policy
information is material if, when considered together
with other information included in an entity’s financial
statements, it can reasonably be expected to influence
decisions that the primary users of general purpose
financial statements make on the basis of those
financial statements. Amendments to HKFRS Practice
Statement 2 provide non-mandatory guidance on how
to apply the concept of materiality to accounting policy
disclosures. Amendments to HKAS 1 are effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023
and earlier application is permitted. Since the guidance
provided in the amendments to HKFRS Practice
Statement 2 is non-mandatory, an effective date for
these amendments is not necessary. The Group is
currently revisiting the accounting policy disclosures to
ensure consistency with the amendments.

Amendments to HKAS 8 clarify the distinction between
changes in accounting estimates and changes in
accounting policies. Accounting estimates are defined
as monetary amounts in financial statements that are
subject to measurement uncertainty. The amendments
also clarify how entities use measurement techniques
and inputs to develop accounting estimates. The
amendments are effective for annual reporting periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2023 and apply
to changes in accounting policies and changes in
accounting estimates that occur on or after the start
of that period. Earlier application is permitted. The
amendments are not expected to have any significant
impact on the Group’s financial statements.
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NOTES TO-THE CONSOLIDATED FINANGIALSTATEMENTS 42 & B & 3R R M 5

For the year ended 31 December2022

B2 2022F 12531 HILFE
2.4 Issued But Not Yet Effective Hong Kong

2.5

Financial Reporting Standards (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 12 narrow the scope of the
initial recognition exception in HKAS 12 so that it no
longer applies to transactions that give rise to equal
taxable and deductible temporary differences, such as
leases and decommissioning obligations. Therefore,
entities are required to recognise a deferred tax asset
(provided that sufficient taxable profit is available) and
a deferred tax liability for temporary differences arising
from these transactions. The amendments are effective
for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1
January 2023 and shall be applied to transactions
related to leases and decommissioning obligations
at the beginning of the earliest comparative period
presented, with any cumulative effect recognised as
an adjustment to the opening balance of retained
profits or other component of equity as appropriate
at that date. In addition, the amendments shall be
applied prospectively to transactions other than leases
and decommissioning obligations. Earlier application
is permitted. The amendments are not expected to
have any significant impact on the Group’s financial
statements.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a
long term interest of generally not less than 20% of the
equity voting rights and over which it is in a position
to exercise significant influence. Significant influence is
the power to participate in the financial and operating
policy decisions of the investee, but is not control or
joint control over those policies.

2.4

2.5
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4 4 Bt ¥ R & Mi 5%

For the year ended 31 December 2022
B2 20229F 12531 HILFE

25 FEETHRBEE)

2.5 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures
(Continued)

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby
the parties that have joint control of the arrangement
have rights to the net assets of a joint venture. Joint
control is the contractually agreed sharing of control
of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions
about the relevant activities require the unanimous
consent of the parties sharing control.

The Group’s investments in associates and joint
ventures are stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position at the Group’s share of net assets
under the equity method of accounting, less any
impairment losses. Adjustments are made to bring into
line any dissimilar accounting policies that may exist.

The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and
other comprehensive income of associates and joint
ventures is included in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and consolidated other comprehensive
income, respectively. In addition, when there has
been a change recognised directly in the equity of
the associates or joint venture, the Group recognises
its share of any changes, when applicable, in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity. Unrealised
gains and losses resulting from transactions between
the Group and its associates or joint ventures are
eliminated to the extent of the Group’s investments
in the associates and joint ventures, except where
unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment
of the assets transferred. Goodwill arising from the
acquisition of associates or joint ventures is included as
part of the Group’s investments in associates or joint
ventures.
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NOTES TO-THE CONSOLIDATED FINANGIALSTATEMENTS 42 & B & 3R R M 5

For the year ended 31 December2022
B2 2022F 12531 HILFE

25 FEETHRBE(E)

2.5 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures
(Continued)

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment
in a joint venture or vice versa, the retained interest
is not remeasured. Instead, the investment continues
to be accounted for under the equity method. In all
other cases, upon loss of significant influence over
the associate or joint control over the joint venture,
the Group measures and recognises any retained
investment at its fair value. Any difference between the
carrying amount of the associate or joint venture upon
loss of significant influence or joint control and the fair
value of the retained investment and proceeds from
disposal is recognised in profit or loss.

When an investment in an associate or a joint venture
is classified as held for sale, it is accounted for in
accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for
Sale and Discontinued Operations.

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred is
measured at the acquisition date fair value which is
the sum of the acquisition date fair values of assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the
equity transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by
the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and
the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange
for control of the acquiree. For each business
combination, the Group elects whether to measure
the non-controlling interests in the acquiree that are
present ownership interests and entitle their holders
to a proportionate share of net assets in the event of
liquidation either at fair value or at the proportionate
share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other
components of non-controlling interests are measured
at fair value. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.
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2.5 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)
Business combinations and goodwill (Continued)

The Group determines that it has acquired a business
when the acquired set of activities and assets includes
an input and a substantive process that together
significantly contribute to the ability to create outputs.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the
financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with
the contractual terms, economic circumstances and
pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This
includes the separation of embedded derivatives in
host contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest is remeasured at its
acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition
date. Contingent consideration classified as an asset
or liability is measured at fair value with changes in
fair value recognised in profit or loss. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted
for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess
of the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the
amount recognised for non-controlling interests and any
fair value of the Group’s previously held equity interests
in the acquiree over the identifiable net assets acquired
and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this consideration
and other items is lower than the fair value of the net
assets acquired, the difference is, after reassessment,
recognised in profit or loss as a gain on bargain
purchase.

Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited

REBERZEREEER A

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4 4 Bt ¥ R & Mi 5%

For the year ended 31 December 2022
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2.5 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)
Business combinations and goodwill (Continued)

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost
less any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill
is tested for impairment annually or more frequently
if events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying value may be impaired. The Group
performs its annual impairment test of goodwill as at
31 December. For the purpose of impairment testing,
goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from
the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group’s
cash-generating units, or groups of cash-generating
units, that are expected to benefit from the synergies
of the combination, irrespective of whether other assets
or liabilities of the Group are assigned to those units or
groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-
generating units) to which the goodwill relates. Where
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
(group of cash-generating units) is less than the
carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed
in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-
generating unit (or group of cash-generating units) and
part of the operation within that unit is disposed of, the
goodwill associated with the operation disposed of is
included in the carrying amount of the operation when
determining the gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill
disposed of in these circumstances is measured based
on the relative value of the operation disposed of and
the portion of the cash-generating unit retained.
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2.5 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)
Fair value measurement

The Group measures its investment properties,
leasehold land and buildings under property, plant and
equipment, financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss and derivative financial instruments at fair value
at the end of each reporting period. Fair value is the
price that would be received to sell an asset or paid
to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The fair
value measurement is based on the presumption that
the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability
takes place either in the principal market for the asset
or liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in
the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.
The principal or the most advantageous market must
be accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset
or a liability is measured using the assumptions that
market participants would use when pricing the asset
or liability, assuming that market participants act in
their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes
into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market participant
that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are
appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value,
maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimising the use of unobservable inputs.
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NOTES TO-THE CONSOLIDATED FINANGIALSTATEMENTS 42 & B & 3R R M 5

For the year ended 31 December2022
B2 2022F 12531 HILFE

25 FEETHRBE(E)

2.5 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)
Fair value measurement (Continued)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured
or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows,
based on the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or
liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement is observable, either
directly or indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the
financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group
determines whether transfers have occurred between
levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of
each reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4 4 Bt ¥ R & Mi 5%

For the year ended 31 December 2022
B2 20229F 12531 HILFE

25 FEETHRBEE)

2.5 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when
annual impairment testing for an asset is required (other
than inventories, investment properties, deferred tax
assets and financial assets), the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount
is the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s
value in use and its fair value less costs of disposal,
and is determined for an individual asset, unless the
asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups
of assets, in which case the recoverable amount is
determined for the cash-generating unit to which
the asset belongs. In testing a cash-generating unit
for impairment, a portion of the carrying amount of
a corporate asset (e.g., a headquarters building) is
allocated to an individual cash-generating unit if it can
be allocated on a reasonable and consistent basis or,
otherwise, to the smallest group of cash-generating
units.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset. An impairment loss is charged to profit or
loss in the period in which it arises in those expense
categories consistent with the function of the impaired
asset.

An impairment loss is charged to the statement of
profit or loss in the period in which it arises, unless the
asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case
the impairment loss is accounted for in accordance
with the relevant accounting policy for that revalued
asset.
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NOTES TO-THE CONSOLIDATED FINANGIALSTATEMENTS 42 & B & 3R R M 5

For the year ended 31 December2022
B2 2022F 12531 HILFE

25 FEETHRBE(E)

2.5 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is an indication that
previously recognised impairment losses may no
longer exist or may have decreased. If such an
indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated.
A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset
other than goodwill is reversed only if there has been
a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an amount
higher than the carrying amount that would have been
determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in
prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss
is credited to profit or loss in the period in which
it arises, unless the asset is carried at a revalued
amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment
loss is accounted for in accordance with the relevant
accounting policy for that revalued asset.

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@) the party is a person or a close member of that
person’s family and that person
(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or
(i) is a member of the key management

personnel of the Group or of a parent of the

Group;

or
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4 4 Bt ¥ R & Mi 5%

For the year ended 31 December 2022
B2 20229F 12531 HILFE

2.5 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Related parties (Continued)

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

(i)

(if)

(ii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vil)

(viii)

the entity and the Group are members of the
same group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of
the other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or
fellow subsidiary of the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures
of the same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by
a person identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
the key management personnel of the entity
(or of a parent of the entity); and

the entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the
parent of the Group.
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NOTES TO-THE CONSOLIDATED FINANGIALSTATEMENTS 42 & B & 3R R M 5

For the year ended 31 December2022
B2 2022F 12531 HILFE

25 FEETHRBE(E)

2.5 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)
Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost
or valuation less accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses. The cost of an item of property,
plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and
any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset
to its working condition and location for its intended
use. Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant
and equipment have been put into operation, such as
repairs and maintenance, is normally charged to profit
or loss in the period in which it is incurred. In situations
where the recognition criteria are satisfied, the
expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the
carrying amount of the asset as a replacement. Where
significant parts of property, plant and equipment
are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group
recognises such parts as individual assets with specific
useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Valuations are performed frequently enough to ensure
that the fair value of a revalued asset does not differ
materially from its carrying amount. Changes in the
values of property, plant and equipment are dealt
with as movements in the asset revaluation reserve.
If the total of this reserve is insufficient to cover a
deficit, on an individual asset basis, the excess of
the deficit is charged to the statement of profit or
loss. Any subsequent revaluation surplus is credited
to the statement of profit or loss to the extent of the
deficit previously charged. An annual transfer from the
asset revaluation reserve to retained profits is made
for the difference between the depreciation based
on the revalued carrying amount of an asset and the
depreciation based on the asset’s original cost. On
disposal of a revalued asset, the relevant portion of
the asset revaluation reserve realised in respect of
previous valuations is transferred to retained profits as
a movement in reserves.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4 4 Bt ¥ R & Mi 5%

For the year ended 31 December 2022
B2 20229F 12531 HILFE

25 FEETHRBEE)

2.5 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(Continued)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to
write off the cost of each item of property, plant and
equipment to its residual value over its estimated useful
life. The principal annual rates used for this purpose
are as follows:

Leasehold land and 50 years or over the lease

buildings term, whichever is shorter
Leasehold improvements 3 years
Furniture and fixtures 10 years
Office equipment 5 years
Motor vehicles 10 years

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost of that
item is allocated on a reasonable basis among the
parts and each part is depreciated separately. Residual
values, useful lives and the depreciation method are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each
financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including
any significant part initially recognised is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits
are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss
on disposal or retirement recognised in profit or loss
in the year the asset is derecognised is the difference
between the net sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the relevant asset.
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NOTES TO-THE CONSOLIDATED FINANGIALSTATEMENTS 42 & B & 3R R M 5

For the year ended 31 December2022
B2 2022F 12531 HILFE

25 FEETHRBE(E)

2.5 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)
Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings
(including the leasehold property held as a right-of-
use asset which would otherwise meet the definition
of an investment property) held to earn rental income
and/or for capital appreciation, rather than for use in
the production or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes; or for sale in the ordinary
course of business. Such properties are measured
initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent
to initial recognition, investment properties are stated at
fair value, which reflects market conditions at the end
of the reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values
of investment properties are included in profit or loss in
the period in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an
investment property are recognised in profit or loss in
the period of the retirement or disposal.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on
initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets
acquired in a business combination is the fair value at
the date of acquisition. The useful lives of intangible
assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite.
Intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently
amortised over the useful economic life and assessed
for impairment whenever there is an indication that the
intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation
period and the amortisation method for an intangible
asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at
each financial year end.
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2.5 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)
Intangible assets (other than goodwill) (Continued)

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested
for impairment annually either individually or at the
cash-generating unit level. Such intangible assets are
not amortised. The useful life of an intangible asset
with an indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine
whether the indefinite life assessment continues to
be supportable. If not, the change in the useful life
assessment from indefinite to finite is accounted for on
a prospective basis.

Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether
a contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to
control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and
measurement approach for all leases, except for short-
term leases and leases of low-value assets. The Group
recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and
right-of-use assets representing the right to use the
underlying assets.
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NOTES TO-THE CONSOLIDATED FINANGIALSTATEMENTS 42 & B & 3R R M 5

For the year ended 31 December2022
B2 2022F 12531 HILFE

2.5 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)

Group as a lessee (Continued)

@)

Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the
commencement date of the lease (that is the date
the underlying asset is available for use). Right-
of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of
lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets
includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised,
initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments
made at or before the commencement date less
any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets
are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the
shorter of the lease terms and the estimated
useful lives of the assets as follows:

Buildings Over the lease term

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to
the Group by the end of the lease term or the
cost reflects the exercise of a purchase option,
depreciation is calculated using the estimated
useful life of the asset.

When a right-of-use asset meets the definition of
investment property, it is included in investment
properties. The corresponding right-of-use asset
is initially measured at cost, and subsequently
measured at fair value, in accordance with the
Group’s policy for “investment properties”.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4 4 Bt ¥ R & Mi 5%

For the year ended 31 December 2022
B2 20229F 12531 HILFE

2.5 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)

Group as a lessee (Continued)

@)

(b)

Right-of-use assets (Continued)

When the right-of-use assets are related to
property, plant and equipment measured at
revalued amount, the right-of-use assets are
included in property, plant and equipment and
measured at revalued amount in accordance
with the Group’s policy for “property, plant and
equipment”.

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the
commencement date of the lease at the present
value of lease payments to be made over the
lease term. The lease payments include fixed
payments (including in-substance fixed payments)
less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease
payments that depend on an index or a rate, and
amounts expected to be paid under residual value
guarantees. The lease payments also include the
exercise price of a purchase option reasonably
certain to be exercised by the Group and
payments of penalties for termination of a lease,
if the lease term reflects the Group exercising the
option to terminate the lease. The variable lease
payments that do not depend on an index or a
rate are recognised as an expense in the period
in which the event or condition that triggers the
payment occurs.
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NOTES TO-THE CONSOLIDATED FINANGIALSTATEMENTS 42 & B & 3R R M 5

For the year ended 31 December2022
B2 2022F 12531 HILFE

2.5 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)

Group as a lessee (Continued)

(b)  Lease liabilities (Continued)

()

In calculating the present value of lease payments,
the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate
at the lease commencement date because the
interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable. After the commencement date, the
amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect
the accretion of interest and reduced for the
lease payments made. In addition, the carrying
amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there
is a modification, a change in the lease term,
a change in lease payments (e.g., a change to
future lease payments resulting from a change in
an index or rate) or a change in assessment of an
option to purchase the underlying asset.

Short-term leases

The Group applies the short-term lease
recognition exemption to its short-term leases
of office premises (that is those leases that
have a lease term of 12 months or less from
the commencement date and do not contain
a purchase option). Lease payments on short-
term leases are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease

inception (or when there is a lease modification) each

of its leases as either an operating lease or a finance

lease.
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2.5 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Leases (Continued)

Group as a lessor (Continued)

Leases in which the Group does not transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of an asset are classified as operating
leases. When a contract contains lease and non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration in
the contract to each component on a relative stand-
alone selling price basis. Rental income is accounted
for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms and is
included in revenue in the statement of profit or loss
due to its operating nature. Initial direct costs incurred
in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are
added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and
recognised over the lease term on the same basis
as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as
revenue in the period in which they are earned.

Leases that transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of an underlying asset
to the lessee, are accounted for as finance leases.
Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition,

as subsequently measured at amortised cost and fair
value through profit or loss.
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25 FEETHRBE(E)

2.5 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Investments and other financial assets (Continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (Continued)

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Group’s business model for
managing them. With the exception of trade receivables
that do not contain a significant financing component
or for which the Group has applied the practical
expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant
financing component, the Group initially measures
a financial assets at its fair value, plus in the case
of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or
loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not
contain a significant financing component or for which
the Group has applied the practical expedient are
measured at the transaction price determined under
HKFRS 15 in accordance with the policies set out for
“Revenue recognition” below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and
measured at amortised cost, it needs to give rise to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest (“SPPI”) on the principal amount outstanding.
Financial assets with cash flows that are not SPPI are
classified and measured at fair value through profit or
loss, irrespective of the business model.
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25 FEETHRBEE)

2.5 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Investments and other financial assets (Continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (Continued)

The Group’s business model for managing financial
assets refers to how it manages its financial assets
in order to generate cash flows. The business model
determines whether cash flows will result from
collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial
assets, or both. Financial assets classified and
measured at amortised cost are held within a business
model with the objective to hold financial assets in
order to collect contractual cash flows, while financial
assets classified and measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income are held within a business
model with the objective of both holding to collect
contractual cash flows and selling. Financial assets
which are not held within the aforementioned business
models are classified and measured at fair value
through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date
that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchase or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the period generally established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.
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2.5 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Investments and other financial assets (Continued)

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets
depends on their classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt
instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently
measured using the effective interest method and are
subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised
in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised,
modified or impaired.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
carried in the statement of financial position at fair
value with net changes in fair value recognised in profit
or loss.

This category includes derivative instruments
and equity investments which the Group had not
irrevocably elected to classify at fair value through
other comprehensive income. Dividends on equity
investments classified as financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss are also recognised in profit or
loss when the right of payment has been established, it
is probable that the economic benefits associated with
the dividend will flow to the Group and the amount of
the dividend can be measured reliably.
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2.5 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Investments and other financial assets (Continued)

Subsequent measurement (Continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(Continued)

A derivative embedded in a hybrid contract, with a
financial liability or non-financial host, is separated from
the host and accounted for as a separate derivative
if the economic characteristics and risks are not
closely related to the host; a separate instrument with
the same terms as the embedded derivative would
meet the definition of a derivative; and the hybrid
contract is not measured at fair value through profit
or loss. Embedded derivatives are measured at fair
value with changes in fair value recognised in the
statement of profit or loss. Reassessment only occurs
if there is either a change in the terms of the contract
that significantly modifies the cash flows that would
otherwise be required or a reclassification of a financial
asset out of the fair value through profit or loss
category.

A derivative embedded within a hybrid contract
containing a financial asset host is not accounted for
separately. The financial asset host together with the
embedded derivative is required to be classified in its
entirety as a financial asset at fair value through profit
or loss.
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2.5 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)
Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a
financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from the
Group’s consolidated statement of financial position)
when:

o the rights to receive cash flows from the asset
have expired, or

° the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from the asset, or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full
without material delay to a third party under a
“pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) the
Group has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has
neither transferred nor retained substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from an asset or has entered into a
pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if, and to
what extent, it has retained the risk and rewards of
ownership of the asset. When it has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the
Group continues to recognise the transferred asset to
the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement. In
that case, the Group also recognises an associated
liability. The transferred asset and the associated
liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights
and obligations that the Group has retained.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & &

For the year ended 31 December 2022
B2 20229F 12531 HILFE

2.5 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)
Derecognition of financial assets (Continued)

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a
guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at
the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset
and the maximum amount of the consideration that the
Group could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit
losses (“ECLs”) for all debt instruments not held at fair
value through profit or loss. ECLs are based on the
difference between the contractual cash flows due in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive, discounted at an
approximation of the original effective interest rate. The
expected cash flows will include cash flows from the
sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements
that are integral to the contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit
exposures for which there has not been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, ECLs
are provided for credit losses that result from default
events that are possible within the next 12 months (a
12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for which
there has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit
losses expected over the remaining life of the exposure,
irrespective of the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).
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2.5 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

General approach (Continued)

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether
the credit risk on a financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition. When making the
assessment, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting
date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition and
considers reasonable and supportable information
that is available without undue cost or effort, including
historical and forward-looking information.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when
internal or external information indicates that the
Group is unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual
amounts in full before taking into account any credit
enhancements held by the Group. A financial asset is
written off when there is no reasonable expectation of
recovering the contractual cash flows.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subject to
impairment under the general approach and they are
classified within the following stages for measurement
of ECLs except for trade receivables which apply the
simplified approach as detailed below.

Stage 1 — Financial instruments for which credit
risk has not increased significantly since
initial recognition and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal
to 12-month ECLs
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
B2 20229F 12531 HILFE

2.5 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

General approach (Continued)

Stage 2 — Financial instruments for which credit risk
has increased significantly since initial
recognition but that are not credit-impaired
financial assets and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal
to lifetime ECLs

Stage 3 — Financial assets that are credit-impaired
at the reporting date (but that are not
purchased or originated credit-impaired)
and for which the loss allowance is
measured at an amount equal to lifetime
ECLs

Simplified approach

For trade receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component or when the Group applies the
practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a
significant financing component, the Group applies
the simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Under the
simplified approach, the Group does not track changes
in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance
based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The
Group has established a provision matrix that is based
on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the
economic environment.
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2.5 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition,
as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss, loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives
designated as hedging instruments in an effective
hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value
and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables,
net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include other payables,
borrowings, convertible bonds and derivative financial
instruments.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities
depends on their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and
borrowings)

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans,
borrowings and senior notes are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method unless the effect of discounting would
be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.
Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when
the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the
effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.
The effective interest rate amortisation is included in
finance costs in profit or loss.
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2.5 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Financial liabilities (Continued)

Subsequent measurement (Continued)

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are
those contracts that require a payment to be made
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the
specified debtor fails to make a payment when due
in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.
A financial guarantee contract is recognised initially
as a liability at its fair value, adjusted for transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of
the guarantee. Subsequent to initial recognition, the
Group measures the financial guarantee contracts
at the higher of: (i) the ECL allowance determined in
accordance with the policy as set out in “Impairment of
financial assets”; and (i) the amount initially recognised
less, when appropriate, the cumulative amount of
income recognised.
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2.5 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Financial liabilities (Continued)

Subsequent measurement (Continued)

Convertible bonds

The component of convertible bonds that exhibits
characteristics of a liability is recognised as a liability in
the statement of financial position, net of transaction
costs. If the conversion option of convertible bonds
exhibits characteristics of an embedded derivative,
it is separated from its liability component. On initial
recognition, the derivative component of the convertible
bonds is measured at fair value and presented as
part of derivative financial instruments. Any excess
of proceeds over the amount initially recognised
as the derivative component is recognised as the
liability component. Transaction costs are apportioned
between the liability and derivative components of the
convertible bonds based on the allocation of proceeds
to the liability and derivative components when the
instruments are initially recognised. The portion of the
transaction costs relating to the liability component is
recognised initially as part of the liability. The portion
relating to the derivative component is recognised
immediately in the statement of profit or loss.

In subsequent periods, the liability component of
convertible bonds is carried at amortised cost using
the effective interest method. The derivative financial
instruments are measured at fair value with changes in
fair value recognised in profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.
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2.5 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)
Derecognition of financial liabilities (Continued)

When an existing financial liability is replaced by
another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original
liability and a recognition of a new liability, and the
difference between the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and
the net amount is reported in the statement of financial
position if, there is a currently enforceable legal right to
offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention
to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and
settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Derivative financial instruments

Initial recognition and subsequent measurement

Derivative financial instruments are initially recognised
at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract
is entered into and are subsequently remeasured at fair
value. Derivatives are carried as assets when the fair
value is positive, and as liabilities when the fair value is
negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value
of derivatives are taken directly to profit or loss.

Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited

REBERZEREEER A

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4 4 Bt ¥ R & Mi 5%

For the year ended 31 December 2022
B2 20229F 12531 HILFE

25 FEETHRBEE)

RIEBASHMEEE)

HW—EREeRAENRER &N E
R ERTR 27 —BE BB B
R FRERBEZEFEKBER - A
ZABBNERRER IEERRB AR
KIERFIERERE - MMEZREE
ZENERPHER -

@ T A K

i B BTHEA ] & OXETTHE A A $5 2 7
REE - BEBRFREEFELN
R AERZFEEMARBEZFR
B AIABEeREERSRBE X
KRB RAZIFEER -

TEEmIT A

WL ERRE & B

PTESRMIANTZAIVITETARYD
EENARERR  UERARRES
B MAREBERER  fTETAMNE
EAR MEARESEH  BIAEBE
N

TETAZ AREEBAES 2 EK
BRI EE ABRRS



NOTES TO-THE CONSOLIDATED FINANGIALSTATEMENTS 42 & B & 3R R M 5

For the year ended 31 December2022
B2 2022F 12531 HILFE

25 FEETHRBE(E)

2.5 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)
Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on
hand and demand deposits, and short term highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value, and have a short maturity of
generally within three months when acquired, less bank
overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
financial position, cash and cash equivalents comprise
cash on hand and at banks, including term deposits
and assets similar in nature to cash, which are not
restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal
or constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event
and it is probable that a future outflow of resources
will be required to settle the obligation, provided that
a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the
end of the reporting period of the future expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation. The
increase in the discounted present value amount arising
from the passage of time is included in finance costs in
the statement of profit or loss.
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2.5 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)
Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income
tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss
is recognised outside profit or loss, either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries
in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on
all temporary differences at the end of the reporting
period between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except:

° when the deferred tax liability arises from goodwill
or the initial recognition of an asset or liability in
a transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;
and

° in respect of taxable temporary differences
associated with interests in subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures, when the timing of
the reversal of the temporary differences can be
controlled and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.
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2.5 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)
Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused
tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax
assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, and the carryforward
of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be
utilised, except:

° when the deferred tax asset relating to the
deductible temporary differences arises from
the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;
and

° in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with interests in subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures, deferred tax
assets are only recognised to the extent that it
is probable that the temporary differences will
reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit
will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred
tax assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting
period and are recognised to the extent that it has
become probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to
be recovered.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4 4 Bt ¥ R & Mi 5%

For the year ended 31 December 2022
B2 20229F 12531 HILFE

25 FEETHRBEE)

2.5 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)
Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when
the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset
if and only if the Group has a legally enforceable right
to set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities
and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either the same taxable entity or different
taxable entities which intend either to settle current tax
liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to realise the
assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each
future period in which significant amounts of deferred
tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or
recovered.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value
where there is reasonable assurance that the grant
will be received and all attaching conditions will be
complied with. When the grant relates to an expense
item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis
over the periods that the costs, for which it is intended
to compensate, are expensed.
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2.5 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised
when or as control of goods or services is transferred
to the customers at an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled
in exchange for those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable
amount, the amount of consideration is estimated
to which the Group will be entitled in exchange for
transferring the goods or services to the customer.
The variable consideration is estimated at contract
inception and constrained until it is highly probable
that a significant revenue reversal in the amount of
cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when the
associated uncertainty with the variable consideration
is subsequently resolved.

When the contract contains a financing component
which provides the customer with a significant benefit
of financing the transfer of goods or services to the
customer for more than one year, revenue is measured
at the present value of the amount receivable,
discounted using the discount rate that would be
reflected in a separate financing transaction between
the Group and the customer at contract inception.
When the contract contains a financing component
which provides the Group with a significant financial
benefit for more than one year, revenue recognised
under the contract includes the interest expense
accreted on the contract liability under the effective
interest method. For a contract where the period
between the payment by the customer and the transfer
of the promised goods or services is one year or less,
the transaction price is not adjusted for the effects of
a significant financing component, using the practical
expedient in HKFRS 15.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4 4 Bt ¥ R & Mi 5%

For the year ended 31 December 2022
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2.5 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)
Revenue recognition (Continued)
Revenue from other sources

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis
over the lease terms. Variable lease payments that
do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised
as income in the accounting period in which they are
incurred.

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using
the effective interest method by applying the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts
over the expected life of the financial instrument to the
net carrying amount of the financial asset.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’
right to receive payment has been established, it is
probable that the economic benefits associated with
the dividend will flow to the Group and the amount of
the dividend can be measured reliably.
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2.5 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Other employee benefits

Pension scheme

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance for those employees who are
eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions
are made based on a percentage of the employees’
basic salaries and are charged to profit or loss as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the
MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held
separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group’s employer contributions
vest fully with the employees when contributed into
the MPF Scheme. Where employees leave the scheme
prior to the full vesting of the employer’s contributions,
the amount of forfeited contributions cannot be used to
reduce the contributions payable by the Group.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which
operate in Mainland China are required to participate
in a central pension scheme (the “Pension Scheme”)
operated by the local municipal government. The
subsidiaries are required to contribute certain
percentages of their payroll costs to the Pension
Scheme. The only obligation of the Group with
respect to the Pension Scheme is to pay the ongoing
contributions under the Pension Scheme. The
contributions are charged to profit or loss as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the
Pension Scheme.

HitvESEH

BIKE 8

AEBRBARFE LB EEDIAT
BEB2ERHIE LB RINEN S
(T2t E ) 2B EHITERMER
BEEE - HRDREREEAFEZ
BEBDLE  UNRBEBRERTE
MR B8R - BB EIZ
BEEAKEZEEDRRE - LAB
VERBZESER - AEEZEEIHK
R A RE S SIF RS 28R RES
FRA - HEBHEREHREREFE A
RHZETE - APREVESRBE TR AR
FORAN SR B e S A AR -

AEBRN B AL ENNE QR R E
BYA2EAEMMRARINA R
Kt 8I([RREEE]) - ZFMBA
AIZAMERREFTEFHEEFTERASE
TR R - REEBLRIKES B
M — B EDRBRKEF BB
Ko HEHRRRIBR R & 71 88 R BB
BEmMER -

Annual Report 2022
TR FFR

177



178

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4 4 Bt ¥ R & Mi 5%

For the year ended 31 December 2022
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2.5 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)
Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e.,
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of
time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. The
capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases when
the assets are substantially ready for their intended
use or sale. All other borrowing costs are expensed in
the period in which they are incurred. Borrowing costs
consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs
in connection with the borrowing of funds.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is the Company’s functional currency.
Each entity in the Group determines its own functional
currency and items included in the financial statements
of each entity are measured using that functional
currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded by
the entities in the Group are initially recorded using
their respective functional currency rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated at the functional currency rates of exchange
ruling at the end of the reporting period. Differences
arising on settlement or translation of monetary items
are recognised in profit or loss.
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2.5 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)
Foreign currencies (Continued)

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial
transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair
value in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
measured. The gain or loss arising on translation of a
non-monetary item measured at fair value is treated in
line with the recognition of the gain or loss on change
in fair value of the item (i.e., translation difference on
the item whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in
other comprehensive income or profit or loss is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or
loss, respectively).

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition
of the related asset, expense or income on the
derecognition of a non-monetary asset or non-monetary
liability relating to an advance consideration, the date of
initial transaction is the date on which the Group initially
recognises the non-monetary asset or non-monetary
liability arising from the advance consideration. If
there are multiple payments or receipts in advance,
the Group determines the transaction date for each
payment or receipt of the advance consideration.

SN (E)

BESLRAAINE St 82 IFERIAR -
RANLRSANERBE - IARE
DONEFTEMIFERIER - RAER
REEAZERHRE RNEHMBREFE
BHEMEANBREZABARER
BIEENEREE A RN A
EHRARBETERZ AREEREN
HERBER  ToRlEEMEEKA
SBERPHER)

R LR RBNRERBNIFER T
BEIFFEREARER - RETGE
RIEMEE - FAXHWAFANER -
VFR5BHMAREEIERERBAMNK
BELNFERUEEENIFELHRE
EH o WEFEZEELMNRIWEK -
SEBERNRENNRBWGREE
RH5HHE -

Annual Report 2022
TR FFR

179



180

2.5 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)
Foreign currencies (Continued)

The functional currencies of certain overseas
subsidiaries, an associate and joint ventures are
currencies other than Hong Kong dollars. As at the
end of the reporting period, the assets and liabilities
of these entities are translated into Hong Kong dollars
at the exchange rates prevailing at the end of the
reporting period and their statements of profit or loss
are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange
rates that approximate to those prevailing at the dates
of the transactions. The resulting exchange differences
are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the translation reserve. On disposal
of a foreign operation, the component of other
comprehensive income relating to that particular foreign
operation is recognised in profit or loss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign
operation and any fair value adjustments to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities arising on acquisition
are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign
operation and translated at the closing rate.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
cash flows, the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries
are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange
rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently
recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which
arise throughout the year are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange rates
for the year.
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NOTES TO-THE CONSOLIDATED FINANGIALSTATEMENTS 42 & B & 3R R M 5

For the year ended 31 December2022

Bl 2202212731 Hi1FF/Z
3. Significant Accounting Judgements and

Estimates

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and
their accompanying disclosures and the disclosure
of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes
that could require a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the
future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies, management has made the following
judgements, apart from those involving estimations,
which have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the financial statements:

Property lease classification — the Group as
lessor

The Group has entered into commercial property leases
on its investment property portfolio. The Group has
determined, based on an evaluation of the terms and
conditions of the arrangements, such as the lease term
not constituting a major part of the economic life of
the commercial property and the present value of the
minimum lease payments not amounting to substantially
all the fair value of the commercial property, that it
retains substantially all the significant risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of these properties which are
leased out and accounts for the contracts as operating
leases.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & &

For the year ended 31 December 2022
B2 20229F 12531 HILFE

3.

Significant Accounting Judgements and
Estimates (Continued)

Judgements (Continued)

Classification between investment properties and
owner-occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies
as an investment property, and has developed criteria
in making that judgement. Investment property is a
property held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation
or both. Therefore, the Group considers whether a
property generates cash flows largely independently of
the other assets held by the Group. Some properties
comprise a portion that is held to earn rentals or for
capital appreciation and another portion that is held for
use in the production or supply of goods or services
or for administrative purposes. If these portions could
be sold separately or leased out separately under a
finance lease, the Group accounts for these portions
separately. If the portions could not be sold separately,
the property is an investment property only if an
insignificant portion is held for use in the production
or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes. Judgement is made on an individual property
basis to determine whether ancillary services are
so significant that a property does not qualify as an
investment property.
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For the year ended 31 December2022

Bl 2202212731 Hi1FF/Z
3. Significant Accounting Judgements and

Estimates (Continued)

Judgements (Continued)

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purpose of measuring deferred taxation arising
from investment properties that are measured using the
fair value model, the directors of the Company have
reviewed the Group’s investment property portfolios
and concluded that the Group’s investment properties
of HK$2,309,146,000 (2021: HK$2,730,045,000),
representing properties for residential or commercial
use, are held under a business model whose objective
is to consume substantially all of the economic benefits
embodied in the investment properties over time,
rather than through sale. Therefore, in measuring the
Group’s deferred taxation on investment properties,
the directors of the Company have determined that
the presumption that the carrying amounts of these
investment properties measured using the fair value
model are recovered entirely through sale is rebutted.
Accordingly, deferred taxation in relation to these
investment properties has been measured based on the
tax consequences of recovering the carrying amounts
entirely through use.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are
described below.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4 4 Bt ¥ R & Mi 5%

For the year ended 31 December 2022

22022 12731 H 1 F/Z
3. Significant Accounting Judgements and

Estimates (Continued)
Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Provision for ECL for amounts due from an
associate and joint ventures and loan receivables

The Group individually calculates ECLs for its amounts
due from an associate and joint ventures and loan
receivables. The measurement of ECL under HKFRS
9 for the Group’s amounts due from an associate and
joint ventures and loan receivables requires judgement
on, in particular, the estimation of the amount
and timing of future cash flows when determining
impairment losses and the assessment of any
significant increase in credit risk. These estimates are
driven by a number of factors, where the change of the
factors which result in different levels of allowances,
a lower/higher impairment loss may arise. The Group
uses its credit loss experience, repayment history and
financial position of the Group’s associate and joint
ventures, debtors and their guarantors (if any) and an
assessment of both the current and forecast general
economic conditions to estimate the probability of
default, the loss given default and the impact on the
forward-looking information. At each reporting date, the
Group assesses whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk for exposures since initial
recognition by comparing the risk of default occurring
over the expected life between the reporting date and
the date of initial recognition. The Group considers
reasonable, supportable and available information that
is relevant and available without undue cost or effort for
this purpose. This includes quantitative and qualitative
information and also forward-looking analysis.

Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited

REBERZEREEER A

3.

BEREHE R A (E)

fhat TREEM (&)

Y —BEELAREELFEHARIE
WEHMZBRIEEERER

AEBE@ESFAERR-—RBERRRE
EEEFRURBRER 2 FABMEERS
B AKEHNREE-—KBEATREE
CEFUAREBRERREEEFERE
ERFORFTERREEBRFTEEHE
HIE - BRI - EEERERE NG
EAAT AR S5 AN A0 (5 & B2 B T (A 5t B R
KR RESELER - HFFAHZR
A= AREHEHEHRTABEE
BB FRE R ERRE R MEE
BR AEEEREBLERRRGE
X BHEAREERA(DE)NE
EBELR  EXELRMBMRRMNE
R REBEAOH—REERR - FHE
MR B BB R YATRE AR
TE NEEFREAY  AEEEBL
BiRE AR HER A2 MEER
R BELNENRR - SFHREERR
B ¥R TERARE D ARG - BLLLim
B AREE2EEFTMNLEZNAR
NN RN AE - XFERAIAS
B BREENEMESRAELED

=homp & o

o



NOTES TO-THE CONSOLIDATED FINANGIALSTATEMENTS 42 & B & 3R R M 5

For the year ended 31 December2022

Bl 2202212731 Hi1FF/Z
3. Significant Accounting Judgements and

Estimates (Continued)
Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Provision for ECL for amounts due from an
associate and joint ventures and loan receivables
(Continued)

In relation to the valuation of amounts due from an
associate and joint ventures, in addition to the above,
the management has exercised judgement in estimating
the timing and future cash flows to be recovered with
reference to the timing of the collection of receivable
from the associate and joint ventures, in order to
determine the recoverability of the amounts due from
the associate and joint ventures.

The carrying amounts and the accumulated ECLs of
amounts due from an associate and joint ventures and
loan receivables are as follows:

3.

BEREHE R (&)

fhat TREEM (&)

Y — B ERAREELFEHARIE
WEHNZEEEEEERE(E)

BRARK—FBERR LA ERERD
&8 - B Lo - BIRES IR s
RARAECEREROER » TEE
FAEFERSRAIRENERES
B RMAERKBERRRGEDLE
REY AT U A

JEUW — KBk & DR RE &R ERIARE
WEREEERZATARAEEFEN
T

2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Carrying amounts BRE{E

Amount due from an associate JEI—REEZ N 439,486 560,690
Amounts due from joint ventures JEU & &R 430,437 1,809,042
Loan receivables JEUE X 2,246,377 2,239,727
3,116,300 4,609,459

Accumulated ECLs BEtEHEEREE
Amount due from an associate JEI—REEE N 83,613 9,416
Amounts due from joint ventures FEUW & &b 9,577 3,536
Loan receivables FEWE R 149,322 12,042
242,512 24,994
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4 4 Bt ¥ R & Mi 5%

For the year ended 31 December 2022

22022 12731 H 1 F/Z
3. Significant Accounting Judgements and

Estimates (Continued)
Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Estimation of fair value of investment properties
and leasehold land and buildings

At the end of the reporting period, the Group’s
investment properties and leasehold land and buildings
under property, plant and equipment are stated at fair
value of HK$2,309,146,000 (2021: HK$2,730,045,000)
and HK$214,640,000 (2021: HK$240,742,000),
respectively, based on the valuation performed
by independent qualified professional valuers. In
determining the fair value, the valuers have based
on investment approach and market value basis,
which involves, inter-alia, certain estimates, including
capitalisation rate, market rent, term yields, reversion
yields and comparable market transactions. In relying
on the valuation, management has exercised judgement
and is satisfied that the method of valuation is reflective
of the current market conditions.

Further details, including the key assumptions used for
fair value measurement and a sensitivity analysis, for
investment properties and leasehold land and buildings,
are disclosed in notes 13 and 14 to the financial
statements, respectively.

Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited
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NOTES TO-THE CONSOLIDATED FINANGIALSTATEMENTS 42 & B & 3R R M 5

For the year ended 31 December2022

Bl 2202212731 Hi1FF/Z
3. Significant Accounting Judgements and

Estimates (Continued)
Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Valuation of financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

When the fair value of financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss recorded in the consolidated
statement of financial position cannot be derived
from active markets, the fair value is determined
using a variety of valuation techniques that include
the use of mathematical models. The inputs to these
models are taken from observable markets where
possible, but where this is not feasible, estimation
is required in establishing fair values. The estimates
include considerations of certain unobservable inputs
as detailed in note 37 to the financial statements.
Changes in assumptions about these factors could
affect the reported fair value of financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss in the consolidated
statement of financial position and the level where
the financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
are disclosed in the fair value hierarchy. Significant
management judgements and estimates are required in
determining the valuation of financial instruments which
are categorised as Level 3 in the fair value hierarchy. As
at 31 December 2022, the amount of financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss was HK$811,069,000
(2021: HK$1,120,368,000). Further details are
disclosed in note 19 to the financial statements.

3.

BEREHE R (&)

fhat TREEM (&)

URAEBEAREE I ARG EH
BEZIGHE

BEREMBRARINENARAERFE
BEZEFTABRNEREEZ ANE
BERRERMENMGRE - BIFERA%
HMERNMEEFEFRAHEENX)ET
HARE - 2SR A2 HIL A8
B T RAEREMSIE - ETTT
BRT - BIZBER At ABEE A RME o
ERER BEE BB IREM E37A
HME TR ERAZE - A
ZER=BERNE B O] L LR E AR
MEFUARAABTEBEZEE T AR
EHERMEEMNEE2RAABEREZZI
AREFEEHEEZDHABENSH
BECANEBESHHRERENSLEKRY
B EBETRAFZLAANEBEESEN
ERMIANHERTEZEEEEFLE
N H Er KAk &t o 12022%F12H31H -
NARBEFEEHEHTABENS
Bl & & A811,069,000/8 JT(20214F :
1,120,368,000/8 7T ) ° #E—FFFIERE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & &

For the year ended 31 December 2022
B2 20229F 12531 HILFE

3.

Significant Accounting Judgements and
Estimates (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Impairment assessment of investment in joint
ventures

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators
of impairment for investment in joint ventures at the
end of each reporting period. An impairment exists
when the carrying value of the investment in the joint
venture exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the
higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its
value in use. The calculation of recoverable amount
requires significant judgements by management, in
particular, on key internal inputs and external market
conditions which impact future cash flows, discount
rates and long-term growth rate. If future events do
not correspond to the assumptions, the recoverable
amount will need to be revised, and this may have
impact on the Group’s operating performance or
financial position. Further details are given in note 18 to
the financial statements.

Operating Segment Information

For management purposes, the Group is organised into
business units based on their products and has the
following reporting segments:

(@) the investments segment representing the
investments in financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss and loan receivables; and

(b)  the property leasing segment representing holding
of properties for rental income potential and/or for
capital appreciation.

Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited
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NOTES TO-THE CONSOLIDATED FINANGIALSTATEMENTS 42 & B & 3R R M 5

For the year ended 31 December2022

Bl 2202212731 Hi1FF/Z
4. Operating Segment Information (Continued)

Management monitors the results of the Group’s
operating segments separately for the purpose of
making decisions about resources allocation and
performance assessment. Segment performance is
evaluated based on reportable segment profit/loss,
which is a measure of adjusted profit/loss before
tax. The adjusted profit/loss before tax is measured
consistently with the Group’s profit/loss before tax
except that non-lease-related finance costs, share of
results of associates and joint ventures and corporate
expenses are excluded from such measurement.

No segment assets or liabilities is presented as the
chief operating decision maker does not regularly
review segment assets and liabilities.

4,

ReEsBER(E)

EEEBEMNERAKELEDEES -
REERERDEORREFERE - o
ERIVIZ A 2], R, EETE
BNGtELABBRBANERN,EE - K56
ERBAEN, B8 it B REASERG
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4 4 Bt ¥ R & Mi 5%

For the year ended 31 December 2022

B2 20229F 12531 HILFE
4. Operating Segment Information (Continued) 4. REFEER(Z)
Year ended 31 December 2022 BE2022F12A31HLLEE
Property
Investments leasing Total
RE NEHE #Et
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET
Revenue g
— Rental income — & WA - 96,884 96,884
— Dividend income from listed — ETEHFRERA
securities 136 - 136
136 96,884 97,020
Segment loss o abEE (13,073) (153,952) (167,025)
Other unallocated income, gains and  E R D E WA ~ Wiz Kk
losses il 18,383
Corporate expenses EME (123,874)
Finance costs (other than interest on B ER(AE&EZ
lease liabilities) R EERIN) (525,933)
Share of profits of: BTS2 0&ER
— associates — BN al 2,050
— joint ventures — BEME 1,130
Loss before taxation BriTAIE R (795,269)
Taxation 18 52,611
Loss for the year FANEE (742,658)

1 90 Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited
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NOTES TO-THE CONSOLIDATED FINANGIALSTATEMENTS 42 & B & 3R R M 5

For the year ended 31 December2022

Bl 2202212731 Hi1FF/Z
4. Operating Segment Information (Continued) 4. REFTER(E)

Year ended 31 December 2022

BE2022F 12831 LLEE

Other segment information:

Depreciation

Change in fair value of
financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

Interest income from a joint
venture

Interest income from loan
receivables

Write-off of loan and other
receivables and an amount
due from an associate

Impairment of financial assets,
net

Change in fair value of
investment properties

Change in fair value of
derivative financial
instruments

Net loss on disposal of
property, plant and
equipment

Impairment loss on other
intangible assets

Capital expenditure

Interests in associates

Interests in joint ventures

Share of profits of associates

Share of profits of joint ventures {54 &> %4

Property
Investments leasing Unallocated Total
RE MERE A2 E o)
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET
Rt 7HEH
e - (814) (16,537) (17,351)
WAREERE
BEEABRN
SREEZAR
H&3) (166,108) - - (166,108)
KE-—RKEELE
MRS BA 44,666 - - 44,666
FEE TR F 2 4
A 410,508 - - 410,508
ERE T RE A
FEUS A e FE LK
—RBERRR
2 H8H (7,835) - - (7,835)
SHEERETFH
(251,580) - - (251,580)
REMEZDAE
&2 - (208,156) - (208,156)
TESRTAZA
NEZH
(22,280) - - (22,280)
LENE  BER
REZEBETE
- = (59) (59)
HiBWEEL
WIEEE - - (2,814) (2,814)
BARHY - - 346 346
HeEnRER - - 309,475 309,475
RELEER - - 1,506,247 1,506,247
gL
5 7 - - 2,050 2,050
5 7 - - 1,130 1,130
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4 4 Bt ¥ R & Mi 5%

For the year ended 31 December 2022
B2 20229F 12531 HILFE

4. Operating Segment Information (Continued)

Year ended 31 December 2021

4. RBEIHER(E)

BE2021FE12831B LEE

Property
Investments leasing Total
®E MEMRE 4Bt
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET
Revenue Wz
— Rental income — HelA - 87,376 87,376
— Dividend income from listed — EmEHFREMA
securities 102 — 102
102 87,376 87,478
Segment profit 2 Em F 164,943 76,517 241,460
Other unallocated income, gains and  Efb R D EUA
losses Wes & B 18 9,970
Corporate expenses EME (180,170
Finance costs (other than interest on B ER(FHEEE
lease liabilities) ZFEBRIN) (405,572)
Share of losses of: BTS2 B
— associates — B AR (45,380)
— joint ventures — AEDE (1,417,546)
Loss before taxation PR A E1E (1,797,238)
Taxation TIE (15,256)
Loss for the year FRER (1,812,494)

1 92 Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited
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NOTES TO-THE CONSOLIDATED FINANGIALSTATEMENTS 42 & B & 3R R M 5

For the year ended 31 December2022

Bl 2202212731 Hi1FF/Z
4. Operating Segment Information (Continued) 4. REFTER(E)

Year ended 31 December 2021

BE2021FE12831B LEE

Property
Investments leasing Unallocated Total
RE MERE AOE @5t
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET FHET
Other segment information: B n &R
Depreciation nE - (805) (15,836) (16,641)
Change in fair value of WAREFHERHE
financial assets at fair value FH ANEEN
through profit or loss SREEZAR
E% (102,689) — — (102,689
Interest income from a joint KE—REEE
venture COVUESE N 55,560 - - 55,560
Interest income from loan R R F A A B4k
receivables A 230,296 - - 230,296
Write-off of loan and other EWERREA
receivables and an amount FEUFR A e JE
due from an associate W —KE & A E]
R (37,394) — — (37,394)
Impairment of financial assets, 4B &AEREF5E
net (950) — — (950)
Change in fair value of RENEZRAE
investment properties e = 31,814 = 31,814
Change in fair value of TESRMIAZAD
derivative financial nEEE
instruments — — (15,203) (15,203)
Net loss on disposal of HENE  BER
property, plant and RENEEFE
equipment — — (408) (408)
Impairment loss on other HEREEY
intangible assets REEE - = (2,807) (2,807)
Impairment on interests in joint & & MEER 2
ventures E = — (304,634) (304,634)
Capital expenditure BARX - - 20,321 20,321
Interests in associates B NAER - - 335,507 335,507
Interests in joint ventures REb¥EER - - 1,568,397 1,568,397
Share of losses of associates  # ik 1 7]4)
BB - - (45,380) (45,380)
Share of losses of joint ventures #{h & &%)
&g - — (1,417,546) (1,417,546)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4 4 Bt ¥ R & Mi 5%

For the year ended 31 December 2022

22022 12731 H 1 F/Z
4. Operating Segment Information (Continued)

Geographical information

Revenue from external customers

4,

REsBER(E)
it 2 B Y

K E S EEF B

2022 2021

HK$’000 HK$’000

FETT FET

Hong Kong &5 136 102
PRC Fh 96,884 87,376
97,020 87,478

The revenue information above is based on the
locations of the customers.

Non-current assets

AW ERTHERE P AERN I o

HREBEE

2022 2021

HK$’000 HK$°000

FET FAET

Hong Kong BB 256,508 287,176
PRC Hh 4,150,288 4,673,019
4,406,796 4,960,195

The non-current assets information above is based
on the locations of the assets and excludes financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, amount due
from an associate and amounts due from joint ventures.

Information about major customers
During the current and prior years, no revenue from a

single external customer amounted to 10% or more of
the Group’s total revenue.

Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited
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NOTES TO-THE CONSOLIDATED FINANGIALSTATEMENTS 42 & B & 3R R M 5

For the year ended 31 December2022
B2 2022F 12531 HILFE

5.

Revenue, Other Income, Gains and Losses 5.

An analysis of revenue is as follows:

Wz EtbA - WERER

WA T -

2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FEIT
Revenue from other sources B F B 2
Gross rental income PRV ON 96,884 87,376
Dividend income from listed securities 1858 B U A 136 102
97,020 87,478
An analysis of other income, gains and losses is as HMA - W REESTAT
follows:
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET
Interest income on: FEHBA :
— amount due from a joint venture — Bl —REEER 44,666 55,560
— bank deposits — RITFEK 250 3,744
— loan receivables — ERE = 410,508 230,296
Net foreign exchange loss DE 5 518 7R (1,551) (1,420)
Net loss on disposal of property, plant HEME - BELKEREZ
and equipment B8 F 58 (59) (408)
Impairment loss on other intangible HitEmEEE 2 REEE
assets (2,814) (2,807)
Government grants* BT fe A 7 188
Gain on disposal of financial assets at HELARREEHEE 8 A
fair value through profit or loss B emEE W 1,860 27,009
Others EHAfth 14,820 36,279
467,687 348,441

The amount represented grants received from relevant

government authorities in Mainland China for the

Group’s operation of property leasing business. There

are no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies relating to

these grants.

* ZEREAAEEREMEREEH
BRI AR T RS 2
Bh o BB MRS RE 2 RER G
HHARFIH -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4 4 Bt ¥ R & Mi 5%

For the year ended 31 December 2022

B E20220F 12531 HILFE
6. Loss Before Taxation 6. KFBAIEE

The Group’s loss before taxation is arrived at after ANEE R AT ER TSR, (GEA)T

charging/(crediting): P& IA -
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$°'000
FET FAET
Auditor’s remuneration ZE S 7,200 7,400
Change in fair value of financial assets AR EsHE B HE 8 AtEz
at fair value through profit or loss HEREEZ ANEE 166,108 102,689
Depreciation of property, plant and M - B REEITE
equipment 13,527 12,244
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENE 3,824 3,980
Employee benefit expense including BERMAX (BIEESEREFE
directors’ and co-chief executive TTHBEME) (#i28):
officers’ remuneration (note 8):
Wages and salaries* IENFHE" 64,354 74,979
Pension scheme contributions RIRESET IR
(defined contribution scheme)** (ERBERETE) 2,579 1,662
66,933 76,641
Rental income under operating leases EEAYHEKLHAEZHAESKA -
for investment properties, less RSz $853,542,000/8 7T
outgoing of HK$3,542,000 (20214F : 5,910,000/ 7T)
(2021: HK$5,910,000) (93,342) (81,466)
Impairment on interests in joint e RS ZRE
ventures™* - 304,634
Impairment loss on other intangible HAb & & 2 R EE R
assets™** 2,814 2,807
Write-off of loan and other receivables i U B =k Kz H A i Uk A K2 fie Uk
and an amount due from an - UNCIE k61
associate 7,835 37,394
Impairment of financial assets, net SREEREFE 251,580 950
Change in fair value of investment WEMEZ AR BEEE
properties 208,156 (31,814)
Change in fair value of derivative MESMIACZAARBEEE
financial instruments 22,280 15,203

Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited
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NOTES TO-THE CONSOLIDATED FINANGIALSTATEMENTS 42 & B & 3R R M 5

For the year ended 31 December2022
B2 2022F 12531 HILFE

6. Loss Before Taxation (Continued)

*k

Kk k

During the year ended 31 December 2022, wage
subsidies of HK$240,000 was granted to the
Group from the Employment Support Scheme
under the Anti-Epidemic Fund in Hong Kong
(2021: Nil). The amount was recognised in administrative
expenses and set-off against the amount of wages
and salaries. There are no unfulfilled conditions or
contingencies relating to this grant.

There were no forfeited contributions that may be used
by the Group as the employer to reduce the existing
level of contributions.

The impairment on interests in joint ventures was
included in “Share of losses of joint ventures” in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

The impairment loss on other intangible assets is
included in “Other income, gains and losses” in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

7. Finance Costs

An analysis of finance costs is as follows:

BRELAIE IR (42

>k

*kkk

B E2022F12A31B L EE A&
EESSHENEES TR ET
£ 2 i T & # 85240,0007% 7T(2021
FE) ZHNECETRE R RE
R WERIERFSSEEE - It
BRIV ERERDEGRIARE
I8 o

NS 1 /3 8 I 3 8 40 AR MR AR
PRAKIRA HFOKF o

EECERGZREEHARSES
RAMMBEREEENERE] -

Hith |V EBEEZREBEE AL
ARERANEMKRA - s RE
1Bl

MBEM

MBERDFAOT -

2022 2021

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET

Interest on bank loans IRITERAE 14,808 12,546
Interest on other loans == 370,725 229,050
Interest on convertible bonds AR E AR B 140,400 149,532
Interest on senior note BREEFE - 14,444
Interest on lease liabilities HEBEFE 4,101 4,436
530,034 410,008
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4 4 Bt ¥ R & Mi 5%

For the year ended 31 December 2022
B2 20229F 12531 HILFE

8. Directors’ and Co-Chief Executive Officers’ 8.
Remuneration

The remuneration paid to the Company’s directors and
the co-chief executive officers for the year, disclosed
pursuant to the Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b), (c)
and (f) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and
Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information
about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as follows:

ESRBETHRARNE

AEE - RIELETRA - FERRERA
£383(1)(a) * (b) (o) B (f)f&RIA KA R (48
BEEMNDER)ROIF280HEE - XM
TARBE S R 71T AR L H #r B a0
-

2022 2021

HK$’000 HK$’000

F#T FHET

Fees we 3,617 3,549

Other emoluments: HEE :

Salaries, allowances and benefits in e EMLREYER

kind 9,481 9,475

Discretionary bonuses BIFIEAL 921 =

Pension scheme contributions RIREFT IR 91 192

10,493 9,667

14,110 13,216

Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited
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NOTES TO-THE CONSOLIDATED FINANGIALSTATEMENTS 42 & B & 3R R M 5

For the year ended 31 December2022
B2 2022F 12531 HILFE

8. Directors’ and Co-Chief Executive Officers’
Remuneration (Continued)

(a) Independent non-executive directors

The fees paid to the Company’s independent
non-executive directors during the year were as

ESRBETHRARMNE (&)

(@) BIUFHTES

FAXNTARRBRBILIFNTE
E2BeWT

follows:
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$’000
FETT FET
Liang Qing 2E 400 400
Zhang Lu SR I3 400 400
Hung Muk Ming HE/KER 300 300
1,100 1,100

There were no other emoluments payable to the
Company’s independent non-executive directors
during the year ended 31 December 2022 (2021:
Nil).

NEZE2022F12 A31 B ILEE -
WEEMEMBYIIERITES Y
& (20214 : £) o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4 4 Bt ¥ R & Mi 5%

For the year ended 31 December 2022
B2 20229F 12531 HILFE

8. Directors’ and Co-Chief Executive Officers’ 8. EERBETHARME(Z)
Remuneration (Continued)

(b) Executive directors, non-executive directors (b) BITEE  FHTESEREFET
and the co-chief executive officers AR

Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits Discretionary scheme Total
Fees in kind bonuses contributions remuneration

4.1 RS
e  RENEA BERA BIE R Fmam
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FEL FET FET FET
2022 20225
Executive directors: WIESE:
Chu Hing Tsung REM(Hita)
(note a) 600 - - - 600
Chen Yongeun BXTF (M ito)
(note b) 117 3,862 307 18 4,304
Luo Zhihai BEE 600 2,817 307 73 3,797
Tang Lunfei (note @)~ EfmR(Hfita) 400 - - - 400
Wang Ping (note ) TR (ffzte) 400 2,802 307 - 3,509
2,117 9,481 921 91 12,610
Non-executive director:  JFHITES :
Chen Zhiwei RER 400 - - - 400
2,517 9,481 921 o1 13,010

200 Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited
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NOTES TO-THE CONSOLIDATED FINANGIALSTATEMENTS 42 & B & 3R R M 5

For the year ended 31 December2022

B E2022F 12831 H I F/&

8. Directors’ and Co-Chief Executive Officers’ 8. EERBETHARME(Z)
Remuneration
(b) Executive directors, non-executive directors (b) BITEE  FHTESEREFET
and the co-chief executive officers (Continued) BEARE)
Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits  Discretionary scheme Total
Fees in kind bonuses  contributions  remuneration
e 2N RIkE
e  REWEA BT HEIGS Holes
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET
2021 20215
Executive directors: HITES
Chu Hing Tsung KEM(fita)
(note a) 252 — - — 252
Huang Jiajue (note ¢) ~ EEE(Hizc) 350 3,897 - 70 4,317
Luo Zhihai EEB 600 2,852 - 122 3,574
Tang Lunfei (note d ERR(Azd) 389 = = = 389
Wang Ping (note e) FE(Hiite) 168 2,726 = = 2,894
Ma Yilin (note #) SEWH L) - - - - -
1,759 9,475 — 192 11,426
Non-executive directors: FFHITES :
Chu Hing Tsung KEM(Hizta)
(note a) 290 - — — 290
Chen Zhiwei REE 400 - - - 400
690 — — - 690
2,449 9,475 — 192 12,116
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4 4 Bt ¥ R & Mi 5%

For the year ended 31 December 2022
B2 20229F 12531 HILFE

8. Directors’ and Co-Chief Executive Officers’
Remuneration (Continued)

(b) Executive directors, non-executive directors
and the co-chief executive officers (Continued)

Notes:

(a) Mr. Chu Hing Tsung has been redesignated from
a non-executive director to an executive director
and appointed as the chief executive officer of the
Company on 1 August 2021 and redesignated to
a co-chief executive officer of the Company with
effect from 13 May 2022.

(o)  Mr. Chen Yongcun has been appointed as a co-
chief executive officer of the Company with effect
from 13 May 2022 and appointed as an executive
director of the Company with effect from 16
September 2022.

(c) Mr. Huang Jiajue resigned as an executive director
and the chief executive officer of the Company on
1 August 2021.

(d) Mr. Tang Lunfei has been appointed as an
executive director of the Company on 11 January
2021.

(e) Mr. Wang Ping has been appointed as an
executive director of the Company on 1 August
2021.

() Mr. Ma Yilin resigned as an executive director of
the Company on 11 January 2021.

There was no arrangement under which a director
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during the
year ended 31 December 2022.

Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited

REBERZEREEER A

EERBETRRARME(Z)

(b) BITES  FHUTESRBEST
B (E)

(a) FREMRTEEN2021F8A1H
HIRTEETATANTES
WEEZERRRBITHEE -
A FE R A A R R T RE
£ B2022F5813B AR

b) BXELLECEZTAARRF
BER T AR E - 82022558
13ARBER  WEZTAEA
AIBITE F - B20229F9H16
BB

() BEEBEEBER202148A1H
BHEARDRINITE BRITEHAE
g/% °

(d) BEfaRiEL4E B R2021F1 11
BEZEARARMITES -

) ETFhLEERN2021F8518%
ZERRARIMITES o

H  BHEME LD R202151 811
ABEARARITES -

REE2022F12A31H L FE » &
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NOTES TO-THE CONSOLIDATED FINANGIALSTATEMENTS 42 & B & 3R R M 5

For the year ended 31 December2022

B2 2022F 12531 HILFE
9. Five Highest Paid Employees 9. LTERSHES
The five highest paid employees during the year REE2022F12A31BIEFE - A#
ended 31 December 2022 included three (2021: three) BaFEEBSFE=R02021F: =4)
directors, details of whose remuneration are set out in B FEZFNFBERGEEME
note 8 to the consolidated financial statements. Details MERMES - REBEZFE - HHWM A
of the remuneration of the remaining two (2021: two) (2021 - MEB ) EaFHIEEZEEZ
highest paid non-director employees for the year are as FIFIBIT
follows:
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Salaries, allowances and benefits in e SRR EYER
kind 7,328 5,272
Discretionary bonuses BIHIEAL 402 =
Pension scheme contributions RIRE TR 277 70
8,007 5,342
The number of non-director highest paid employees TN T I EEEEERFEE
whose remuneration fell within the following bands are FEWT :
as follows:
e I
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001& 7T £2,500,0007% 7T - 1
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001,8 7T 23,000,000/ 7T - 1
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 3,000,001& 7T 23,500,000/ 7T 1 —
HK$4,500,001 to HK$5,000,000 4,500,0018 725,000,000/ 7T 1 —

e 203
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4 4 Bt ¥ R & Mi 5%

For the year ended 31 December 2022
B2 20229F 12531 HILFE

10. Taxation 10. %i1E

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made
as the Company and its subsidiaries in Hong Kong
incurred tax losses during the year ended 31 December
2022 (2021: Nil).

The taxation charge of the PRC Corporate Income
Tax (“CIT”) for the year has been made based on
the Group’s estimated assessable profits calculated
in accordance with the relevant income tax laws
applicable to the Company’s subsidiaries in the PRC.
Under the Law of the PRC on Corporate Income Tax (“CIT
Law”) and the Implementation Regulation of the CIT
Law, the tax rate of the Company’s subsidiaries in the
PRC was 25% for the year ended 31 December 2022
(2021: 25%).

The withholding tax arising from dividend income
received from the Company’s subsidiaries in the PRC is
calculated at 5%.

HE2022F12A31B IEFE - HRA
REIRERBBZHB RGBSR
BB - B8 A REEEMER(2021
Fm|E) o

FRN - AEPEMRER(TEEMSEE]D
TN B R R B 2 BT /B8 1 R LA 5T FERR
ot s A AR 238 B 0 AR R P 1S BOA IR &
s 2 BIEXH - REBEPEIEEMRETH
E(REMERE]D) REEMBRE
BEHAHE] - & 220229128318 IEF
B ARRRFEZHBRARCHER
25% (20214 : 25%) °

B AR BB B A FHEUR B K
AZ A% KT E o

2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET

Current: BNER
PRC CIT — charge for the year FRETCEMSHE — FAXH 344 3,809
Deferred (note 28) B (H5728) (52,955) 11,447
Total tax (credit)/charge for the year FERNMEKG) B8 (52,611) 15,256

Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited

REBERZEREEER A



NOTES TO-THE CONSOLIDATED FINANGIALSTATEMENTS 42 & B & 3R R M 5

For the year ended 31 December2022
B2 2022F 12531 HILFE

10. Taxation (Continued) 10. BE(&)

BARRE RERT B QR EMAE
AERER EEMEHE ZRBIATEE
BRAMGBHRAS (He) BREERHE
HEZAFEMBERY (e )N

the effective tax rate for the year is as follows: T~

A reconciliation of income tax expense/(credit)
applicable to loss before tax at the statutory rate for
the jurisdictions in which the Company and most of its
subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax expense/(credit) at

2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$°'000 %
FET FET

Loss before tax BRI RIS 1B (795,269) (1,797,238)
Tax credit at the & BUETE TS

PRC statutory HEAE 2R

income tax rate TEK % (198,817) 25.0 (449,310) 25.0
Share of results of H(hAEDEZE

joint ventures & (283) - 354,387 (19.7)
Share of results of #(HEEL AT %

associates B (513) 0.1 11,345 (0.6)
Income not subject HZERRIUA

to tax (508) 0.1 (25,612) 1.4
Expenses not AN

deductible for tax 105,919 (13.4) 52,414 (2.9)
Tax losses not RIER T IAE R

recognised 41,591 (5.2) 72,032 (4.0)
Tax (credit)/charge IRANEB BT

at the Group’s RETE 2 FIE

effective tax rate  (3&%), /X H (52,611) 6.6 15,256 (0.8)

BEHBMELAAREELERES
Al A111,0008 7w (2021F: T) &
31,288,0005 JT(20214F : i 1B & %
278,143,000 7L) * Bt AdraBmEk
AR E N R RAEDERZE] -

The share of tax attributable to associates and joint
ventures amounting to HK$111,000 (2021: Nil) and
HK$31,288,000 (2021: tax credit of HK$278,143,000),
respectively, are included in “Share of profits or losses
of associates and joint ventures” in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4 4 Bt ¥ R & Mi 5%

For the year ended 31 December 2022
B2 20229F 12531 HILFE

11. Dividend

No dividend was paid or proposed for the year ended
31 December 2022 (2021: Nil).

12. Loss Per Share Attributable to Ordinary
Equity Holders of The Company

The calculation of the basic loss per share attributable
to the ordinary equity holders of the Company is based
on the following data:

11.

12,

9=\

REE2022F12A31H IEFE R I &
A SGRFRIRT AR S (20214F « £&)

AAFEBESRFEARGERE
|

ARREBESHEARIGERERNE
BIRE TP BURFT B AT -

2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$’000
TET TAET

Loss attributable to ordinary equity FHJ//( .ﬁ%‘ri RREREE 2 AR
holders of the Company used in the miEmR A AEEEE

basic loss per share calculation

734,563 1,452,609

Number of shares
RGEE
2022 2021
in thousand in thousand

TR Th

Weighted average number of ordinary FALAGTESRERBEZEND
shares in issue during the year BT E AR INRE 8

used in the basic loss per share
calculation

2,304,850 2,304,850

No adjustment for dilution has been made to the
basic loss per share amounts presented for the years
ended 31 December 2022 and 2021 as the Company’s
convertible bonds outstanding had an anti-dilutive
effect on the basic loss per share amounts presented.

Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited

REBERZEREEER A

A PAZR A A i# AR B R 7 TR AR (& 55 P
2HNEREABECEARRETY
& & I LA 20226 20214
12A31B I EE 25 2 BREAREE
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NOTES TO-THE CONSOLIDATED FINANGIALSTATEMENTS 42 & B & 3R R M 5

For the year ended 31 December2022
B2 2022F 12531 HILFE

13. Investment Properties

13. REYE

2022 2021

HK$’000 HK$°'000

FE FET

At beginning of the year NGl 2,730,045 2,624,229

Exchange realignment PEE 5, 28 (212,743) 74,002
Change in fair value recognised in RIBRRERZ AAEE

profit or loss (208,156) 31,814

At end of the year RER 2,309,146 2,730,045

The Group’s investment properties are situated in
Hong Kong and Mainland China and were revalued
on 31 December 2022 based on valuations
performed by Greater China Appraisal Limited
(“GCA”), an independent professionally qualified
valuer, at HK$2,309,146,000. The Group’s investment
properties at 31 December 2021 were revalued by
Vigers Appraisal & Consulting Limited (“Vigers”),
an independent professionally qualified valuer, at
HK$2,730,045,000.

The investment properties are leased to third parties
under operating leases, further details of which are
included in note 15 to the financial statements.

At 31 December 2022, the legal title of the
Group’s investment properties with a carrying
value of approximately HK$104,414,000 (2021:
HK$109,494,000) situated in the PRC has not been
passed to the Group.

At 31 December 2022, certain of the Group’s
investment properties with an aggregate
carrying amount of HK$2,251,652,000 (2021:
HK$2,650,502,000) were pledged to secure general
banking facilities granted to the Group (note 25(a)(i)).

AEBNREVEMNRBEBRTER
o IREE L EEES B MEMEE
SEEARAR(NEE |)R2022F12 4
31 HATER B E 14 A2,309,146,000
BT B EEE BB ER B
BEFGHEEFMBRAA( &L DR
202112 A1 A AR E BN E W %
ZEEE}52,730,045,000/ 7T °

REMERBEEHELETE=T
E—TF BRI mRM TS -

MR2022F12A318 » AEB A FH
R E W 2 BRI {E 4 A104,414,000
7T (20214F : 109,494,000/ 7T ) K %
BNHARBEEREHR -

MR2022F12A31H » AEBREA
E4A2,251,652,000% 7T (20214 :
2,650,502,000/ 7T ) B & TIREMED
TEH IR - IR T AS BN —RIRTT
=B (MIzE25())
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4 4 Bt ¥ R & Mi 5%

For the year ended 31 December 2022
B2 20229F 12531 HILFE

13. Investment Properties (Continued)
Fair value hierarchy

For the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021,
the fair value measurements of the Group’s investment
properties are using significant unobservable inputs
(Level 3).

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, for all
investment properties that are measured at fair value,
the properties have been used in their highest and best
use.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, there were
no transfers of fair value measurements between Level
1 and Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3
(2021: Nil).

Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited
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13. REWE(E)

D[REER

H 220225 K2021F12 A31HIEFE -
NEFREMENAAEFEFREKX
TR B SR i A BUE (B3 4R) -

RRABEERR AN AAREFE
MEEMEMNE  MEZIRBRAERR
ARRERE °

HZE2022FE12A31 B ILEE - F1435H
Fom v EW EARENEEE  NE
A sk B B34 (20214 « ) -



NOTES TO-THE CONSOLIDATED FINANGIALSTATEMENTS 42 & B & 3R R M 5

For the year ended 31 December2022

B2 2022F 12531 HILFE

13. Investment Properties (Continued) 13. BEVEE)
Fair value hierarchy (Continued) AAREEZER(E)
Below is a summary of the valuation techniques and INTAREE  IREMEGHERRA 2
the key inputs used in the valuation of the Group’s BERMEEERASIBEHE

investment properties:

Valuation techniques Significant unobservable inputs m
BB EXTABRBAY 2021

Office Investment approach Capitalisation rate (%) 6 6
BTE REZ BRMEE(%)
Market rent (RMB per square 136 — 179 120 — 135

meter per month)

mERE(BASFARARKET)

Carpark Comparison approach Adjusted transaction price (RMB 171,000 — 200,000 —
per carpark space) 270,000 220,000
FE5 HEE BARZSER(BEEUARS
7T)
Commercial and Investment approach Capitalisation rate (%) 5.5 — 5.75 6
Residential
BAEREE RE% BARE(%)
Market rent (RMB per square 88 — 278 78 — 150

meter per month)

mERE(BAGFARARKT)

Residential (located in - Comparison approach Adjusted transaction price (HK$ 26,561 — 28,719 —
Hong Kong) per square foot) 31,338 34,427
FERRER) L&A BARRSER(BEARBT)

el 200
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4 4 Bt ¥ R & Mi 5%

For the year ended 31 December 2022

22022 12731 H 1 F/Z
13. Investment Properties (Continued)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

The fair value was determined by reference to
comparable sales transactions available in the
relevant market or by investment approach, where the
market rentals of all lettable units of the properties
are assessed and discounted at the market yield
expected by investors for these types of properties.
The market rentals are assessed by reference to the
rentals achieved in the lettable units of the properties
as well as other lettings of similar properties in the
neighbourhood. The capitalisation rate adopted is made
by reference to the yields derived from analysing the
sales transactions of similar commercial properties and
adjusted to take into account the market expectation
from property investors to reflect factors specific to the
Group’s investment properties.

A significant increase/decrease in the market rent and
adjusted transaction price in isolation would result in
a significant increase/decrease in the fair value of the
investment properties. A significant increase/decrease
in the capitalisation rate in isolation would result in a
significant decrease/increase in the fair value of the
investment properties.

Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited
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AAERZENEREM S Z A L&A
HEXSHHARELEFEAANHE
BN MEHERERREEL
BEYEMBHNTIZEREFEMNE
E o MBHEENER2EETKEAY
B sHe AW ZEEHEY
REh - EXNEXEZEDMBERE
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NOTES TO-THE CONSOLIDATED FINANGIALSTATEMENTS 42 & B & 3R R M 5

For the year ended 31 December2022

B E2022F 12831 H I F/&

14.

Property, Plant and Equipment

14. Y% - BEKRZRE

Leasehold
land and Leasehold Furniture Office Motor
buildings  improvements and fixtures equipment vehicles Total
gL
kEF  RENEEE BRRRE NGRS RE a%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
FE7 FEr FEr FEr FEn FEn
31 December 2022 20225125318
At 1 January 2022; R202E1A1A -
Cost A - 28,324 5,988 12,517 22,266 69,095
Revalued amount BifeH 240,742 - - - - 240,742
Accumulated depreciation ZEHTERE
and impairment - (17,831) (1,078) (3,969) (15,300) (38,178)
Net carrying amount FHFE 240,742 10,493 4,910 8,548 6,66 271,659
At 1 January 2022, net of R2002%1A18 -
accumulated depreciation ZATERAETS
and impairment 240,742 10,493 4,910 8,548 6,966 271,659
Exchange realignment BHAE (299) (845) (408) (621) (451) (2,624)
Additions AE = - 320 26 - 346
Disposals e - - 2 (1) (46) (59)
Revaluation EX (17,59) - - - - (17,59)
Depreciation provided during R ERE
the year (8,207) (1,079) (54) (2,864) (1,323) (13,527)
At 31 December 2002, net of ~ W2020%E12A31H »
acoumulated depreciation ZMEREERR
and impairment 214,640 8,569 4,766 5,078 5,146 238,199
At 31 December 2022: R2020% 12318 :
Cost BA - 26,570 5,875 10,899 19,870 63,214
Revalued amount L% 214,640 - - - - 214,640
Accumulated depreciation ZINEREE
and impairment - (18,001) (1,109) (5,821) (14,724) (39,655)
Net carrying amount EHFE 214,640 8,569 4,766 5,078 5,146 238,199
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14. Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued)

14. 9% BERRKE(E)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4 4 Bt ¥ R & Mi 5%

For the year ended 31 December 2022
B2 20229F 12531 HILFE

Leasehold
fand and Leasehold Furniture Office Motor
buildings  improvements and fixtures equipment vehicles Total
HELH
kEF  RENERE WNE N a2 gt
HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$ 000
AT AT A7 AT AT AT
31 December 2021 20215125318
At 1 January 2021; R20ANE1A1A -
Cost KA - 17,7114 5,848 2,630 23,937 50,029
Revalued amount L% 235,663 = = = = 235,663
Accumulated depreciation ZEHTERE
and impairment - (16,363) (1,074) (2,108) (15,226) (34,771)
Net carrying amount SEFE 235,663 1,351 4,774 42 8,711 250,921
At 1 January 2021, net of R2021%51A18 -
accumulated depreciation ZATERAETS
and impairment 235,663 1,351 4774 422 8,711 250,921
Exchange realignment BHAR 103 2% 140 (58) 228 437
Additions AE = 10,309 - 10,012 - 20,321
Disposals e - - - - (408) (408)
Revaluation B 12,632 - - - - 12,632
Depreciation provided durng R ERE
the year (7,696) (1,191) 4 (1,828) (1,565) (12,244)
At 31 December 2021, net of ~ W2021%£12A31H »
acoumulated depreciation ZMEREERR
and impairment 240,742 10,493 4910 8,548 6,966 271,659
At 31 December 2021: R2021412A318 :
Cost BA = 28,324 5,988 12,517 22,266 69,095
Revalued amount BifeH 240,742 - - - - 240,742
Accumulated depreciation ZINEREE
and impairment - (17,831) (1,078) (3,969) (15,300) (38,178)
Net carrying amount FEFE 240,742 10,493 4910 8,548 6,966 271,659

Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited
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NOTES TO-THE CONSOLIDATED FINANGIALSTATEMENTS 42 & B & 3R R M 5

For the year ended 31 December2022

Bt 220220 12831 HILFE
14. Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued) 14. Y% - BERRKE(ZE)

At 31 December 2022, the legal titles of the Group’s
leasehold land and buildings with a carrying value of
approximately HK$35,228,000 (2021: HK$38,672,000)
situated in the PRC have not been passed to the
Group.

The fair values of the Group’s leasehold land and
buildings at 31 December 2022 and 2021 have been
arrived at on the basis of valuations carried out by
GCA and Vigers, respectively. The valuations were
arrived at using direct comparison method by reference
to sales evidence as available on the market, and
investment approach, where the market rentals of
all lettable units of the properties are assessed and
discounted at the market yield expected by investors
for these types of properties. The market rentals
are assessed by reference to the rentals achieved in
the lettable units of the properties as well as other
lettings of similar properties in the neighbourhood. The
capitalisation rate adopted is made by reference to the
yields derived from analysing the sales transactions of
similar commercial properties and adjusted to take into
account the market expectation from property investors
to reflect factors specific to the Group’s leasehold land
and buildings. The revaluation deficit on revaluation
of the leasehold land and buildings amounting to
approximately HK$17,596,000 (2021: revaluation
surplus of HK$12,632,000) was charged to asset
revaluation reserve.

At 31 December 2022, certain of the Group’s leasehold
land and buildings with an aggregate carrying amount
of HK$176,300,000 (2021: HK$198,500,000) were
pledged to secure general banking and other facilities
granted to the Group (note 25(a)(ii)).

M2022F 128318 » AEB R F R
/) BR BB %) 435,228,000/ 7T (2021
4 : 38,672,000/ 0 ) 2 FHE -t R #E
FHEBURABFPEZARER -

AEBMHEE L REFR2022F K&
2021F12A31A 2 AR BT AR IEE
KB IEET D RIFTVEH 2 BEHFTE -
ZEGAENEREELBAEL2BMS
AREMEEBTBEARRELET &
HRETE R A E B 2 THisHE S TR
& E UL Y S PTTE iR T35 Bl R R
EITERITR - MISHESFTEELE
Bk A EEM s AE R EMAT
M2 B - EREFERRRZES
MHRURENEZ HER D RABRME
BEELHMISMAER MR ALER
EtTREFIZEIARZ - HELTHR
BFEHEASTEA R17,596,000/8 7T
(20214 : E= {4 & #:12,632,000/% 7T )
EBEEEMHHEENR -

R2022F 128310 » AEBEREAES
176,300,00078 7T (20214F : 198,500,000
BIT)NE THE L RIEFEEEE

NERETFASEN —RRTREME
B (KtzE25(0)i)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4 4 Bt ¥ R & Mi 5%

For the year ended 31 December 2022
B2 20229F 12531 HILFE

14. Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued)

Fair value hierarchy

For the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021,
the fair value measurements of the leasehold land and
buildings are using significant unobservable inputs (Level
3).

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, for
leasehold land and buildings that are measured at fair
value, the properties have been used in their highest
and best use.

During the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021,
there were no transfers of fair value measurements
between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into or
out of Level 3.

Below is a summary of the valuation techniques and
the key inputs used in the valuation of the Group’s

14.

W BERRE(E)

>

REER

HE20225F % 2021F12 A1 H IFFE -
AREBRE T REFHNALETERFE
FBERT AT #E s A SUE (B3R) -

RABEERR AR REFEMNE
ELHNETNS  MEIRBERER
RARERE -

HZE2022F K2021F12A31 B IEFE -
FAFBEFE2F W EAABEFEE
% o JNEEEE A By EE 3 o

ATRASERE T MEFHEMA
ZIEERMREBZHABEHRE

leasehold land and buildings:

Significant
Valuation techniques unobservable inputs Weighted average
fRERM EXTABZHAZE HEY 5 E
2021
Office (located in the Investment approach Term yields 5.5% 5.5%
PRC) REE FHRE
BYE(RRHE)
Reversion yields 6.0% 6.0%
ERksE
Market rents (RMB per 88 75

Office (located in Comparison approach
Hong Kong) R
BTE(UREHE)

21 4 Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited
REFBEZEREEERAQAF

square meter per month)
mi5HEe (BAGTRRAR
%)

Adjusted transaction price
(HK$ per square foot)

BARZ HER
(BFARET)

39,746 — 44,113 35,451 — 71,435



NOTES TO-THE CONSOLIDATED FINANGIALSTATEMENTS 42 & B & 3R R M 5

For the year ended 31 December2022

B2 2022F 12531 HILFE

14. Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued) 14. Y% - BERRKE(ZE)
Fair value hierarchy (Continued) AAREEZER(E)
A significant increase/decrease in the market rent and HETHRIEFAOMSHES REFHER
adjusted transaction price in isolation would result in SEEEBABLE THREBHED
a significant increase/decrease in the fair value of the REXEEM B  HETHRET
leasehold land and buildings. A significant increase/ H SR BEBAR LA THREEHE
decrease in the yield in isolation would result in a NAERIER D, A e

significant decrease/increase in the fair value of the
leasehold land and buildings.

If leasehold land and buildings had not been revalued, AREEE T REFHEITER - Al
they would have been included on a historical cost BESKAEEL TS RBAR

basis at the following amounts:

2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
At 1 January: ®m1A1H :

Cost B AN 148,932 148,932
Accumulated depreciation 2 E (134,720) (130,207)
Net carrying amount AREDHE 14,212 18,725

At 1 January, net of accumulated R1A18 - REHInEF8E
depreciation 14,212 18,725
Depreciation provided during the year R 2 ITEEE (4,513) (4,513)

At 31 December, net of accumulated W12 H31H » 25 E %58

depreciation 9,699 14,212
At 31 December: M12H318 :

Cost (D% 148,932 148,932

Accumulated depreciation R E (139,233) (134,720)

Net carrying amount REFE 9,699 14,212
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
B2 20229F 12531 HILFE

15. Leases 15.
The Group as a lessee

The Group leased office premises in the PRC under
operating lease arrangements. Leases for the property
are negotiated for a term of 13 years. Generally, the
Group is restricted from assigning and subleasing the
leased assets outside the Group.

(a) Right-of-use assets

The carrying amount of the Group’s right-of-use
assets and the movements during the year are as

HE

AEBEREEA
AEERBEEHELHHEERERM
REYFE - WENHOKLED R SHNS
Fo—RME  ARETEHHEEEE
BRELOEEREBIAIN -

(a) RAREE

ASBEREEENREERSF
NEEBHET -

follows:
HK$'000
FEIT
As at 1 January 2021 R2021%F1 818 54,216
Additions as a result of acquisition of AWE B AR MAE
a subsidiary 143
Depreciation charge TEER (3,980)
Exchange realignment & 5 A 1,394
As at 31 December 2021 and 2021412 A31H &202241 B 1H
1 January 2022 51,773
Depreciation charge WEEMR (3,824)
Exchange realignment b A= (4,220)
As at 31 December 2022 M2022F12HA31H 43,729

21 6 Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited
REFBEZEREEERAQAF
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For the year ended 31 December2022

B F2022%F 1231 AL F/E

15. Leases (Continued) 15. HE(#&)
The Group as a lessee (Continued) REEERABAE)
(b) Lease liabilities (b) HEERE

The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the
movements during the year are as follows:

HERBNRAERFANE D
LN

2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$’000
FETT FET
At beginning of year F4) 54,452 48,532
Additions as a result of acquisition EWE—RHMBARMAE
of a subsidiary - 145
Accretion of interest recognised & AR A FI S8 00
during the year 4,101 4,436
Payments (BN (2,920) =
Amount transferred to accrued EREETER  HBZER
charges, rental deposits and HMERNSR S
other payables (2,920) —
Exchange realignment b X B (4,710) 1,339
Carrying amount at end of year ~ FRERMEE 48,003 54,452
Analysed into: DR
Current portion mENEB 2,045 2,048
Non-current portion IEMBNES 45,958 52,404
48,003 54,452

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is
disclosed in note 38 to the financial statements.

HMERBENZHA DRI H
FRATFEI8HEE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2022

B2 20229F 12531 HILFE
15. Leases (Continued) 15.

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

(c) The amounts recognised in profit or loss in
relation to leases are as follows:

HE(#E)
FEBEREBEAGE)

(c) HEENERPHEINSEMAT:

2022 2021

HK$’000 HK$’000

F#T FHET

Interest on lease liabilities HEBENE 4,101 4,436
Depreciation charge of right-of-use CREEENTERER

assets 3,824 3,980

Total amount recognised in profit or RERERNE SR
loss 7,925 8,416

(d) The total cash outflow for leases is disclosed in
note 32(b) to the financial statements.

The Group as a lessor

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group
leased its investment properties consisting of certain
residential and commercial properties in the PRC under
operating lease arrangements with leases negotiated
for terms ranging from 1 to 15 years (2021: 1 to 15
years). Rental income recognised by the Group during
the year ended 31 December 2022 was approximately
HK$96,884,000 (2021: HK$87,376,000), details of
which are included in note 5 to the financial statements.

Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited
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(d HEMBRESRLBBRUBRE
M sE32(b) I B -

AEEER[HAEA

HE2022F12A31HIEFENRN  AE
ERECEHERHLHEREME
(BEBTRTFBRNFERDEDE)
HABLERN T A1E15F(20214F -
12155 ) o R & B R # £2022412
ABBEFEANBERNBASWALS
96,884,000 7T (20214 : 87,376,000
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NOTES TO-THE CONSOLIDATED FINANGIALSTATEMENTS 42 & B & 3R R M 5

For the year ended 31 December2022
B2 2022F 12531 HILFE

15.

16.

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessor (Continued)

At the end of each reporting period, the Group had the
following undiscounted lease payments receivable in
future periods under non-cancellable operating leases

with its tenants:

15. HE(#&E)

FEBERHBEAGE)

RBEHR - AEERBEEEBESZ T
AU S TS 2 RO HAME B BOR RAZR

HEMFDOT

2022 2021

HK$’000 HK$'000

FETT FET

Within one year —F R 82,243 80,172
After one year but within two years —FEMFNR 35,665 47,813
After two years but within three years MWFE=FK 18,906 20,181
After three years but within four years =& NF R 11,725 13,374
After four years but within five years MFEZERAFNR 7,973 8,765
After five years FEAE 19,144 39,258
175,656 209,563

Other Intangible Assets

16. HithBFLEE

Licenses

HK$’000
FTET

31 December 2022

Cost at 1 January 2022, net of accumulated

20226 12H31H

R2022%F1 1B A © Rat#E &

amortisation and impairment B FER 2,814
Impairment during the year FNRE (2,814)
At 31 December 2022 R20229F12H31H =
At 31 December 2022: R20229F12HA318 :

Cost (D% 5,621

Accumulated amortisation and impairment RETEE RRE (5,621)

Net carrying amount REFE =

Annual Report 2022
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
B2 20229F 12531 HILFE

16. Other Intangible Assets (Continued)

16. HtBPEEE)

Licenses
i
HK$'000
FEIT
31 December 2021 2021%12H31H
Cost at 1 January 2021, net of accumulated  R20214%1 81 BRI A - 2t#44 %58
amortisation —
Acquisition of a subsidiary that is not a W IEREBRIMME AR (M :231)
business (note 37) 5,621
Amortisation provided during the year F R —
Impairment during the year FWRIE (2,807)
At 31 December 2021 R2021F12A31H 2,814
At 31 December 2021: R2021%12A31H :
Cost BN 5,621
Accumulated amortisation and impairment R RORE (2,807)
Net carrying amount FREVFE 2,814
Intangible assets related to the licenses for the BB ERARS IR RIEENEE A E K
provision of financial services were arising from the B U — R 3R E R E A = (I
acquisition of a subsidiary that is not a business (note F£31) °
31).

Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited
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For the year ended 31 December2022

B E2022F 12531 HILFE
17. Interests in Associates 17. BEQTESR
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FETT
Share of net assets PIEFEE 309,475 335,507
Amount due from an associate B — KB & N BRI 523,099 570,106
Impairment BB (83,613) (9,416)
439,486 560,690
As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the amount due MR20224F K2021F12 8318 » K —
from an associate was unsecured, non-trade in nature, REE N AR AERR - ERXHE T
non-interest bearing and expected to be repaid beyond FTERTEEIRN —FEEE -
one year.
An impairment analysis was performed at each REFREH KEERK —FKBERQ
reporting date by considering the probability of default AIRBEBEABEBETRED T - B
of the amount due from an associate. As at 31 2022%F12A31H » FTIER 2 E AKX
December 2022, the probability of default applied was £23.1% (20214 : 4.9%)  {HHE D
23.1% (2021: 4.9%) and the loss given default was B R E561.6%(20214F : 31.2%) °

estimated to be 61.6% (2021: 31.2%).
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For the year ended 31 December 2022

BIZFE2022F 1231 HIFFZ
17. Interests in Associates (Continued) 17.

The following table shows the reconciliation of loss

allowance for an amount due from an associate:

BME AT ER(E)

TRINFEL N — K2 R RIR B8
Rtz Bk -

2022 2021

HK$’000 HK$°000

FET FAET

At the beginning of the year REF ) 9,416 A, 7ed
Impairment loss provided during the FRREBETR

year 74,988 4,561

Exchange realignment ME 5, 8 B (791) 61

At the end of the year RER 83,613 9,416

Particulars of the associates are as follows:

Particulars of

Place of registration

BEARREHOT :

Percentage of
ownership interest
attributable to

Company name equity held and business the Group Principal activities
AEEES
ARER FiRERER BERERLH BEREERLA TEEH
Cinda Jianrun Property Registered capital PRC 30% Investment holding
Company Limited*®"
FEREmERRA A AfEA H REZR
Guangzhou Ruifeng Registered capital PRC 19.6% Investment holding
Investment Company
Limited**
BMNmEREBRAR" AfEA HE REZR
g Registered as domestic limited liability companies under u BEPEERIMABEANEREER
the PRC law. 7l o
@ The convertible bonds of the Group are secured by ® AEE A RRESAZEE QA AH

share charge in respect of the equity interest in this

associate (note 26).

Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited
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For the year ended 31 December2022

Bl 2202212731 Hi1FF/Z
17. Interests in Associates (Continued) 17. s

18.

>

The English names of these companies represent the
best effort made by management of the Company to
directly translate their Chinese names as they did not
register any official English names.

The following table illustrates the aggregate financial
information of the Group’s associates that are not
individually material:

NEEE(E)

BRI AREMERET DR ERE - &
ERANRAXEEDARRERER
BAENHERNBEEEME -

TRINRIAEBERI M F I AE AR
BRRIMNIHFERER :

2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#ET FET
Share of the associates’ profits/(losses) #5548 A F14E RN EF,/ (EiE)
for the year 2,050 (45,380)
Share of the associates’ total BABMENREENKE(EE)
comprehensive income/(loss) 4= 2,050 (45,380)
Aggregate carrying amount of the AREBRBERNRIZREZRA
Group’s investments in the associates  {E42%8 309,475 335,507
Interests in Joint Ventures 18. EEERES
2021
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Share of net assets DIEFEEE 1,810,881 1,873,031
Impairment VEAIE] (304,634) (304,634)
1,506,247 1,568,397
Amounts due from joint ventures JEM & &R 440,014 1,812,678
Impairment BB (9,577) (3,536)
430,437 1,809,042
Portion classified as current assets SHEARBEEZISS (430,437) (61,078)
Non-current portion EmeEh & o - 1,747,964
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For the year ended 31 December 2022

22022 12731 H 1 F/Z
18. Interests in Joint Ventures (Continued)

As at 31 December 2022, except for the amount of
HK$159,211,000 (2021: HK$1,506,954,000) which was
unsecured, non-trade in nature, carrying interest at
fixed rate of 4.35% (2021: fixed rates ranged between
4.35% and 8%) per annum and repayable on 31
December 2023, subject to the financial capability of
the joint venture to repay as scheduled, the amounts
due from joint ventures were unsecured, non-trade in
nature, interest-free and repayable on demand.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, an
impairment loss of HK$304,634,000 was recognised
by the Group for the investment in ZHYQ (as defined
below). The recoverable amount of the Group’s
investment in ZHYQ was determined based on value-
in-use calculations using cash flow projections
based on financial budgets covering a five-year
period approved by senior management. The pre-
tax discount rate applied to the cash flow projections
was 15.28%. The cash flow projections beyond the
period of financial budgets were extrapolated using
a growth rate of 2%, which did not exceed the long-
term average growth rate of the industry. Based on the
impairment assessment performed, the recoverable
amount was approximately HK$1,544 million. Key
assumptions on which management has based its cash
flow projections to perform impairment testing include: (i)
sales growth rates and budgeted gross margins on the
petrochemical business which is based on expected
market development and management experience in
the industry; and (i) pre-tax discount rate which reflects
specific risks relating to the underlying business.

An impairment analysis was performed at each
reporting date by considering the probability of default
of the amounts due from joint ventures. As at 31
December 2022, the probability of default applied
ranged from 1.1% to 2.9% (2021: 0.1% to 2.6%) and
the loss given default was estimated to range from
54.1% to 63.0% (2021: 31.2%).

Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited

REBERZEREEER A

BEhXER(E)

72022F12 H31H » Fr159,211,0007% 7T
(20214 : 1,506,954,000% 7T ) B & %8
REEE. ERXSE - NEEFF
R4.35% (20214 : B FE FF E N F
4.35%%8%) 5T B & A 12023F 12 A
B1TAEEN REELENYKEN
WMEREEME - BRAEEDERAER
RGN T ERBKRERE

o

i

REZE2021F12A1HILFE - A&EH
MRFEIR(EER T 2R &R
R E E518304,634,00058 7T » AEE
R RR 2 IEE RN A E S BRI
SREEBIENAFHMEEE - &£
REeRERAGTEEABEMEE °
BEANRREREEINOHAIIRE A
15.28% - B BEEHNE SR E
TERI R 2% M e R EHA - WARBA
TERPFHIZREE - RIBETHRE
FE{d - ATk [E & B84 &1,544,000,000
B BEEEREBEHB S RSN E
TRENANEZ/BEEIE () ERTT
EEHMBRERERERNALER
FEEMERREE TR K<
B 45 78 3 75 M RS /0 B R B A B AT B3R
K o

=

RERER  EEREREETENE
R IBEITRED I o 12022912
A31H FIEAZELOMENF1.1%
£2.9% (2021F : 0.1%=E2.6%) °
EEtEHBERERN F54.1%%63.0%
(20214 : 31.2%) °
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For the year ended 31 December2022

TR

Bl 2202212731 Hi1FF/Z
18. Interests in Joint Ventures (Continued) 18. A L¥EER (&)

The following table shows the reconciliation of loss
allowance for the amounts due from joint ventures:

"F%%EJ/T\EJLJEHSZ/\%TE% R R
Z E R

2022 2021

HK$’000 HK$°000

FET FET

At the beginning of the year REF ) 3,536 4,354
Impairment loss provided/(reversed) FANRERERE(BD)

during the year 6,327 (807)

Exchange realignment P& 3 fA % (286) (11)

At the end of the year RER 9,577 3,536

Particulars of the joint ventures are as follows:

Particulars of equity

Place of registration

Percentage of
ownership interest
attributable to the

AELEHEDT :

Company name held and business Group Principal activities
REEER
AR ER PRz ER BRRERLH BERERRLA TEEK
Zhong Hai You Qi (Tai Zhou)  Registered capital PRC 51%  Production and trading
Petrochemical Company of petroleum and
Limited (“ZHYQ")*" petrochemical products
figmR (M) AL BRlIEN hE EEREEAAR
BRAR([HiEmhE])" RitEmR
Meizhou City Ji Shan Registered capital PRC 50% Investment in urban
Operation Management renewal projects
Company Limited*"
I G Gl BARSmEARR
BRAR
Beijing Lingjun New Energy  Registered capital PRC 50% Research and
Technology Company development, transfer
Limited™ and promotion of new
energy technology
L RBH A A‘?’ﬂ& AR A H AR BT BB
BREMERAA BERER
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BIZFE2022F 1231 HIFFZ
18. Interests in Joint Ventures (Continued) 18.

Registered as domestic limited liability companies under
the PRC law.

The English names of these companies represent the
best effort made by management of the Company to
directly translate their Chinese names as they did not
register any official English names.

ZHYQ is considered as a material joint venture of the
Group and is accounted for using equity method.

The following table illustrates the summarised financial
information in respect of ZHYQ adjusted for any

BEhXER(E)

# RETFEEZEMAENEREER
=

>

ML REMEAE T EXERE - &
EATMEX LB AANERE R
BAS Nt E R ABEEAE -

TEBEREESAKRENEAS LD

¥ KAREEANR -

TRIRBEBETBHROTEENTE
2 DS RERNERNZERELAR

differences in accounting policies and reconciled to the

carrying amount in the financial statements:

I £

IS HmR A REES R

2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FAET
Current assets mBEE 4,612,770 6,281,194
Non-current assets EmENE E 8,846,663 10,439,285
Current liabilities mENBEE (9,086,135)  (12,432,324)
Non-current liabilities FnBaE (990,587) (663,486)
Reconciliation to the Group’s interest in EAAREE S S PR 2
the joint venture: HER -
Proportion of the Group’s ownership NEE ZEBRELD 51% 51%
Share of net assets DIRFEE 1,725,182 1,848,581
Impairment VERED (304,634) (304,634)
Carrying amount of the investment KEZREE 1,420,548 1,543,947
Revenue WA 36,999,342 23,884,320
Profit/(loss) for the year FREF, (EE) 12,940 (2,182,182)
Other comprehensive loss for the year £ R E it & 518 = =
Total comprehensive income/(loss) for F R MmN/ (E18) 458
the year 12,940 (2,182,182)

Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited
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For the year ended 31 December2022

B2 2022F 12531 HILFE
18. Interests in Joint Ventures (Continued) 18. AR DERER(£E)
During the year ended 31 December 2021, following a HE2021F12A31HIEFE - REF
tax self-review conducted as required by the relevant Bl B RS ([ RS DR Ek
tax authority (“Tax Authority”) in the PRC regarding P ERRHEENE TALERETH
the sales of certain petrochemical products by ZHYQ, BEEER  BAEFEMNEINEETRHE
additional sales tax and related tax surcharge and BT INEL R S B R E E2021612
late fees for prior years were charged to profit or loss AS1BIEFE BB - 515+ 88
during the year ended 31 December 2021, leading to R FHEB AR o G HRES
the substantial increase in the loss of ZHYQ for the BB F E R IINE BB KA B A nEd &
prior year. The final amounts of additional sales tax HRMEHRESBAT B AN RKE
and related tax surcharge and late fees for prior years TR -
payable by ZHYQ are subject to the final review of the
Tax Authority.
The following table illustrates the aggregate financial TRINTAERBER S LAERDE
information of the Group’s joint ventures that are not ERENUBERER
individually material:
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Share of the joint ventures’ losses for #{h & E P EFANERE
the year (5,470) —
Share of the joint ventures’ total BEeEtEEEEIERSE
comprehensive loss (5,470) —
Aggregate carrying amount of the AEBRELECEZREZ
Group’s investments in the joint IREEARE
ventures 85,699 24,450
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For the year ended 31 December 2022

B2 20229F 12531 HILFE

19. Financial Assets at Fair Value Through Profit 19. UAAREBEFEBEHSEHTABREN

or Loss cRMEE
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Listed equity investment, at fair value  EHRAKRE @ IRARE 66,909 169,992
Unlisted equity securities IE EIRAFE H 87,106 70,038
Unlisted funds FELETES 388,319 461,754
Non-performing assets portfolio TREEHRE 266,365 415,804
Others HAih 2,370 2,780
811,069 1,120,368
Current portion mENEL D (809,429) (952,679)
Non-current portion FEmEnE 1,640 167,689

The above equity investments at 31 December 2022
and 2021 were classified as financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss as they were held for
trading.

The above unlisted funds and non-performing assets
portfolio at 31 December 2022 and 2021 were
mandatorily classified as financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss as their contractual cash flows
were not solely payments of principal and interest.
Details of the fair value hierarchy of the financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss are set out in note 37
to the financial statements.

Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited
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R2022%F K2021F12HA31H @ L at g
KEEDEAUNRAR B2 B EE ST
AEENCRIEE: RERERHEESR

=

20224 %2021 123318 » £l 3E
FTESRTREEMEGHADDEA
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For the year ended 31 December2022
B2 2022F 12531 HILFE

20. EWER

20. Loan Receivables

2022 2021

HK$’000 HK$'000

FETT FETT

Loan receivables, unsecured JEUE TN - I IF 2,395,699 2,251,769
Impairment BB (149,322) (12,042)
2,246,377 2,239,727

As at 31 December 2022, loan receivable guaranteed
by a non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary
of the Company, of an amount of approximately
HK$156,000,000 (2021: HK$163,020,000) was
unsecured, carrying interest at fixed rate of 4.75% (2021:
4.75%) per annum and repayable on demand.

As at 31 December 2022, loan receivables outstanding
from independent third parties of an aggregate
amount of approximately HK$2,239,699,000 (2021:
HK$2,088,749,000) were unsecured, carrying interest
at fixed rates of 15% to 20% (2021: 15% to 20%) per
annum and have fixed term ranging from 2 months to
2 years (2021: 4 months to 2 years).

2022128318 A AR & —
Bt A Az FE 1 IR AR R B AR 2 FE I
B X #9156,000,000/8 JT(20214F :
163,020,000/ 7T ) BERA -+ 1£4.75%
(20214 : 4.75%) B & F F L5 B &
RERERE -

M2022F12H31H - BB LE=F
REZREWE FAREELI2,239,699,000
7 J0(20214F : 2,088,749,000% T ) A
KR - IR E ) R15%ZE20%H) [E T F)
KEH B(20214F 1R F F E15%E20%
MEEMNEGFTE) BEEBHRR2EAZE
2 (20214F : A A E24F) -
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
B2 20229F 12531 HILFE

20. Loan Receivables (Continued)

The following table shows the reconciliation of loss
allowance for loan receivables:

20. BWER(E)

TRITFH K E AR EE R EER
ZERBEZHK

2022 2021

HK$’000 HK$°000

FET FET

At the beginning of the year REF ) 12,042 15,004
Impairment loss provided/(reversed) FAREREE (D)

during the year 137,748 (2,808)

Exchange realignment P& 3 fA % (468) (154)

At the end of the year RER 149,322 12,042

An impairment analysis was performed at each
reporting date by considering the probability of default
of loan receivables. As at 31 December 2022, the
probability of default applied ranged from 1.1% to
20.7% (2021: 0.1% to 4.8%) and the loss given default
was estimated to range from 53.8% to 62.7% (2021:
31.2%).

Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited
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RERER  KEREREFEDH
KIGEITRE DT o 12022512 A31
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For the year ended 31 December2022
B2 2022F 12531 HILFE

21.

Trade Receivables

The following is an ageing analysis of trade receivables
presented based on the invoice dates at the end of the
reporting period, which approximated on the respective
revenue recognition dates:

P R R

THRIZER B REREZ RIKARHER
FEMAERR B AR A0 2 PR ARSI #R 5
HIR Z RRER D AT

2022 2021

HK$’000 HK$'000

FETT FET

Within 1 month 1E AR 3,934 4,377

The Group’s trade receivables represent receivables
arising from the rental income from tenants. The
credit period is generally one month to two months.
The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its
outstanding receivables and overdue balances are
reviewed regularly by management.

Since the Group’s trade receivables were related to a
number of diversified customers as at 31 December
2022 and 2021, there was no significant concentration
of credit risk. The Group does not hold any collateral
or other credit enhancements over its trade receivable
balances. Trade receivables are non-interest-bearing.

The Group applies the simplified approach to provide
for ECL prescribed by HKFRS 9, which permits the
use of the lifetime expected loss provision for all trade
receivables. Based on evaluation on ECL rate and
gross carrying amount, the directors of the Company
are of the opinion that the financial impact of ECL in
respect of these balances is considered immaterial. As
at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the loss allowance for
trade receivables was assessed to be minimal.

AEENRKERFEREGEFHESI
AFEEZ YK - EEHR—KRA—ZE
RRAELA o 78 5= B 755 S i 155 B AR 2 1 1) oK
BEEYFIR  MEEESENEHN
BHAERR

R20224F &2021F12H31H * AR A
SENEWEFEZEINRTSER -
WI|MEREESETER - AEEW &
HEEWEFESRFEEMNERRIE
b B ISR TE e o FEUARSKIE AT B ©

REERBAEBVBREERFIRD
B A IRBEEEERE - ZER
STRLFT A FE YRR SRR A 2 BR TR AR s 18 1
B BEHEHEEBEXRIERR
BERREE ARREERA BHE
EEEHZEEHRNNBEEEMR - B
2022%F 2021412 A31H » FEWIRFK
B E BB ER AT ARIE o
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For the year ended 31 December 2022

B2 20229F 12531 HILFE
22. Deposits, Prepayments and Other Receivables 22, %€ FEARRHEMEWRE
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FEIT
Loan interest receivables FE U & FR A B 498,323 245,152
Prepayments TEfT K 3,296 257
Deposits and other receivables e R H AL FEUBGR 439,250 468,666
940,869 714,075
Impairment BE (32,517) —
908,352 714,075
The following table shows the reconciliation of loss TRIR EtEsRh e RMEERERE
allowance for financial assets in the above balances: s
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
At the beginning of the year REH] - -
Impairment loss provided during the
year FRREREIE 32,517 —
At the end of the year RER 32,517 —
An impairment analysis was performed at each REREH - KEELAEHT SR
reporting date by considering the probability of default BEMBHOMEBETREI NN - R
of financial assets in the above balances. As at 202212 A31H © FrfE A 2 & 4 1%
31 December 2022, the probability of default applied RN F11%ZE20.7% (20214F : #) -
ranged from 1.1% to 20.7% (2021: Nil) and the loss HEF BB REN T53.8%%£62.7%
given default was estimated to range from 53.8% to (20214F : #&) o

62.7% (2021: Nil).
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NOTES TO-THE CONSOLIDATED FINANGIALSTATEMENTS 42 & B & 3R R M 5

For the year ended 31 December2022
B2 2022F 12531 HILFE

23. Pledged Bank Deposits, Restricted Bank 23. CHEBRITER  SHERITREIEER

Balance and Cash and Bank Balances

RRERBITER

2022 2021

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FET

Pledged bank deposits BEMIRITHER - 24,450
Restricted bank balance ZERTTPR Hll 45 B4 674,814 -
Cash and bank balances R MIRTTAEER 97,517 116,755
772,331 141,205

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank
balances of the Group denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”)
amounted to approximately HK$93,728,000 (2021:
HK$80,800,000). The RMB is not freely convertible
into other currencies. However, under Mainland
China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of
Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted
to exchange RMB for other currencies through banks
authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

As at 31 December 2021, pledged bank deposits
represented deposits pledged to banks to secure
banking facilities granted to a joint venture of the
Group.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had certain funds
in the amount of HK$674,814,000 in its designated
bank account which were restricted as to use and
designated for settlement of the amounts due to certain
other creditors. As these funds had not been released
by the Group to such other creditors, a corresponding
liability was recorded as other payables in the Group’s
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2022.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based
on daily bank deposit rates. The bank balances and
pledged deposits are deposited with creditworthy
banks with no recent history of default.

RBEMR AEBAARETA
REDAEZRERRTEHKAOR
93,728,000/ JT(20214F : 80,800,000
BIL) c ARBATEmEABRAEME
B o SR - ARER T B Ak 1 E B IR (5D
AR A5IE « SERMEEERE - A&
B A BB R RN B INERT 2 RITH
ARBHABSHMES -

N2021E12A8310 » EEMBITER
BIEE FIRITUERRTFAEE MBS
BOEZIRITRENTER

R2022F12A831H » XAEBREET
RITERFEAHH 2674,814,000/%8 L&
SEBHICER - WiEERANEERNSE
THEMEREATIE - ARAREE KR
ZUBEREAENZSTES  BLEES
BEERAEBE2022F12831H 2 &4
B R R P i sk A E AL E 5K o

TR RIS A B TERAREH
FIRBEFLR - BITEB R EEAER
BT SRR 2 5B R TR
7 -
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
B2 20229F 12531 HILFE

24. Accrued Charges, Rental Deposits and Other 24, EFER - HBRERHEMENLRK

Payables
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Purchase of land use rights L HES - b {5 A 4 42,218 46,088
Accrued charges FEFTE R 183,765 146,553
Rental deposits Gizhi 2 s e 16,842 18,410
Other payables R AN 922,999 146,272
Financial guarantee contracts WIEEREH 38,622 47,793
1,204,446 405,116

The payable for the purchase of land use rights in the
PRC as at 31 December 2022 and 2021 is due to an
independent third party and is secured by certain of
the Group’s investment properties of approximately
HK$79,507,000 (2021: HK$82,152,000).

The financial guarantee contracts represent guarantees
given in connection with the loans of a joint venture.
The Group does not hold any collateral or other credit
enhancements over the guarantees.

The financial guarantee contracts are measured at the
higher of the ECL allowance and the amount initially
recognised less the cumulative amount of income
recognised. The ECL allowance is measured by
estimating the cash shortfalls, which are based on the
expected payments to reimburse the holders (i.e., the
banks) for a credit loss that it incurs less any amounts
that the Group expects to receive from the debtor (i.e.,
the joint venture). During the year ended 31 December
2022, no ECL allowance was provided as a result of
the loans of the joint venture (2021: Nil).

Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited
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NOTES TO-THE CONSOLIDATED FINANGIALSTATEMENTS 42 & B & 3R R M 5

For the year ended 31 December2022
B2 2022F 12531 HILFE

24. Accrued Charges, Rental Deposits and Other

25.

Payables (Continued)

The credit exposure of the financial guarantee contracts

is classified as Stage 1. During the year, there were no

transfers between stages (2021: Nil).

Except for the above, the accrued charges, rental

deposits and other payables are unsecured, non-

interest-bearing and repayable on demand.

Interest-Bearing Bank and Other Borrowings

24. BTER  HBRESRAEMBENSK
(&)

BHERERAZEERRESEESE
— B RAFE - HENREEE
(20214 : 4) o

frEdESN  EAHER  BHESRE
RN KA EER - %8 RARERE

i# o

25. FFERITREMER

2022 2021
Effective Effective
interest rate Maturity HK$’000 interest rate Maturity HK$'000
BRAIE 3R FRET ERfx HHA FET
Current Bl
Bank loans — secured  $R1TEH - BEA 8% 2023 16,797 5% 2022 14,670
Bank loans — unsecured $F/TEF - EEE  3.7% to25.5% 2023 33,595 = = =
Other loans — secured ~ E{ &3 - A 4% t0Z12% 2023 1,307,084 3.05% to211% 2022 491,981
Other loans — unsecured EMET - EEH 5.35%  On demand 31,498 5.35%  On demand 34,386
REX REX
1,388,974 541,037
Non-current FFEDH
Bank loans — secured ~ $1TEH - BEA 8% 2024 132,699 5% 2023 022024 163,203
Bank loans — unsecured R/TEF - EHA  8.7% t025.5% 2025 55,543 = = =
Other loans — secured ~ EME - BER 4% t029% 2024 102026 2,353,524  3.05% t0Z11% 2023 10%E2026 3,030,425
2,541,766 3,193,628
3,930,740 3,734,665

T O



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4 4 Bt ¥ R & Mi 5%

For the year ended 31 December 2022

BF220227F 1231 AL F/E
25. Interest-Bearing Bank and Other Borrowings 25. FFEBITREMERE)
(Continued)
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Analysed into: DA
Bank loans repayable: JEEEIRITER
Within one year or on demand —ERNHIREKR 50,392 14,670
In the second year E_F 152,856 18,337
In the third to fifth years, inclusive FEZEFERF
(BRERMF) 35,386 144,866
238,634 177,873
Other loans repayable: JEEEEMER
Within one year —FR 1,338,582 526,367
In the second year F_F 333,147 66,770
In the third to fifth years, inclusive F=ZEFRHF
(BREEREMF) 2,020,377 2,963,655
3,692,106 3,556,792
3,930,740 3,734,665
Notes: Hiez -
(a) As at 31 December 2022, certain of the Group’s (a) 2022F12A31H " AEEE T 1&

borrowings were secured or guaranteed by: FIILA T 5 S TEVEE R S HE R

()  pledges over the Group’s investment properties M &~ & Bk E & B &
with an aggregate carrying amount of 2,251,652,000/% 7T(20214F :
HK$2,251,652,000 (2021: HK$2,650,502,000) 2,650,502,0003% 7T ) K1 1% & ¥
(note 13); and ¥2ER(KF13) &

(i)  pledges over the Group’s leasehold land and iy ALEBEREAEBER176,300,000
buildings with an aggregate carrying amount of 7 70(20214F : 198,500,000
HK$176,300,000 (2021: HK$198,500,000) (note TLOMBEELHMREFZER
14); (Mi3E14):

(b) As at 31 December 2022, other than certain bank and (b) TFR2022F12A31H BREmMEEA

other borrowings with an aggregate carrying amount of
nil (2021: HK$5,645,000) denominated in United States
dollars and HK$180,000,000 (2021: HK$176,700,000)
denominated in Hong Kong dollars, all bank and other
borrowings were denominated in RMB as at the end of
the reporting period.
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NOTES TO-THE CONSOLIDATED FINANGIALSTATEMENTS 42 & B & 3R R M 5

For the year ended 31 December2022

B E2022F 12831 H I F/&
26. Convertible Bonds 26. TR ES

On 3 July 2019 (the “CB lIssue Date”), pursuant
to a placing agreement and certain subscription
agreements dated 20 May 2019 entered into between
the placing agent and certain connected persons of
the Company, respectively, the Company issued the
convertible bonds with an aggregate principal amount
of HK$1,150,000,000 (the “Convertible Bonds”), among
which convertible bonds with a principal amount of
HK$200,000,000 were placed to the placing agent
and convertible bonds with the remaining amount of
HK$950,000,000 were subscribed by the connected
persons of the Company (including Mr. Gao Jian Min,
a company owned by the elder sister of Mr. Hui Xiao
Bing and a company controlled by the spouse of Mr.
Liu Tianni). Mr. Chu Hing Tsung, the chairman of the
Company, had provided personal guarantees in favour
of the relevant subscribers.

The Convertible Bonds are unsecured and carry interest
at 7% per annum on the outstanding principal amount.
Interest is payable semi-annually. The maturity period of
the Convertible Bonds was 36 months from the date of
issue and fell due on 3 July 2022 (“Relevant Payment
Date”).

The Convertible Bonds are convertible at the option of
the bondholders into ordinary shares of the Company at
initial conversion price of HK$2.33 per conversion share
(subject to adjustments pursuant to the terms and
conditions of the Convertible Bonds) and the bonds
shall be redeemable at the option of the Company at
any time from the CB Issue Date up to the close of
business on date which is five trading days prior to the
maturity date of the Convertible Bonds at an amount
being the principal amount of the Convertible Bonds
plus aggregate internal rate of return on the relevant
amount of the Convertible Bonds at 12% per annum
thereon (having included the interest paid) calculated
from the CB Issue Date to (and including) the early
redemption date.

201957 ASH ([ TR ESH 1T H
B BEREREBHEAQNGETHE
BATHRFIUMEERZERBEA
20195 A20A MK TREHZ - A2
A B #1774 & %8 /1,150,000,000/%
TR ES ([A@RkES]) - H
7N 4 %8200,000,000/% 7T H) 7] #2 3% & 5
BELE TR EMRIE - # T950,000,000
BT RRESE AR RIMEEA
T(RERgERAE - —RARNEL
ERBHER 2 RARIR—KAZKRRLE
REBES 2 AF)RE - ARRERK
B EE RERRE AREEAE
R o

gkEFrREER REELAESH
BEMRT%TR - MEBFFEXN—
R ATRREZFHBIHHARS B 1T
B H#1 #3618 A It 71202297 A3H 2 &
(TR BHL) -

AMBRESAIEEFHTAAZERERLS
R R R £72.3378 T 2 H FHA ik B E
BARREBR(ATREBEANBREESRZ
KRNI T AR ) - BEHHK R AT #
B2 31T B R E R RRERDH
ARER S A AR IRARR 2R EE
O - B[Ol SRR BERES 2 NE B
FHEEREBEABREXTFF12%1E -
m A AR ES TR A ERFEO A W
(EREB)MAIRREFEECE(E
BREXNAE) -
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For the year ended 31 December 2022

22022 12731 H 1 F/Z
26. Convertible Bonds (Continued) 26. ATBRRESR(E)

Upon the maturity, the Company should redeem from
the bondholders all of the Convertible Bonds at an
amount equivalent to 116.5% of the principal amount
of the outstanding Convertible Bonds.

On 6 July 2022, (i) the Company, as issuer; (ii)
bondholders; and (i) Mr. Chu Hing Tsung, as guarantor,
entered into a first amendment deed (the “First
Amendment Deed”), pursuant to which the parties to
the First Amendment Deed conditionally agreed to
extend the maturity date of the Convertible Bonds to
30 December 2022 (the “New Maturity Date”). The
interest rate of the Convertible Bonds was adjusted
from 7% per annum to 12% per annum immediately
after the extension from the Relevant Payment Date to
the New Maturity Date. The maturity redemption price
payable by the Company was adjusted from 116.5%
of the outstanding principal amount of the Convertible
Bonds at the New Maturity Date to a sum equal to
the aggregate of (i) 100% of the outstanding principal
amount of the Convertible Bonds; and (ii) the interests
on 100% of the outstanding principal amount of the
Convertible Bonds accrued at 12% per annum for the
period from the date immediately after the Relevant
Payment Date up to and including the New Maturity
Date. The Convertible Bonds were secured by the
additional securities and the Company retained the
right for early redemption of the Convertible Bonds.
Further details of the First Amendment Deed are set
out in the announcement of the Company dated 6 July
2022.

On 15 July 2022, the parties in the First Amendment
Deed entered into a second amendment deed (the
“Second Amendment Deed”), pursuant to which the
parties agreed to amend certain terms of the First
Amendment Deed. The amendments included details
of the Group’s assets that were being pledged and the
requirement to set up designated bank accounts for
settlement. Further details of the Second Amendment
Deed are set out in the announcement of the Company
dated 15 July 2022.

Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited
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EAEEPLEEFRERRERR I
TERITRPHETENNFE - F2M01{E
FIREBE—TFEHRARGIBHA
202247 A15B KA ff o



NOTES TO-THE CONSOLIDATED FINANGIALSTATEMENTS 42 & B & 3R R M 5

For the year ended 31 December2022

B2 2022F 12531 HILFE
26. Convertible Bonds (Continued) 26. WEARER(ZE)

The proposed amendments became effective on
26 August 2022.

The Convertible Bonds are split into liability and
derivative financial instruments in relation to the early
redemption option and the conversion option. The
fair value of the derivative financial instruments was
determined as of the date of issue and as at 31
December 2021 by reference to valuations performed
by an independent firm of professionally qualified
valuers, Asset Appraisal Limited (“Asset Appraisal”), as
further detailed in note 27 to the consolidated financial
statements. The residual amount was assigned as
liability component and was measured at amortised
cost subsequent to the initial recognition.

During the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021,
there was no conversion of the Convertible Bonds.

As at 31 December 2022, the Convertible Bonds were
secured by certain of the Group’s loan receivables (note
20), amount due from a joint venture (note 18) and
share charges in respect of certain subsidiaries (note 1)
and an associate (note 17).

As at 31 December 2022, the Company had settled
part of the Convertible Bonds in the aggregate principal
amount of approximately HK$1,108,288,000.

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, in
March 2023, the principal amount of HK$41,712,000 of
the Convertible Bonds outstanding as at 31 December
2022 has been fully settled by the Company.

EEBIID 202248 A26 H A -

A AR B B 12 U HE B8 120 R
ERESABEBERITESBIALS - 17
FeRITAENAARBENSERILIEHES
BRREEMPHEEETEERBRA
A([PHEEENERRD]) 2 EERE
7T B B R2021F12A31BEF - B
BB BEEN GRS B mERM 27 -
MR RBIOEERBESS - LESR
RIEABESHR ARET 2 o

HE2022F K 2021F12 A31 B IFFE -
AR ESB SR o

M2022F12A318 » AJ R EHIUE
T A& B A EWE R E20) « FEUR
—RXEEDER(H E18) A K& T H
BRI R — & Qe (T
17) B R R ECAEFELR ©

M2022F12A31H AR Al B &5
Lo ES A& B8R AEY
1,108,288,000/8 7T °

RIBEHKRE - R2023%F3F » Al #
A% (&5 N2022FE 12 A1 R EE AR S
41,712,000/ TTE AR B BEEEE o
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26. Convertible Bonds (Continued)

The Convertible Bonds have been split into the liability A]mRESS BBESD
component and derivative financial instruments as BT
follows:

26. TERREHE)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4 4 Bt ¥ R & Mi 5%

For the year ended 31 December 2022
B2 20229F 12531 HILFE

HK$'000

FHET

Liability component at 1 January 2021 M2021F1 1B 2B EH S 1,232,463

Interest expense BRI 149,532

Interest paid EfTHE (80,501)
Liability component at 31 December 2021 and 202112831 H &

1 January 2022 20221 A1B 2 ABH S 1,301,494
Interest expense FEMZ 140,400
Interest paid BT FE (80,500)
Redemption premium paid B ELR(E (189,750)
Interest payable transferred to accrued EREEGTER  BBRe REMEMNK

charges, rental deposits and other payables 2 ERTH B (21,644)
Settlement BE (1,108,288)
Liability component at 31 December 2022 20225128318 28 &S 41,712

Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited

REBERZEREEER A



NOTES TO-THE CONSOLIDATED FINANGIALSTATEMENTS 42 & B & 3R R M 5

For the year ended 31 December2022
B2 2022F 12531 HILFE

27. Derivative Financial Instruments

TESMIA

2022 2021

HK$’000 HK$'000

FETT FET

Derivative financial instruments PTTESRmIT A - 22,280

As detailed in note 26 to the financial statements, the
early redemption option and the conversion option
of the Convertible Bonds are classified as derivative
financial instruments measured at fair value through
profit or loss. During the year ended 31 December
2022, the loss on fair value change of HK$22,280,000
(2021: loss on fair value change of HK$15,203,000)
was charged to profit or loss. As at 31 December
2021, the fair value was determined by Asset Appraisal
based on the Binomial Tree Pricing Model. The key
inputs into the model for the valuation are as follows:

10 BA 75 R 3R BT FE26FT It - A AR (E
HFHIE TR E S LSRR R
DEAENRARBEFEBEZEHT AR
mZESR T A RE 220227
12A31BLEFEE AAEZEHEIE
22,280,000/ 75 (20214F : A AEE

[E51815,203,000/% 7T ) B R 18w Bk ©
M20215FE12A31H » AR E R HE
EEJERERBE _BHATELE
TE o HEBENEZHASIENT

2021
Risk-free rate 4 [ e 1) 2 0.9%
Dividend yield iz B & 0%
Volatility &) 34.2%
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For the year ended 31 December 2022

B2 20229F 12531 HILFE
28. Deferred Tax Liabilities 28. EEBIEAME
The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities WEFEANRERIBEEERABZEH N
during the reporting years are as follows: T~
Revaluation
Accelerated tax Revaluation of financial
depreciation of properties assets Tax losses Total
MEHERE NEER  SREEER HEER #ct
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT FET FET T AT
At 1 January 2021 R2021E1 A1H (55) (239,774) - 1,808 (238,021)
Charged to profit or loss ERNBENG
during the year (note 70) (Hi10) = (6,321) (5,126) = (11,447)
Charged to other FRREMZERE
comprehensive income for %
the year - (261) - - (261)
Exchange realignment fE 3 - 1,187 - - 1,187
At 31 December 2021 and 1820215128318 K
1 January 2022 20221418 (55) (245,169) (5,126) 1,808 (248,542)
Credited to profit or loss FRETABEMH10)
during the year (nofe 10) - 48,030 4,925 - 52,955
Credited to other FRE AR Z AN
comprehensive income for
the year - 31353 - - 3,353
Exchange realignment B - - 201 - 201
At 31 December 2022 R2022%12A31H (55) (193,786) - 1,808 (192,033)

The Group had tax losses arising in Hong Kong of
approximately HK$1,276,248,000 as at 31 December
2022 (2021: HK$930,166,000) that are available
indefinitely for offsetting against future taxable
profits of the companies in which the losses arose.
The Group also had tax losses arising in Mainland
China of approximately HK$296,449,000 (2021:
HK$307,004,000) that will expire in one to five years
for offsetting against future taxable profits. Deferred tax
assets have not been recognised in respect of these
losses as it is not considered probable that taxable
profits will be available against which the tax losses

can be utilised.
Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited
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NOTES TO-THE CONSOLIDATED FINANGIALSTATEMENTS 42 & B & 3R R M 5

For the year ended 31 December2022
B2 2022F 12531 HILFE

28. Deferred Tax Liabilities (Continued) 28. EEZEBBREME(Z)

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a
10% withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to
foreign investors from the foreign investment enterprises
established in Mainland China. The requirement is
effective from 1 January 2008 and applies to earnings
after 31 December 2007. A lower withholding tax
rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty between
Mainland China and the jurisdiction of the foreign
investors. For the Group, the applicable rate is 5%.
The Group is therefore liable for withholding taxes on
dividends distributed by those subsidiaries established
in Mainland China in respect of earnings generated
from 1 January 2008.

At 31 December 2022 and 2021, no deferred tax
was recognised for withholding taxes that would be
payable on the unremitted earnings that were subject
to withholding taxes of the Group’s subsidiaries
established in Mainland China. In the opinion of the
directors of the Company, it is not probable that
these subsidiaries will distribute such earnings in
the foreseeable future. The aggregate amount of
temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries in Mainland China for which deferred tax
liabilities were not recognised totalled approximately
HK$2,315,700,000 as at 31 December 2022 (2021:
HK$2,671,917,000).

29. Share Capital

29.

RIEFEMEAERE - RABEAHK
T ZHNEIRE R ERIINEAREETIR L
g B ZBBUBI0%TENF - BRI T B
20084F1 A1H AR + I F 72007
F12A31B 2B 2 BF o i B At
BINHIREEFBRAE R 2 BB H B
40 - BEATENREAIEERE o BiA
SEmME  EATERS% - At - K
EBEERZERTE ALK OB A
BT B2008F 1 B1HBFTELEREFH
&2 IR B BANTEIOR -

20224 202112 A31H » HE 5
RE B R F A2 B A B R IE
FABMNTBEINR 2 RS EBF S 2T
MR EREMELERIE - KRARESRR
B ZENBARTRARERAER
RNRDIREBEN - 12022412 A31
B SERFEANHEARZREERE
ZERERAE(HERN L BEREMAE
TR IE A &) 4 A2,315,700,0007% 7T
(20214 : 2,671,917,000/87T) °

[N
Number of Nominal
value
HIE
HK$' 000
FET

shares

KRG AE
(Y

FK

BRI REAMRREA

20211 818 ~ 20214F
12A318 - 2022118 &
20224912 A31H

Issued and fully paid:

At 1 January 2021, 31 December
2021, 1 January 2022 and 31
December 2022

2,304,850 3,626,781
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4 4 Bt ¥ R & Mi 5%

For the year ended 31 December 2022
B2 20229F 12531 HILFE

30. Reserves 30. #E
The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the REERAFERBEFENFERE
movements therein for the current and prior years are FEeBENMBmR 2 mEEaEER
presented in the consolidated statement of changes in RE5 .

equity of the financial statements.

31. Acquisition of a Subsidiary that is Not a Business 31. WE—XUHFEEKNHBA A

The net assets acquired by the Group during the year H E2021F12A31H [t FEARER K
ended 31 December 2021 are as follows: BRFEEMT -
2021
Fair value
ARE
HK$'000
FEIT
Net assets acquired: BEWEFEE
Right-of-use assets ERAEEE 143
Other intangible assets HEfEpEE 5,621
Other receivables WK 406
Cash and bank balances e RIRITER 412
Accruals and other payables FEET R B A 5k (29)
Lease liabilities HEAaE (145)
6,412
Satisfied by cash AR S B 6,412
No transaction costs were incurred by the Group for AREBEWEREBRBEEENIINA
this acquisition. A o

Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited
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NOTES TO-THE CONSOLIDATED FINANGIALSTATEMENTS 42 & B & 3R R M 5

For the year ended 31 December2022

Bt 220220 12831 HILFE
31. Acquisition of a Subsidiary that is Not a Business

(Continued)

An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the
acquisition of a subsidiary is as follows:

W - RAFREBENHNELQR
(#)

WEMBARINEERESTAT -

2021

HK$'000

FET

Cash consideration BeRE (6,412)

Deposit paid as at 31 December 2020 M2020F12 A31 HEZ R HE 2,406

Cash and bank balances acquired BUEEIR & KIR1TAE R 412
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents HABRBEESIRS RENRERIRSE

included in cash flows used in investing A E R
activities (3,594)

On 20 December 2019, the Group entered into a sale
and purchase agreement with an independent third
party in respect of the acquisition of the entire issued
share capital of Jinluo Capital Management Limited
(“Jinluo”) at a total consideration of HK$6,000,000. The
transaction was completed on 1 July 2021.

Pursuant to the relevant sale and purchase agreement,
the cash consideration was adjusted to HK$6,412,000
based on the net asset value of Jinluo as at 1 July
2021.

The above acquisition has been accounted for by the
Group as an acquisition of assets as the entity acquired
by the Group does not constitute a business.

MR2019F 128208 » AEE BB F
=RV BB W ARERENERE
6,000,000 TWHERRERERER
AR DHEBEBITRAE - ZX
SEMR2021F7 A1B T °

RIBEHABEEE RS BeRERES
BR2021F7A1EMBEEFEAR A
6,412,000/ JT °

HRARERBNERL TERER -
HEAKEHS E R EIER—RHEER
BAK -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %

For the year ended 31 December 2022
B2 20229F 12531 HILFE

32. Notes to the Consolidated Statement of Cash
Flows

(a)

32. KEHERERM:E

Chik B

Changes in liabilities arising from financing (a) BMEXBFELEZEEEH
activities
Lease Convertible
Borrowings liabilities bonds
& HEEaRE CIE: e
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FEIT FEIT FET
At 1 January 2021 202141 18 1,940,421 48,532 1,232,463
Changes from financing cash R&IR&REE
flows 1,788,300 = =
Interest expense of AT R E S
convertible bonds ZH B — — 149,532
Interest paid classified as DHEAKEEERE
operating cash flows ZBEAFE — - (80,501)
Accretion of interest FNRERAFSIG
recognised during the year — 4,436 —
Acquisition of a subsidiary U B — RS B B A ) — 145 _
Exchange realignment P& 5 5,944 1,339 —
At 31 December 2021 and 72021412 A31H
1 January 2022 K2022F1H1H 3,734,665 54,452 1,301,494
Changes from financing cash &R & RS &
flows 494,892 (2,920)  (1,108,288)
Interest expense of AR ESFZFE
convertible bonds Sodun] - - 140,400
Interest and redemption DEAKERERE
premium paid classified as  Z 2 FE & ED
operating cash flows ikl - - (270,250)
Accretion of interest FRIER BT BN
recognised during the year - 4,101 -
Amount transferred to ERSEAER -
accrued charges, rental M e M EA
deposits and other Bz &%8
payables - (2,920) -
Interest payable transferred ®EEEEER
to accrued charges, MBiEe R HEA
rental deposits and other IS FR 2 e F S
payables - - (21,644)
Exchange realignment PE % (298,817) (4,710) -
At 31 December 2022 2022512 A31H 3,930,740 48,003 41,712

Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited
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NOTES TO-THE CONSOLIDATED FINANGIALSTATEMENTS 42 & B & 3R R M 5

For the year ended 31 December2022

B E2022F 12531 HILFE
32. Notes to the Consolidated Statement of Cash

33.

34.

Flows (Continued)
(b) Total cash outflow for leases

The total cash outflow for leases included in the
statement of cash flows is as follows:

32. MEREREBRMWE(E)

(b) HEERESRHAHE

AARERERZEERER
ET

2022 2021

HK$’000 HK$°000

FET FET

Within operating activities REEEEFPESE 4,101 4,436
Within financing activities REE GNP ESE 2,920 —
7,021 4,436

Pledge of Assets

Details of the Group’s assets pledged for the Group’s
borrowings and convertible bonds are included in notes
1,17, 23, 25(a) and 26 to the financial statements.

Commitments

The Group had the following capital commitments at
the end of the reporting period:

33. EEHEMH
MAEBER L ABRESFCEAZE
EFBHRYBREN T - WHeE17
Bif5E23 - B sE25(a) K 7526 o

34. RiIE
RNEBPBERREGIA T EARALE :

2022 2021

HK$°000 HK$'000
FET TET

Contracted, but not provided for: DEEEW KRR
Unlisted equity securities I ETRAES

167,973 183,374
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4 4 Bt ¥ R & Mi 5%

For the year ended 31 December 2022
B2 20229F 12531 HILFE

35. Related Party Transactions 35.

In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere

(a)

in the financial statements, the Group had the

B S X5

BB mREMBO AR zRS
S AREERF AR T ETT

(a)

following transactions with related parties during T 5 -
the year:
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Interest income from a joint venture —RELEBRFEZFBWA 44,666 55,560
Interest expense to non-controlling B /88 2 ) FEERR AR 3R
shareholders of subsidiaries 2B 1,744 3,499
Interest expense to a substantial FERRE2FEZT
shareholder 54,939 58,512
Management fee to an entity controlled X REMEAE—RTH
by close family member of Mr. Chu THIERC ERE
Hing Tsung 1,651 1,779
Motor vehicle leasing income from a —REEDLFEZRE
joint venture HEWA 1,007 =

The above transactions were conducted in
accordance with the terms of the underlying
agreements. In the opinion of the directors of the
Company, the related party transactions were
conducted in the ordinary course of business of
the Group.

(b) Compensation of key management personnel

of the Group

In the opinion of the directors of the Company,
the directors and the co-chief executive officers
of the Company represented the key management
personnel of the Group and details of the
compensation of the key management personnel
are set out in note 8 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited

REBERZEREEER A

bt 32 5 T3 IR B AR R 1 2 IR K
EIT - ARAEERAS - BB
RN AKEREEBBER

yny

#EIT -

(b) ZEETEEEAEME

ARREERR ARAEER
RETRARSAREZEES
BAE -FHAIE2EEAEHNE
ZFHBEINAR A M T RIS o



NOTES TO-THE CONSOLIDATED FINANGIALSTATEMENTS 42 & B & 3R R M 5

For the year ended 31 December2022
B2 2022F 12531 HILFE

36. BERESZEMITA

36. Financial Instruments by Category

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of

financial instruments as at the end of the reporting T~

period are as follows:

Financial assets

2022

TREE

20224

Financial assets at fair value

through profit or loss

EREMITARREPRRNEEEN

NAAEGEEHES
TARENEREE
Designated Financial
as such Mandatorily assets
upon initial designated at amortised
recognition as such cost
REe
i1k BT EH
BRREE BEIEE SREE Bt
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FE FE FET FET
Amounts due from joint ventures YA EER - - 430,437 430,437
Financial assets at fair value WRAnBEEAHE
through profit or loss Bt ABENE R
BE 156,385 654,684 - 811,069
Loan receivables EER - - 2,246,377 2,246,377
Trade receivables FEUBR X - - 3,934 3,934
Financial assets included in FARSE - BERR
deposits, prepayments and Hih U 2 & A
other receivables BE - - 905,056 905,056
Amount due from an associate  JEU—FEEE A BIH - - 439,486 439,486
Restricted bank balance ZRBIBITES - - 674,814 674,814
Cash and bank balances Be RFTEH - - 97,517 97,517
156,385 654,684 4,797,621 5,608,690
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
B2 20229F 12531 HILFE

36. Financial Instruments by Category (Continued) 36. REHESZEMIA(E)
Financial assets (Continued) cRMEEE)
2021 20214

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

WAREFERHES
FTABRNEREE
Designated Financial
as such Mandatorily assets
upon initial designated at amortised
recognition as such cost Total
R
iNIb2 G EH)
HRRIETE REIETE SREE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FET FHET
Amounts due from joint ventures FEURA &£ - - 1,809,042 1,809,042
Financial assets at fair value WRABEEAHE
through profit or loss P ABRNER
BE 242,810 877,558 = 1,120,368
Loan receivables EWER - - 2,239,727 2,239,727
Trade receivables TEUBR X - - 4,377 4,377
Financial assets included in FARS  BARR
deposits, prepayments and Hib Uz &
other receivables BE - - 713,818 713,818
Amount due from an associate  [EUR—FREHE A R - - 560,690 560,690
Pledged bank deposits BERRITER - - 24,450 24,450
Cash and bank balances e RIBTEH - - 116,755 116,755
242,810 877,558 5,468,859 6,589,227
Financial liabilities TRasE

Other than the derivative financial instruments as

disclosed in note 27 to the consolidated financial

statements, all financial liabilities of the Group as at 31

December 2022 and 2021 were financial liabilities at

amortised cost.

Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited
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NOTES TO-THE CONSOLIDATED FINANGIALSTATEMENTS 42 & B & 3R R M 5

For the year ended 31 December2022
B2 2022F 12531 HILFE

37. Fair Value and Fair Value Hierarchy of Financial

Instruments

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial
instruments reasonably approximate to fair values.

Management has assessed that the fair values of
trade receivables, financial assets included in deposits,
prepayments and other receivables, amounts due from
joint ventures, loan receivables, pledged bank deposits,
cash and bank balances, financial liabilities included in
accrued charges, rental deposits and other payables
and the current portion of borrowings approximate to
their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term
maturities of these instruments.

The Group’s finance department headed by the
directors of the Company is responsible for determining
the policies and procedures for the fair value
measurement of financial instruments. The finance
department reports directly to the directors and the
audit committee of the Company. At each reporting
date, the finance department of the Group analyses the
movements in the values of financial instruments and
determines the major inputs applied in the valuation.
The valuation is reviewed and approved by the directors
of the Company. The valuation process and results are
discussed with the audit committee twice a year for
interim and annual financial reporting.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are
included at the amount at which the instruments could
be exchanged in a current transaction between willing
parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale.

37. ERMIECZARBERAABER

AEBEeMIAZRAEBEAEMEART
BHEE -

EEEDEREIRR  stAKS - B
NREEMERRc EREE - BRE
BEEN BUREN SEMRRTHE
R Be RIRTTER - T ARTER
BHZeREMENRZEBBENRL
fERORBE D 2 N EEEREER
- I2ARZREIAZIHBRE -

MARRREFEHENAEEHBHEIIR
BETERIAQABEFEZHERIE
Fr o MBRFIERAARAES REZ
ZEERE NEHREEH  AEEY
BEHRes eI A EEZSHUE
EREMAZEZHABE - AEAX
REEERERZRIE - HEBEMER
MEZZBEBFAWMMR - UEZ5
THRFREMBRS

ERMEERRBZAREBERIAEARS
BERAERARZIP AR EBEAR
SR SR E BRI o
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For the year ended 31 December 2022

B2 20229F 12531 HILFE
37. Fair Value and Fair Value Hierarchy of Financial

Instruments (Continued)

The following methods and assumptions were used to
estimate the fair values:

The fair values of non-current portion of amount due
from an associate, loan receivables and borrowings
have been calculated by discounting the expected
future cash flows using rates currently available for
instruments with similar terms, credit risk and remaining
maturities. The fair value of the liability component
of the convertible bonds is estimated by discounting
the expected future cash flows using an equivalent
market interest rate for a similar convertible bond with
consideration of the Group’s own non-performance
risk. The changes in fair value as a result of the
Group’s own non-performance risk for borrowings
as at 31 December 2022 and 2021 were assessed
to be insignificant. In the opinion of the directors of
the Company, since their carrying amounts are not
significantly different from their respective fair values, no
disclosure of fair values of these financial instruments is
made.

The fair values of the listed equity investments are
based on their quoted market prices. The fair values
of certain club debentures have been valued based on
historical transaction price from the relevant institutions,
which are classified as Level 2. The fair values of
unlisted securities and unlisted funds are based on
adjusted net assets approach by adjusting the book
value of assets and liabilities of investees to their fair
values, or estimated by using a discounted cash flow
valuation model based on the contractual disposal
price of an unlisted security.

The fair value of the non-performing asset portfolio
is estimated by discounting the expected future
cash flows using rates for instruments with similar
terms, credit risk and the aggregate of the values of
the underlying collateral secured to the respective
outstanding receivables owned by the creditors. The
Group’s own non-performance risk for non-performing
asset portfolio as at 31 December 2022 and 2021 was
assessed to be insignificant.

Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited
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ERBRARE Z R ETERE TSR
BEE - &TEMESFZANETIRE
FARBEEZRZE/EEME - &I
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EERABEEARE  RELHARFE
EAEE  ZIRBE-BFLTESFZE
MHESBERFARSRERAMA
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NOTES TO-THE CONSOLIDATED FINANGIALSTATEMENTS 42 & B & 3R R M 5

For the year ended 31 December2022

B E2022F 12831 H I F/&

37. Fair Value and Fair Value Hierarchy of Financial

Instruments (Continued)

The directors of the Company believe that the
estimated fair values resulting from the valuation
technique, which are recorded in the consolidated
statement of financial position, and the related changes
in fair values, which are recorded in profit or loss, are
reasonable, and that they were the most appropriate
values at the end of the reporting period.

Below is a summary of significant unobservable inputs
to the valuation of unlisted equity securities, unlisted
funds and non-performing asset portfolio:

37. ERMIECZARBERAABER

(&)

ARREZRA  ABERMAEHZ
AR AR EGIAREMHRRER) KA
REREEHGTABR)BEE - B
BERRZEBELZEE

AT RIFLTEARZS  FELETEER
TREEMAGHRENEATAERGA
HIEHME

Significant
Valuation techniques unobservable inputs
HER % EXTTEERAYE

Unlisted equity securities and
unlisted funds

FEMBAERRFLIES

Non-performing assets portfolio

TREERR

Adjusted net asset approach

BEBNFEREL

Discounted cash flow
approach

NRASREE

Book value of assets and 475 532
liabilities of the investees
adjusted to their fair value
(HKS million)
BRENRAERBENEE
EREZENAE(BERAT)

Aggregate of the valuation of the 408 565
individual underlying collateral
secured to the respective
outstanding receivables
owned by the creditors
(HKS million)
HEEAMEROERARE
e (o L el
ERnmftELR(BBET)

A 1% increase/decrease in the fair values of assets and
liabilities of the investees would result in an increase/
a decrease in the fair value of the unlisted equity
securities of HK$4,750,000 (2021: HK$5,320,000).

A 1% increase/decrease in the fair value of the
collateral for the respective non-performing assets
would result in an increase/a decrease in the fair value
of the non-performing assets portfolio of HK$4,080,000
(2021: HK$5,650,000).

WIRERRMNEERBEZANEL
m/ mA1% - S ERIE ETRAE S
B A R E R 24,750,000 T
(20214 : 5,320,000/ 7T ) °

ETREEMNERRKZANEL
m/ H1%  BERTREEHEN
NARED RGN 82 4,080,000% 7T
(20214 : 5,650,000/ 7T ) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2022

B2 20229F 12531 HILFE
37. Fair Value and Fair Value Hierarchy of Financial 37. TWMIAZAABERAABER
Instruments (Continued) (4 )
Fair value hierarchy DAREER
The following tables illustrate the fair value TRETAEESHIAEZAAENE
measurement hierarchy of the Group’s financial E
instruments:
Fair value measurement using
ERTHREZARETE
Quoted
prices Significant Significant
in active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs
RERT S EXTHE EXFIEE
ZHE WAHE BABE
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
HK$°000 TER (1) (%E24%) (%E3%) Fo

Assets measured at fair value — F2022412H31H
as at 31 December 2022: BAREGEZEE

Derivative financial instruments #7444 @ T A - - = =
4=y

Financial assets at fair value NARET 2 AEEE)
through profit or loss FABRRNERMEE 66,909 2,370 741,790 811,069

66,909 2,370 741,790 811,069

Assets measured at fair value — R2021E12/31H

as at 31 December 2021: BAREHEZEE -
Derivative financial instruments  $14 4@ T & - - 22,280 22,280
Financial assets at fair value IARETEREES)

through profit or loss FTAEENEREE 169,992 2,780 947 596 1,120,368

169,992 2,780 969,876 1,142,648

During the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, B ZE2022%F K2021F12A31H L FE -
there were no transfers of fair value measurements SREERSREBENENFE1RESED
between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into or T BEBREIAARETSE - TEEA
out of Level 3 for both financial assets and financial o EE H B3 o
liabilities.

254 Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited
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For the year ended 31 December2022
B2 2022F 12531 HILFE

37. Fair Value and Fair Value Hierarchy of Financial 37. EMIAZAABERAAEBESES
Instruments (Continued) (4 )
Fair value hierarchy (Continued) DAREER(E)
The movements in fair value measurements in Level 3 FR - EIWAZAAEFERLEWT:

during the years are as follows:

Financial
assets
SREE
HK$'000
FET
At 1 January 2021 7202141 H1H 908,562
Additions of financial assets at fair NEBEREIRANENER
value through profit or loss measured  HEFt ABRN S REE
at fair value in Level 3 335,862
Disposal of financial assets at fair value HEREIBAAEER
through profit or loss measured at H é}]af)\}amfﬂ”]imﬁﬁﬁ
fair value in Level 3 (154,853)
Total loss recognised in profit or loss  Ri8zHER ~ EiBsa%E (145,929)
Exchange realignment fE 5 3% 26,234
At 31 December 2021 and 1 January 52021412831 H
2022 &202241 A1 A 969,876
Additions of financial assets at fair NBEERBEIFAAETER
value through profit or loss measured ~ HE Bt ABSNESREE
at fair value in Level 3 35,437
Disposal of financial assets at fair value HEREIRANEFER
through profit or loss measured at HEFHTAEBZNEREE
fair value in Level 3 (50,038)
Total loss recognised in profit or loss  RIEZER Y K845 (138,720)
Exchange realignment PE & 2 (74,765)
At 31 December 2022 2022412 4318 741,790

T
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38. Financial Risk Management Objectives and

Policies

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise
borrowings, amounts due from an associate and
joint ventures, pledged bank deposits and bank
balances and cash. The main purpose of these
financial instruments is to raise finance for the Group’s
operations. The Group has various other financial
assets and liabilities such as trade receivables, which
arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial
instruments are interest rate risk, foreign currency
risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The directors of the
Company review and agree policies for managing each
of these risks and they are summarised below.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to risk for changes in market
interest rates relates primarily to the Group’s
borrowings set out in note 25 to the consolidated
financial statements. The Group does not use derivative
financial instruments to hedge interest rate risk. The
Group manages its interest cost using a mix of fixed
and variable rate borrowings.

At 31 December 2022, if the interest rate of borrowings
had increased/decreased by 1% and all other variables
held constant, the loss before taxation of the Group,
through the impact on floating rate borrowings,
would have increased/decreased by approximately
HK$22,412,000 (2021: HK$19,123,000).

Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
B2 20229F 12531 HILFE

38. cREAREEEEREE

FEECFESRTIABREER  EBK
—RKBERRRAELENR - SR
TERMRITEREEE - ZF2RT
AT ERZERAKEBERHEEER
B  AREBRRERELHAMS
MEENAE BEEXEBEEXBZE -

AEEeRTAMEETERR AN X
Rk - SNEER  EERBRERRBES
Rk - AAREEFEHIREARBER
b BIEER 2 BER - WA T -

N =E R

AEBEFEYH 2 TSN EREERTE
BRSPS mRM 2B 2 AR EE
KB - AREYERERTESHMTA
PAS R M R B o 78 5= B R A B E A
BRI REFASEEENERAN

R2022F12 4310 » AT A H & 8
REFTENERT - WERFELH
S TBE1% - B Z BT RERZE
2 REBERTATESEAAG ML
22 412,000/ 7(20214 : 19,123,000
BIT) °
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B2 2022F 12531 HILFE

38. SREAMEEEERBE(EZ)

38. Financial Risk Management Objectives and

Policies (Continued)
Foreign currency risk

The major financial assets and liabilities of the Group
are denominated in the functional currency of the
respective group entities. Other than a loan receivable
which is denominated in United States dollars, the
directors of the Company consider that the Group’s
exposure to foreign currency exchange risk is
insignificant as the majority of the Group’s transactions
are denominated in the functional currency of each
individual group entity.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group
did not use any financial instruments for hedging
purposes (2021: Nil).

Credit risk

The Group only trades with recognised and creditworthy
third parties. It is the Group’s policy that all customers
who wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit
verification procedures. In addition, receivable balances
are monitored on an ongoing basis.

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets,
which comprise loans receivable, amounts due from
joint ventures and an associate, pledged bank deposits
and cash and bank balance, arises from default of the
counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal to the
carrying amounts of these instruments.

For the Group’s trade receivables, since the Group only
trades with recognised and creditworthy third parties,
there is no requirement for collateral. Concentration
of credit risk is managed by counterparty. There is no
significant concentration of credit risk for the Group’s
trade receivables.

SRR

AEETECREENEBUSEEE
BRI ERHE - IRUAKTRHEZE
WEFRS - RABEERRAKEE
EREOSNE R\ B I K - [RERANE B H
RBARHUNEBILEBERNINGES
®itE -

HE2022F12A31H IEFEA » NE&E
B EF AR TAEEL HAE
(20214 : 4&) o

FERRE

AEEERERAREERFZF=

ETRP - AEBENBEKRR - AR
EEBEIRSNEFPHRETEERR
BFF - Mo BEREHRIIFERS

.

AEBEMESREERERRER - &
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4 4 Bt ¥ R & Mi 5%

For the year ended 31 December 2022

BIZFE2022F 1231 HIFFZ

38. Financial Risk Management Objectives and 38. 2RIEAKREEBERKE(Z)
Policies (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued) EERK(E)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging RERBRFLZER

TRETERAEEEERRNEREE

The tables below show the credit quality and the

maximum exposure to credit risk based on the Group’s ZkEREERR(ZEROHERSE
credit policy, which is mainly based on past due o BRIEE A A5 E KB AN B EEINK
information unless other information is available without RS ) AR 20224 k20214
undue cost or effort, and year-end staging classification 12AMEMFERER S - IREHE
as at 31 December 2022 and 2021. The amounts REMEEREA mﬁﬁﬁﬂﬂ%%‘ﬁé\%’ﬂﬁ
represented gross carrying amounts for financial e EERM -

assets and the exposure to credit risk for the financial
guarantee contracts.

"2022F12H31H

As at 31 December 2022

12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
12f8 A
GEFR 2HEHEEESR
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 3 approach
HK$'000 TEx K& E=RB A%
Trade receivables [EWEER - - - 3,934 3,934
Loan receivables },‘éfuﬁlg?ﬁ
— Normal* g - - - - -
— Doubtful* - AR - 1,919,899 475,800 - 2,395,699
Financial assets included in st A%% - BAZRA
deposits, prepayments and  fElFz SREE
other receivables
— Normal* - 439,250 - - - 439,250
— Doubtful* - A - 391,494 106,829 - 498,323
Amount due from an associate JEU—REEE A FIH
— Doubtful* - AR - 523,099 - - 523,099
Amount due from joint ventures €Y A“ﬁ%%
— Normal* " 440,014 - - - 440,014
Pledged bank deposits E%Wfﬁﬁﬁ
— Not et past due - AR - - - - -
Restricted bank balance RRHIRTER
— Not yet past due - WABH 674,814 - - - 674,814
Cash and bank balances B4RPTER
— Not yet past due - HAAH 97,517 - - - 97,517
1,651,595 2,834,492 582,629 3,934 5,072,650

Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited
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NOTES TO-THE CONSOLIDATED FINANGIALSTATEMENTS 42 & B & 3R R M 5

For the year ended 31 December2022
B2 2022F 12531 HILFE

38. Financial Risk Management Objectives and
Policies (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging (Continued)

As at 31 December 2021

38. cREKREEEERBK(E)

FERBRE)

REBBRFEAER(E)

202112 A31H

12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
12{8 AT ES
FEBR 2HRHEEEHE
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
HK$'000 TEL FB& FHE FoRE BlthA @it
Trade receivables G - - = 4377 4377
Loan receivables M ERR
— Normal* - 1,622,249 - - - 1,622,249
— Doubtful* - A& - 629,520 - - 629,520
Financial assets included in it AKR% » BRFRE
deposits, prepayments and Nz SREE
other receivables
— Normal* - 713,818 - - - 713,818
Amount due from an associate [EY—FREEE A A5
— Doubtful* - A& - 570,106 - - 570,106
Amount due from joint ventures [EURA £ MEH
— Normal* -8 1,812,578 - - - 1,812,578
Pledged bank deposits BERRTEH
— Not yet past due - HAREH 24,450 - - - 24,450
Cash and bank balances BARPTER
— Not yet past due - WA 116,755 = = = 116,755
4,289,850 1,199,626 - 4,377 5,493,853
* The credit quality of loan receivables, financial assets MEKER  stAKS  BNRRE

included in deposits, prepayments and other receivables
and amounts due from an associate and joint ventures
is considered to be “normal” when they are not past
due and there is no information indicating that the
financial assets had a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition. Otherwise, the credit quality of
the financial assets is considered to be “doubtful”.

il FE U TR S R DA % R M — SR Bk
ERRRAEEERME @ MLRE
HEBEHBETRELRMEEZER
BB RERAREERS - B
EEERREAILEE] - B - ZF
CREENERAREERIAILR] -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4 4 Bt ¥ R & Mi 5%

For the year ended 31 December 2022
B2 20229F 12531 HILFE

38. Financial Risk Management Objectives and 38. 2RIEAKREEBERKE(Z)
Policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk REBESER

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between REBEZBEAB BB AER
continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of RESIFEMEBZMIRE - 1IN B
borrowings. In addition, banking facilities have been put HBHIRITRLE - AEBE TR -

in place for contingency purposes.

The table below summarises the maturity profile of TRBMBRIEEHNRBEBNREEES
the Group’s financial liabilities based on contractual BaE BB -

undiscounted payments.

As at 31 December 2022 2022%12H31H

In the
Within one third to
year or In the fifth years, Beyond

on demand second year inclusive five years
R—FRg RE=ZERE
HK$'000 THR RER RE-F (ERERWE) REERE

Accrued charges, rental [EirER - AkEe

deposits and other REMERZ
payables 1,204,446 - - - 1,204,446
Convertible bonds mRRES 41,712 - - - 41,712
Borrowings fE3n 1,686,916 687,248 2,364,563 = 4,738,727
Lease liabilities RERR 5,839 5,839 18,569 43,228 73,475
Financial guarantee contracts B BERA ) 3,576,622 - - - 3,576,622
6,515,535 693,087 2,383,132 43,228 9,634,982

260 Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited
REFBEZEREEERAQAF



NOTES TO-THE CONSOLIDATED FINANGIALSTATEMENTS 42 & B & 3R R M 5

For the year ended 31 December2022
B2 2022F 12531 HILFE

38. Financial Risk Management Objectives and

38. SREMEEEERBEK(E)

Policies (Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued)

As at 31 December 2021

RBEERMREE)

7202112 HA31H

In the
Within one third to
year or In the fifth years, Beyond
on demand second year inclusive five years Total
R—FR3% RE=ZERE
HK$'000 THET REL RE_E (REEERME) REFUE @t
Accrued charges, rental T ER - HEHEe
deposits and other REM M
payables 405,116 - - - 405,116
Convertible bonds ERES 1,380,000 - - - 1,380,000
Borrowings g5 885,257 399,567 3,740,870 - 5,025,694
Lease liabilities HERE 5,214 5,214 16,269 44,130 70,827
Financial guarantee contracts EIF&#E(RA4) 3,841,990 - - - 3,841,990
6,517,577 404,781 3,757,139 44,130 10,723,627
Capital management EXER

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital
management are to safeguard the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern and to maintain healthy
capital ratios in order to support its business and
maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic
conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying
assets. To maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the dividend payment to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue
new shares. The Group is not subject to any externally
imposed capital requirements. No changes were made
in the objectives, policies or processes for managing
capital during the years ended 31 December 2022 and
2021.

AEBEEREATESHEBRASELE
WFBERELEFREEARLE - X
FSHEB R BBRRAERAEE -

AEEEEEERNEE  WHARBLKER
RS REEEE CRRFHEL
Bo RERLARERGERE  ~EEA
AERABRFRTZRE - RRZERE
WK BITHRG  c AKREHAZEM
SNEBHEIM 2 EREKFTHAR - RBE
20224 202112 A31 B ILFE - &
BEARZBE  BRIEFHETHE
@J o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4 4 Bt ¥ R & Mi 5%

For the year ended 31 December 2022
B2 20229F 12531 HILFE

38. Financial Risk Management Objectives and 38.

Policies (Continued)
Capital management (Continued)

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which
is total borrowings over equity attributable to owners
of the Company. Total borrowings included borrowings
and convertible bonds. The gearing ratios as at the end
of the reporting periods were as follows:

TREREEEERBER(E)

EXEE(E)

AEERAEERBLREREANF
RALL R Ty DAtE KB RRRR AR R B A A
FEIEER L - EREBEBRERRA
BERES - REEHER  AEEZE
ERELERET :

2022 2021

HK$’000 HK$°000

FET FAET

Short-term borrowings SEEIEEAN 1,388,974 541,037

Long-term borrowings RHER 2,541,766 3,193,628

Convertible bonds AR (E 5 41,712 1,301,494

Total borrowings BN BEE 3,972,452 5,036,159
Equity attributable to owners of the RRABIHE ARG

Company 4,022,397 5,231,344

Gearing ratio BEEABLE 99% 96%

Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited
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NOTES TO-THE CONSOLIDATED FINANGIALSTATEMENTS 42 & B & 3R R M 5

For the year ended 31 December2022
B2 2022F 12531 HILFE

39. Statement of Financial Position of the 39. AR AB AR EK

Company

2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Investment properties BREWME 104,107 120,142
Property, plant and equipment M B MR AE 35,706 39,238
Unlisted investments in subsidiaries WERIELETHB AR 675,433 675,433
Amounts due from subsidiaries e D= NEI BN 3,176,853 3,940,359
Amount due from an associate JE I — SR B & A R R 10,410 10,410
Financial assets at fair value through A AEFTE BHEB) T AR
profit or loss AN EREE 1,640 118,078
Total non-current assets FRBEERE 4,004,149 4,903,660
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Deposits, prepayments and other e - BRI EMERGK
receivables 101,894 72,503
Amounts due from subsidiaries RIS NEIEN 121,974 182,503
Financial assets at fair value through A RAEFTE BHE BT AR
profit or loss EHERMEE 76,235 4,965
Loan receivables FEUE K 438,614 476,339
Cash and bank balances H& RIRTTHE G 2,258 57,845
Derivative financial instruments PTEemMIA - 22,280
Total current assets MEVEERE 740,975 816,435
CURRENT LIABILITIES B EE
Accrued charges, rental deposits and  EFTE A - MKk e R EME
other payables 3k 768,599 62,254
Amounts due to subsidiaries JE AT BT /B8 2 BRI K 154,631 154,630
Other borrowings H a5 180,000 176,700
Convertible bonds ARRES 41,712 1,301,494
Total current liabilities mMENE ERE 1,144,942 1,695,078
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4 4 Bt ¥ R & Mi 5%

For the year ended 31 December 2022
B2 20229F 12531 HILFE

39. Statement of Financial Position of the

Company (Continued)

39. ARARYPBMRRRER(E)

2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES BEREAEE (403,967) (878,643)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT EEHABERABES
LIABILITIES 3,600,182 4,025,017
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES knBERE
Deferred tax liabilities R IE B E 8,863 8,863
Total non-current liabilities FERBAaGEEE 8,863 8,863
Net assets FEE 3,591,319 4,016,154
EQUITY B RE
Equity attributable to owners of the A T#EH AB{ERE
Company
Share capital f&% 7R 3,626,781 3,626,781
Reserves s (35,462) 389,373
Total equity fE B E 3,591,319 4,016,154
Chen Yongcun Luo Zhihai
BRKTF EEE
Director % Director %

Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited
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NOTES TO-THE CONSOLIDATED FINANGIALSTATEMENTS 42 & B & 3R R M 5

For the year ended 31 December2022
B2 2022F 12531 HILFE

39. Statement of Financial

40.

Company (Continued)

Position of the

39. XATHMBRREKEZ)

Note: Hiez -
A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows: AR TREEBRnT
Retained
Asset profits/

revaluation

(Accumulated

reserve losses) Total
REBEF,
EESMHEE (RFtER) @t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHETT FAET FET
At 1 January 2021 20211 A1H8 92,832 319,000 411,832
Loss for the year FREE — (29,256) (29,256)
Other comprehensive income for the G N H 2 E Uz
year 6,797 — 6,797
Total comprehensive income/(loss) for  FRZEKZ,
the year (E518) s 6,797 (29,256) (22,450)
At 31 December 2021 and 1 January 72021412 A31 B
2022 202241 81H 99,629 289,744 389,373
Loss for the year FREE - (422,166) (422,166)
Other comprehensive loss for the year R Hith 2 H E518 (2,669) — (2,669)
Total comprehensive loss for the year X2 HEE B (2,669) (422,166) (424,835)
At 31 December 2022 20224128310 96,960 (132,422) (35,462)

Approval of the Financial Statements

The financial statements were approved and authorised

40. HAEMKERRK

B RERMAARAIESZER2023F3 A

for issue by the board of directors on 30 March 2023. 30H BRI T]E -
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY B} & #1 &

For the year ended 31 December 2022

B E20220F 12531 HILFE
Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31ALEE
2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
(Restated) (Restated)
(Z=51) (&=51)
HK$ Million — HKS Milion — HK$ Milion — HK$ Million Nl &N lITN]
BE#T BEBT BE#T BEZT BEET
(Note)
(Friz)
Results £
Revenue WA 105.6 107.6 89.1 87.4 96.9
Profit/(loss) for the year ARRHEEAEEER
attributable to owners of the wAl/ (B18)
Company (49.4) 25 (317.6) (1,452.6) (734.6)
At 31 December
W12A31H
2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
(Restated)
(EE7)
HK$ Milion — HKS$ Million — HK$ Million — HK$ Million e[ E&X 1T
BEHT BEET BEETL BEHT BEET
(Note)
(Hizt)
Assets and liabilities BERER
Investment properties and REMERDE  BER
property, plant and equipment R 6,306.0 2,800.2 2,875.2 3,001.7 2,547.3
Land use rights =+ i {5 R 178.4 = = = -
Goodwill [EES 39.5 - - - -
Other intangible assets HiEREE - - - 2.8 -
Right-of-use assets ERESE - - 54.2 51.8 43.7
Interests in associates BeNAER 1,335.1 77.1 85.6 335.5 309.5
Interests in joint ventures AELEER - 3,128.9 3,033.4 1,568.4 1,506.3
Financial assets at fair value IARETEREES
though profit or loss STABERSREE
— non-current — ERE 228.8 2.8 2.8 167.6 1.6
Amount due from an associate  JE—REE A FHK
— non-current — ERE - — - 560.7 439.5
Amount due from joint ventures ~ EUAERER
— non-current — ERE — 1,165.0 969.9 1,748.0 -
Loan receivables — non-current  [EWE R — kR E) 277.5 160.9 231.9 - -
Net current assets FREEE 691.2 2,285.0 3,221.1 1,776.3 2,426.4
9,056.5 9,619.9 10,4741 9,212.8 7,274.3
Share capital B A 3,626.8 3,626.8 3,626.8 3,626.8 3,626.8
Reserves =4 3,122.0 2,995.4 2,933.0 1,604.6 395.6
Equity attributable to owners of A7 BB A FE(L
the Company 6,748.8 6,622.2 6,559.8 5,231.4 4,022.4
Non-controlling interests FEIR AR 854.4 902.1 824.2 486.9 472.1
Non-current liabilities ERBHEE 1,453.3 2,095.3 3,090.1 3,494.6 2,779.8

Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited
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FINANCIALSUMMARY-B1 & £ =

For the year ended 31 December2022
B2 2022F 12531 HILFE

Note: In Year 2018, the Group has applied HKFRS 15, HKFRS
9 and other amendments to HKFRSs. Accordingly, certain
comparative information for the years ended 31 December,
2016 and 2017 may not be comparable to the years ended 31
December, 2018 and 2019 as such comparative information
was prepared under HKAS 18, HKAS 11 and HKAS 39.

il

M2018FE  ASEERESTERE
R FE155% - BAEY IS LS ERFO% K&
BEREMBREERNEAISET - At - BE
20164 K2017F12A31B & T & E &
A BE K A€ B2 & 220184 K20194E12 A 31
BERLLE  EZABEERUE S
HAIFE185 - BE QT LEAUFIRRES
S ERIEIRALR
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SUMMARY OF INVESTMENT PROPERTIES REY ¥ E

For the year ended 31 December 2022
B2 20229F 12531 HILFE

The following is a list of the Group’s investment properties at
31 December 2022:

T AKREBR2022F12 A31 HHIRE W E
EE

Investment properties in the PRC NRHPEZREYE
Location Lease term Purpose Gross area
i B THAHAPR Jizkes EEmE
Sq. ft.
SZ LS
1. Basement 1, Basement 2, Level O and Level 1 to 3 of Medium Commercial 700,427
East Gate Plaza, 19 Dongzhong Street, Dongcheng term lease [EES
District, Beijing, The PRC R HA
FEIE R R R P 1R RIRESMEE
WE2E - KERIEZIE
2. Level 4 to 31 of South Apartment Tower (including Long lease Residential 31,171
401, 402, 403, 405, 406, 407, 408, 501, 502, 508, K Hf F=
505, 506, 507, 508, 30/F and 31/F), East Gate Plaza,
39 Dongzhong Street, Dongcheng District, Beijing,
The PRC
REIE R TR E R R AR R IRESEEABE
E4E31E (BFE401, 402, 403, 405, 406, 407, 408,
501, 502, 503, 505, 506, 507, 508, 30#& &311&)
& Level 4 to 31, North Apartment Tower, East Gate Long lease Residential 339,993
Plaza, 19 Dongzhong Street, Dongcheng District, K HA x=
Beijing, The PRC
FEIE R REERFPEF195RRIRESILEATE
F4E31
4. Portion of Level 2-5, 6 and 8 of Hua Po Lou, No. 28 Medium term Commercial 10,540
Dong Zhong Jie Jia, Dongcheng District, Beijing, The lease [GHE2
PRC (Note) AR
FREIE R R R RPER28REREFE2ES - 6
K8EE (Kii)
Note: The legal titles of the properties have not been passed to the Biat - WEMEZE#R2022F12A31B KRB
Group at 31 December 2022. FTALE -
Investment properties in the Hong Kong NREBZBRENE
Location Lease term Purpose Gross area
b B HAHR Jizkes EEEE
Sq. ft.
FER
Flat B, 9 Floor, 6A Bowen Road, Hong Kong Long lease Residential 3,007
BBBEEECA  9IEBE REA F=

Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited
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SIlVER GRANT INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS
GROUP LIMITED
HEBRBREZEREEERLQ A

(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)
(REBFEMEIZBRDF)
B 13 18 8% Stock code: 171

- Suite 4901, 4%9th F|oor
o R LT ice ToWer, Convention P|ozq ==
—— ‘_..‘_:‘ e —T‘I:I‘ar‘bour—Roed‘anchal Z,"-‘.'-'.. T
S L e o -—Heng Kong - 4
EHBEBBER : s
BRES A KE
49184901 %



	封面
	目錄
	財務摘要
	企業資料
	主席報告
	董事簡介
	高級管理人員簡介
	環境、社會及管治
	企業管治報告
	董事會報告
	獨立核數師報告
	綜合損益表
	綜合全面收益表
	綜合財務狀況表
	綜合權益變動表
	綜合現金流量表
	綜合財務報表附註
	財務概要
	投資物業概要
	封底



